< GRAN CTION

. REGIONAL AIRPORT

Board Packet

August 16, 2016



GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY A=

Date:

Location:

AUGUST 16, 2016
GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL AIRPORT GRAND ] Hﬂg:‘}%ﬂ

AIRPORT TERMINAL BUILDING - 2NP FLOOR
2828 WALKER FIELD DRIVE, GRAND JUNCTION, CO

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
Time: 5:15PM

I

IL

IIL.

IV.

VL

VIIL

VIIL.

Call to Order

Approval of Agenda
Conflict Disclosures
Commissioner Comments

Citizens Comments

The Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority welcomes public comments at its
meetings. The Citizens Comment period is open to all individuals that would like to
comment. If you wish to speak under the Citizens Comment portion of the agenda, please
fill out a comment card prior to the meeting. If you have a written statement for the
Board, please have 10 copies available and give them to the Clerk for distribution to the
Board. The Board Chairman will indicate when you may come forward and comment.
Please state your name for the record.

Consent Agenda
The Consent Agenda is intended to allow the Board to spend its time on the more
complex items on the agenda. These items are perceived as non-controversial and can be
approved by a single motion. The public or Board Members may ask that an item be
removed from the Consent Agenda and be considered individually.

July 19, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes
Pay Request: G48S July Invoice
Pay Request: Mead & Hunt
Purchase Requests: Pavement Repairs and Maintenance
1. West Terminal Apron Drainage Repair
2. C1A Taxilane Repair
3. Landside Fog Seal
E. Asset Disposal and Purchase Request

O DD =

SOow»

~1 | Lh |

Discussion Items

Financial Update (Presented by: Ty Minnick) 8
Projects Update (Presented by: Ben Johnson) 9
Pre-Security Food Service (Presented by: Kip Turner) 10
Terminal Area Plan Update (Presented by: Kip Turner) 11
2013 Project — 800 Eagle Drive (Presented by: Kip Turner) 12

moaQwy»

Action Items

A. Resolution 2016-004: Revised Banking Resolution (Presented by: Ty Minnick)__ 13
B. Resolution 2016-005: Appointment of Budget Officer 14
C. Resolution 2016-006: FMLD Grant Application (Presented by: Ben Johnson) 15

POSTED August 12, 2016



D. FAA AIP Grant Offer — AIP 54 (Presented by: Kip Turner) 16
E. Contract Award: AIP 54 (Presented by: Kip Tumer) 17
F. Bond Counsel Selection {Presented by: Ty Minnick) 18

IX.  Any other business which may come before the Board

X. Adjournment

DIRECTIONS TO MEETING LOCATION:

GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL AIRPORT - TERMINAL
2828 WALKER FIELD DRIVE, SECOND FLOOR
GRAND JUNCTION, CO 81506

Grand Junction Regional Airport is located at the end of Horizon Drive, north of Interstate 70.
Parking is available in the Airport’s main parking lot. Please bring your parking ticket into the
meeting, and we will validate the parking ticket. Map of the Airport Campus

POSTED August 12, 2016



A=
GRAND JUNCTION

REGIONAL AIRPORT

Grand Junction Regional Airport Autho;ity Board

Board Meeting
Meeting Minutes
July 19, 2016
EXECUTIVE SESSION
Time: 4:00PM
I. Call to Order
1L Approval of Agenda
III.  Motion into Executive Session
HI.  To determine and discuss the Airport’s health insurance contract, and renewal thereof,
which is currently subject to negotiation, as authorized by C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4)(e)(]), as
well as to confer with legal counsel for the purpose of receiving legal advice related to a
pending legal matter, as authorized by C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4)(b)
IV.  Adjourn Executive Session

SPECIAL COMMITTEE MEETING
Time: 5:15PM

L

IL.

Call to Order
Mr. Steve Wood, Board Chairman, called the Meeting of the Grand Junction Regional

Airport Authority Board to order at 5:32PM on July 19, 2016 in Grand Junction,
Colorado and in the County of Mesa.

Commissioners Present: Other:

Steve Wood, Chairman Eric Trinklein. Armstrong Consultants
Rick Langley Kathryn Bennett, Armstrong Consultants
Rick Wagner Al Adelgren, Citizen

Paul Nelson Wayne Clark, GJAUTA

Rick Taggart Drew Armstrong, Citizen

Airport Staff:

Kip Turner

Ty Minnick

Ben Johnson

Ben Peck

Chance Ballegeer
Brian Harrison
Matthew Powers

Approval of Agenda



II1.

IV.

VL.

VII.

The Agenda was approved by major motion.

Conflict Disclosures
Commissioner Langley — None
Comrnissioner Nelson — None
Chairman Wood — Hangar Owner
Commissioner Wagner — None
Commissioner Taggart — None

Commissioner Comments
Commissioner Nelson commented on a second B29 named “Doc” that has been work on
for 16 years, flew on Sunday

Commissioner Wagner welcomed Mr. Kip Turner to his first Board Meeting

Chairman Wood commented on the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award from the
Government Finance and Officers Association presented to the Grand Junction Regional
Airport Authority for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2016.

Mr. Minnick said that there is a certain criteria that the GFOA has, but basically they just
have to make sure that the budget document is very transparent and want it to where an
outsider can pick it up and know exactly what is going on.

Chairman Wood stated that Aviation day is August 19", The B29 “Fifi” will be back in
Grand Junction from August 31% to September 4. And The Rise above the Tuskegee
Airmen Inspirational traveling road show is here September 21% to the 24",

Citizen Comments
None

Consent Agenda
A. June 21, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
B. Pay Request: G4S April Billing
C. Pay Request: AIP 52 Projects
1. Armstrong Pay Request
2. Straight Stripe Pay Request
3. Pro Electric Pay Request
D. Asset Disposal Policy Revision

Commissioner Wagner made a motion to approve the consent agenda. Commissioner
Nelson seconded. Voice Vote. All Ayes

Discussion Items
A. Financial Update



Mr. Minnick briefed the Board on the airport’s current financial status. (Financial
Results report created by Mr. Ty Minnick)

Financial Results

Assets — The revenue bond sinking fund increases $128,000 each month to pay for
the semi-annual interest due June and December and the annual principal due in
December. The interest amount paid in June was $330.000. PFC restricted cash
continues to decrease as the amount of monthly PFC revenue is less than the amount
allocated to the 07 bond debt service.

Liabilities — Accrued expenses are comparatively lower due to the year-end accruals
for payroll and prepaid rent.

Aeronautical Revenue — Aeronautical revenue is consistent with budget and prior
year.

Non-Aeronautical Revenue — Non-aero revenue amounts are consistent with current
pricing, specifically the increase in the parking rate, and enplanements compared to
prior year.

Operating Expense
1. Personnel expense is consistent with the reduction of administrative staff in
January 2016.

2. Contract services are higher compared to budget and 2015 as legal expenses
continue to drive up total operating expenses.

Non-operating Revenue/Expense — Non-operating revenue/expense is consistent
with budget and prior year.

Enplanements

2016 vs 2015

Year to

Month Date

2015 20,381 102,096

2016 22,561 107,769

Difference 2,180 5,673

Historical Average
Year to
Month Date
5 Year

Average 19,874 105,924
2016 22,561 107,769

Difference 2,687 1,845



Mr. Minnick commented that the budget timeline. Mr. Minnick said that last year the
audit committee did a full review of the detail through numerous meetings and asked
if the Board if they wanted to do it the same way this year or hold workshops with the
whole Board.

The Board agreed that the way it was handled last year works just fine.
Mr. Minnick said that they plan to have a draft budget in September.
B. Project Update

Mr. Johnson briefed the Board and stated that on AIP 52, the runway rehabilitation
projects, work is in progress on the fog seal and restripe and will be finished by
Friday night and then that will be complete. The mill and overlay is now scheduled to
start August 1%, they’ll begin mobilizing July 31* and they have gotten their notice to
proceed. That project will be all night work again, on a 21-day schedule. AIP 53 is
now complete and closed. AIP 54, which is the apron phase I, is currently out to bid.
The airport did receive approval from the FAA on the plans, the design, the scope of
work and the fees, tomorrow is the pre-bid meeting and bid opening is August 3%,
Mr. Johnson said that because of how late in the year it is, they may just wait and kick
that work off in the spring time. AIP 55, Armstrong is still working on the scope of
work for that project.

VIII. Action Items
A. Purchase Request: Oshkosh Plow Conversion

Mr. Johnson stated that staff is proposing is to convert on the four snow blowers into
a plow. The plow will replace one of the existing plows that is past its useful life and
the cost to rebuild that plow is way more than the plow is worth. The changeover is in
the budget this year for $50,000. Two quotes were received and the best quote was
for $36,084. Staff’s recommendation is that the Board approve the purchase of the
plow and the conversion.

Commissioner Wagner made a motion for the Board to approve the purchase request
of 336,084.00 for the plow conversion. Commissioner Langley seconded. Voice Vote.
All Ayes.

B. KDEN Surplus Auction Pre-Approval
Mr. Johnson briefed the Board and said that this event is put on yearly by the CDOT
in partnership with DIA. CDOT has set aside $250,000.00 for helping airports
purchase equipment through this auction. The first piece of equipment bought, they
pay 80%. The second and third piece bought, they pay 50% and if more than three
pieces of equipment is bought then the buyer just pays the price that DIA has set for
it. Staff is proposing to buy up to four pieces of equipment and if successful in getting
all four pieces of equipment the maximum that would be spent by the airport is
$10,000.00 and the CDOT grant would be for $14,500.00. Mr. Johnson and Mr.
Lucero will attend a pre-auction and assess the equipment and make sure it’s in good



shape, then they will put in the airports interest for that piece and see if the airport
gets it,

Commissioner Wagner made a motion for the Board to authorize staff to enter into an
agreement with CDOT for a grant to explore the purchase of equipment listed in the
pictures in the agreement approval under this action item, and authorize the manager
of the airport to sign the agreement with the Department of Transportation.
Commissioner Nelson seconded. Voice Vote. All Ayes.

. Bond Underwriting

Commissioner Langley stated that last month the Board authorized staff to draft and
issue and RFP for the bond refinance to try and take advantage of low interest rates.
There were a total of four RFPs that were received from different parties. Staff and
the audit committee reviewed the proposals, and after interviews with all four parties
it was decided to select RBC as the airport’s preferred vendor to look into the bond
refinance.

1. Presentation — Board Underwriter Finalist

2. Recommendation and Award

Dan from RBC gave the Board a brief overview of the process.

Commissioner Langley made a motion for the Board to accept the contract with
changes noted for a bond underwriter contact with RBC., Commissioner Taggart
seconded. Voice Vote. All Ayes.

. Group Medical Insurance Selection
Mr. Minnick briefed the Board in detail on the four Rocky Mountain Health Plan
options. Mr. Minnick recommended Plan B and/or Plan C.

Commissioner Taggart made a motion to allow staff to utilize both B and C with the
proviso that the out of pocket for the airport would not exceed C and that the
employee pay the difference if they desire B. Commissioner Wagner seconded. Voice
Vote. All Ayes.

. FAA Reimbursement

Chairman Wood briefed the Board on a letter received by the airport in June of 2015
that pertains to the airport repaying eligible cost from an AIP project, the fence
project from 2011. The airport has a demand from the FAA to refund $520,450.83
that were deemed to be ineligible under that contract. There is a letter drafted to the
FAA that outlines repayment of this amount over eight payments, two years quarterly
payment, the first payment being due in September of this year.

Commissioner Wagner made a motion to authorize the Chairman to set aside the
budgetary number reflected in the letter from Kelly and Walker as a repayment
schedule to incorporate into the motion by reference, and that to establish as part of
that separate account to transfer those funds, and that the institution of the



Chairman’s choice. And to have a legal representative to inform the FAA our offer to
participate in that process. Commissioner Nelson seconded. Voice Vote. All Ayes.

X. Any other business which may came before the Board
XI. Adjourn
Commissioner Wagner motioned to adjourn. Commissioner Nelson seconded. Voice Vote. All

Ayes.

The meeting adjourned at 7:00PM.

Steve Wood, Board Chairman

ATTEST:

Victoria Hightower, Clerk to the Board



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority

Agenda Item Summary
TOPIC:
PURPOSE:

RECOMMENDATION:

LAST ACTION:
DISCUSSION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

COMMUNICATION
STRATEGY:
ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF CONTACT:

(G4S Invoice
Information [(J Guidance O Decision

Staff recommends the Board authorize the payment of G4S
Invoice 7828785 for the amount of $13,125.57

Approved July Invoice.

This invoice is the monthly billing for July 2016 for the ongoing
monthly costs for security guard services in the Terminal. This
cost is recovered from signatory air-carriers.

The invoice exceeds $10,000, therefore requiring Board approval.

Staff has verified the amount and the scope of work has been
completed.
$13,125.57

N/A
(G4S Invoice 7828785
Chance Ballegeer

Email: cballegeer@gjairport.com
Office: 970-248-8586



G48 Secure Solutions (USA) Inc.
1395 University Blvd | Jupitar FL 33450

Wabsite:
Contact Us:
Fedsral ID:

Bill To:

Sarvice
Location:

www, gds. com/us
{303} 341-42433
590857245

Chance Ballageer

INVOICE

Grand Junction Regional Adrpert Authorit SECUFIngYOUFWOFId
2828 Walker Field Dr Sta 301

Grand Junction CO B1506-B667

2028 Walker Fiaeld Dr Ste 301
Grand Junction CO B1506-B667

Inveica No:
Amcunt Due:

Invoice Date:

Terms:
Dus Date:

Customar No:

PO Numbar:

Please include the invoica number
with your payment and remit to:

7828785
$13,125.57
07/31/2016

Payment Due 30 Days

0B/30/2016

134423

PO Box 277469
Atlanta GA 30384-7469

Havae billing questions? Email us:

Purchase ordaers:
Other inquiries:

poinfofusa.gdis.com

billinghelplusa.gds.com

Services Rendered for: 07/01/2016 through 07/31/201§

Invoice Description:

CUSTO PROTECTION SERVICES

Grand Junctien

ional Airpert

Total Other Amount
Weak Bagin Week End Monday Tussday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Hours Qty [£3]

Armbruster,Scott E

07/04/2016 07/10/2016 13.75 ¢.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 13.75 ¢.00

Armed CPO-HOLIDAY 13.75 Regular Hours at 28.55 382 .58
Armbruster, Scott E

06/27/20t6 07/03/2016 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00 17.50 0.00 0.00 17.50 0.00

07/04/2016 07/10/2016 Q.00 14.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14.00 0.00

07/11/2016 07/17/2016 16.33 14.00 0.00 0.00 14.25 0.00 0.00 44.58 0.00

01/18/2016 07/24/2016 0.00 14.00 0.00 0.00 17.58 0.00 13,00 44.58 0.00

07/25/201¢6 07/31/2018 0.00 14.00 14.00 0.00 14.00 0.00 Q.00 42.00 0.00
Baughman,John B

07/11/2016 07/17/2016 ] .00 0.00 o. o0 0. 00 0.75 2.25 .00 0.00
07/1B/2016 07/24/2016 0. 00 o.00 0.00 0.00 o.00 0.0Q 2.33 2.33 0.00
Falk,Darin H

06/27/2016 01/03/2016 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14.00 0.00 14.00 €.00

07/04/2016 071/10/2016 0.00 0,00 14.75 13.75 0.00 13.75% 0.00 42.25 0.00

07/11/2016 07/17/2016 D0.00 0.00 14.50 5.00 0.00 18.75 0.00 3B.25 0.00
07/18/2016 07/24/2016 0.00 o.00 14.00 14.25 0.00 14.00 0.00 42,25 0.00

07/25/2016 07/31/2016 14.00 0.00 0.g0 15.00 0.00 14.00 0.00 43.00 0.00
Troncosc, Daniel L

06/27/2016 07/03/2016 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 13.00 13.00 ¢.00

07/04/2016 07/10/2016 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 17.75 0.00 15.00 32.75 0.00
07/11/2016 0%/17/2016 0.00 a.00 0.00 9.00 0.00 0.00 14.00 23.00 0.00
07/18/2016 07/24/2016 15.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15.50 0.00
07/25/2016 07/31/2016 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ¢.00 14.00 14.00 0.00

Armed CPO-REGULAR 445.99 Raegular Hours at 28,55 12,733.01

EMAIL / GRDJUNCTI2 Page 1 of 2

Pr=4323157,CON3-000000  BU-00001 :DERT-DEN ; CUST=134423 ;ADR=1 ; PROJECT=2 123636 ; THVI-TR20TE5 | SORT =2 ;216 SEQ-1

"Chance Ballageer® <challagearfgisirport com»




INVOICE

G4S Secure Sclutions (USA) Ine.

1395 Undversity Blvd | Jupitar FL 23458
Invoica Na: 7828785
Website: www.gda.com/us Amount Due: $13,125.57
Contact Us: (303) 341-4433 Invoice Date: 07/31/2016
Fedaral ID: 590857245 Tarms: Paymant Dus 30 Days
Dua Date: 0B/30/2016
Bill To: Chance Ballegaar ; Customar No: 134423
Grand Junction Regional Airport Authorit SECUFIHgYOUFWOFId BO Numbar:
2628 Walker Field Dr Ste 301
Grand Junction CO B1506-8667 Please include the invoice number
with your paymant and remit to:
PO Box 277469
Atlantas GA 30384-7469
Service 2920 Walker Fiald Dr Ste 301
Location: Grand Junction CO B1506-B667 Have billing questions? Email us:

Purchase corders: poinfofusa.gds.com
Other inguiries: billinghelpdusa.gds.com

Services Rendarsd for: 07/01/2016 through 07/31/2016

Total Other  Amount
Waek Bagin Waeak End Monday Tuasday Hadnesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Hours oty {5)
Subtotal 459,74 13,125,57
Invoice Total 13,125.57
EMAIL / GRDJUNGTIZ Page 2 of 2

FI=-4123757;C0NS-000000;RU-0000 1 ;DEPT-DEN; CUST-L 34423 ; ADR-1 ; PROJECT-0123406 ; IHVI=-702070% ; SORT=2, 216 ;3EQ~-2
"Chance Rallageer® <cballegeardgjiaizport.com>



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority

Agenda Item Summary

TOPIC:

PURPOSE:

RECOMMENDATION:

LAST ACTION:
DISCUSSION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

COMMUNICATION
STRATEGY:

ATTACHMENTS:

STAFFCONTACT:

Mead & Hunt Pay Request for Terminal Area Plan Update

Information X Guidance [J Decision X

Staff recommends that the Board approve the payment of Mead &
Hunt Invoice No. 262519, in the amount of $13,4138.40.

This invoice is the progress billing for work completed on the
Terminal Area Plan Update.

Staff has reviewed the invoice and concurs with the stated level of
completion and recommends paying the invoice.

This Invoice - $13,418.40
Project Total - $169,935.00
None.

1. Mead & Hunt Invoice No, 262519
2. TAP Compliance Matrix

Ben Johnson
Office: 970.248.8596

Email: bjohnson@gjairport.com



Mead

Mead & Hunt

%/

k,

Remit payment to:
e Accounts Receivable
_l I u n-l: | 2440 Deming Way | Middleton, Wl 53562-1562

1-888-364-7272 | AccountsReceivable@meadhunt.com

Invoice

July 18, 2016
Project No: R2331300-156788.01
Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority Invoice No: 262519
2828 Walker Field Drive
Grand Junction, Colorado 81506
Project R2331300- GJT Terminal Area Plan Amendment
156788.01
12/15/15 Contract
Professional Services from June 1, 2016 to June 30. 2016
Fee
Percent
Phase Fee Complete Earned Current
Study Design 3,408.00 100.00 3,408.00 0.00
Project Mgmt, Coord, 8,144 00 35.00 2,850.40 0.00
Communication
Inventory, Forecasts, Facility Req 3,800.00 95.00 3,610.00 0.00
Initial Terminal Bldg Alts 29,360.00 85.00 24,956.00 8,808.00
Refined Terminal Bldg Cancept 29,750.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Recom
Finiancial Analysis & 8,564.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Implementation Pro
Documentation 3,640.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
BCER Subconsultant 24,639.00 100.00 24,639.00 0.00
Liebowitz & Horton Subconsuitant 57,630.00 8.00 4,610.40 4,610.40
Total Fee 169,935.00 64,073.80 13,418.40
Previous Fee 50,655.40
Billing
Total 13,418.40

Total this invoice $13,418.40



- $ oogat'IY § Om] 55
uo(1eluasasd preog/Bullas 3anwwo]) ApnlS 1IAPUCY

- $ 0S8y S 3uQ saded Suntiop asinay 'S
. $ DOSETE 6 uejg Wawdo@as(] puakiwolay £%
- 1 00BZE'S % Waiuo] (eunusa) wawade)day wia)-Suo atedasd 'S
- $ [T 1dacuoy 15

Fuip|ing |eunwa | LONENSIUIWPY pauyay sedasy
SINIWWOI aI30ANI  aFTN0% 114 SSRGS LN s11aviIAINIg NOILJiHISAO HSVL  HSVL  mMvHa
LON/L3W ans

D0rOsL 6 $ INNOWY NYd GNIWIWOIIY ONY Ld3INOD DNIOING TYNIWYIL d3INIIY 'S ISYHI
Op'Ez0T § %SH 00'v02'T  § vonesodioou) uswwo)] )
06'96T'S $ %58 oovIT' 5 T UOIEIUISAId PIEDR/Fuaaly IJHWWIDT APMIS 1INpUO))| v
05'187' $ %58 00'06E°L S auQ) 1aded Supsop dojaaag X
09'F0F'TT S %58 DO9IP'ET 5 santiewsay)y |Biu Suipping (eujwna ) asedaly vy
090501 § D0'9ET'T S wawdojaaag s|eog
SINIWWWOD Q3I2IoAH] ad1TId% 334 SSIHUDOHS/LIW S319vHIANIG NOL1LdIYD%30 NSWL  NSVL  MvHA
LON/13IM ans

(14 $ ANNOWY SIALLYNUIALTY DNICTING NOLLVELSINIWGY ONY ONITHNE TYNINEIL VLLINI ‘T 3SYHY

| 1IN0 [006EI'VZS | %001  [00'6E9°vT S | 13w | A | Apmg Bupsaauduy| | ze | |
_00°6E9VT $ INNOWY LNVLINSNODENS
Aewwns
sluawasnnbay Ayj|3e3 pue s15e33104 ‘AJojuany|
SINTWWODD OTIOAKI  O31H0% 3 SSIUDOU/ LI SHAVHIAITIO NOILdIHISIO HSVL  HSVL MY
LOMN/13W fans

00’008 ANAOWY SLNINIHINDIY ALNIDVA ONY S1SYIIBOS ‘AYOLNIANI ‘E 3SVHd
0812 % %SE 00'BYE B AaNwwo) Apnis jo uopieziued 0 pue uosodwo) [34
081z S %Ot DO'BFE H uoneuIpInG) AJuady (Bsauvan pue 21e1s vy £7°7
0r'igr S RSE DOT6ET S uoneaununucy Ayuady [eio] 'meod| 7T
oTisr S %SE 00Z6E'T 5 uoneuipi0o) tosuods| 177
- 5 - $ uoneuipioo) waloyy|
0099y $ Wauwadeuep 1aloly

SLNIWWGD gIJ0ANI  QTtIn% SSIHOOHS/LIW SHEVHIAITIO NOILdI¥ISI0 HSWL  MSVL  mMvid
LOK/ 13w gns
NOLLVDINNDNWOD ONY NOLLYNIGHOO2 'LNIWIDVYNYN L1I310Ud 2 3SVHd

00'BOV'E $ 00'80FE $32AI35 JO adodg
SINFWWGD  (RI0ANT  QI1119% EEE] SSIUDOYL/ 1IN SIEYHIAIRIG NOILdIHI530 HSVL  XHSVL AvHa
LON/LIW ans
00°80t°E NDISFD AGMNLS ‘T ISVHI

00'SEG'E9T $ INNOWY . 31YadN NVId VUV TYNIWHAL HE[(s}: 1]

xnew ueldwo) epdn 4vi



¥308 51003y UBld [BulWI3] [eU] pue Yeiq L

sjleuaew dumaapy pue siaded Suppom

a3 S5IHD0UL/ LI SHGeIdALa0 NOLL4IMISI0 HSWL MSVL Mvud
1ON/23N ans

SINIWWNGD dIIOANT  aIngs

$ 1INNOWY NOUVLINIWNIOO "L AISYHd
[ |ovore'y $| %8 [oooeo'es s | | A | sishjeuy jepueus| | | |
00°0£9°'2S $ INNOWY ANVLINSNOIENS NOLYOH *2 ZLIMOE3IN
H? S uwo) 59
3aueuyy yum Sunaap adAys/je) axuaajuod 1npuo)
HT s3yL 9
UONBIUASIIJ preog/Funaaly 3a1wwo) Apnig 13npuosy
HE1 om| Jadeg Suppiop dojanag t'9
H?M ueld 79
|e1auLLl] P3|IRlaG pue SiSAjRUY (BB Aeuiwyalg
B 3 00v9s'e S Alojuaaug |eueury 19
0 ; 0 0 OlldIY . ie

00'v95'6 $ INNOWY AHOLNIANI TYIDNYNIZ 9 ISYHd



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority

Agenda Item Summary

TOPIC:

PURPOSE:
RECOMMENDATION:
LAST ACTION:

DISCUSSION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

COMMUNICATION
STRATEGY:

ATTACHMENTS:

STAFFCONTACT:

Pavement Repairs

Information [ Guidance O Decision X

Staff recommends that the Board approve the award of the work to
Adcock Concrete for $13,533.60

This repair was previously discussed at the August 18, 2015 Board
Meeting.

Staff has solicited quotes to repair a section of the West Terminal
Apron that causes water to drain into the Sky Adventures Hangar. The
solution will be to place a surface drain near the low corner of the
building and place a subgrade drainage pipe to catch water draining
from the ramp and roof of the building and route it away from the
building. The repair will have very little to no impact on operations.

Staff received two quotes for this project.
This repair work is in the 2016 budget and was budgeted for $30,000.

$13,533.60

None.

Price Comparison

Ben Johnson
Office: 970.248.8596
Email: bjohnson{@gjairport.com




Price Comparison for Purchases of
Goods, Materials, Supplies & General Services

$500 to $10,000
EVERY PURCHASE OVER $10,000 MUST BE APPROVED BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

General

To comply with the requirements of our Purchasing and Procurement Policy, you must document
a basis for vendor selection and proof of reasonable price by performing a price comparison. If
there is justification for not performing a price comparison, document the justification!

Instructions
1. This document is required to be complete and retained for all purchases of goods,
services, supplies, and general services between $500 and $10,000.
2. This form should not be used to document a Request for Proposal process.
3. Please submit this completed form, and any other documentation to the appropriate
Department Manager, prior to purchase, for pre-approval.

PRICE COMPARISON DOCUMENTATION

NAME OF PERSON COMPLETING FORM:___ Ben Johnson

DATE:_August 2016

Please attempt to obtain three or more competitive price quotes. Vendors may submit phone, fax,
or email price quotes. Online quotes are accepted, but you must obtain at least one quotation in
another form.

Items/Services to be purchased:

Items 1:_West Terminal Apron Drainage Repair

Items 2:

[temns 3:

Purchasing Comparison Form {Rev 1 — September 2014) Page 1 of 2



PRICE COMPARISON TABLE

Vendor Name | Vendor Name | Vendor Name | Vendor Name | Vendor Name
Vendor Contact Adcock Skyline Elam
Name, Phone, and
Email
Item 1 — Price 13,533.60 16,929 Failed to
Quotation Respond

Item 2 — Price
Quotation

Item 3 — Price
Quotation

PURCHASE AWARDED TO (VENDOR NAME):

If lowest priced vendor DID NOT receive award, please explain:

DEPARTMENT MANAGER APPROVAL:

AIRPORT MANAGER APPROVAL (IF REQUIRED):

If a price comparison WAS NOT performed, please complete the following:

Check the appropriate box, or fill out the “other section.

Purchase requires brand compatibility with existing equipment and is available only
from the manufacturer or sole authorized distributor.

Purchase requires a match of currently owned product (e.g., furniture).

Product is under warranty and therefore, purchase was made through the
manufacturing company, so that the warranty is not jeopardized.

Emergency Purchase (Must comply with the emergency purchase section of the
purchasing and procurement policy).

O 0O 0O O

Purchasing Comparison Form (Rev 1 — September 2014)

Page 2 of 2




Grand Junction, CO 81505
970.242.8567 or 970.242.206! (fax)

Licensed & Insured Bid #6636
2458 Industrial Bivd. Ste 1

Bid Proposal

To: GJ Airport Date: 8/9/2016
bjohnson@gjairport.com
JOB DESCRIPTION: GJ Airport REVISION

Bid for project includes labor and material: Concrete, rebar, expansion joints, cure and fine

grading to + or - 1/10th.

Not included: Gravel, backfill, surveying, testing and traffic control.

If necessary: Winter Protection -5$1.00/LF for Stemwalls - $.75 (cents)/LF for machine work & footers

5.25 {cents)/SF for hand set work

ITEMIZED ESTIMATE: Price

Removal of existing pavement and replace with new concrete 2000 SF @ 512.20 SF S

24,400.00

pavement 20' x 100’ concrete to be 8" thick reinforced with

#4 rebar 1' 0.C. {Includes sawcut for ground loops and caulking)

Removal of existing concrete and asphalt pavement next to 901 SF @ $13.60 5F S

12,253.60

building and pour new pavement and V-Pan to help correct

drainage away from building. Concrete to be 8" thick and

reinforced with #4 rebar 18" 0.C.

Install 6" Drain Pipe from gutters at building all the way to 118 S

1,280.00

the hillside, where they will daylight into the drainage swale

with cobble.

Pricing is good through October 1, 2016.

Terms: All Charges Account are due and payable 30 days after date of invoice.

FINANCE CHARGE: Past due accounts are subject to INTEREST at the RATE OF 1 1/2 PERCENT PER MONTH

{18 % PER ANNUM) applied to the principal monthly plus any costs of collection, including reasonable

attorney's fees.

Total s

37,933.60

Any alterations or deviations from the from the above specifications invalving extra cost of material or labor will be done
by a written change order, and will become an extra charge over the sum mentioned in this contract. All agreements must be
made in writing.

Authorized Signature; Mike Adcock
President/Owner

ACCEPTANCE

You are hereby authorized to furnish all materials and Iabor required to complete the work mentioned in the above proposal
which | agree to pay the amount stated in said bid proposal and according to the terms thereof.
Date: Signature:




e
-
E 2

%}( » INC.

3191 Moz Ave,, Grand Jun:lln.n, Q0 8tioe

é “Fe): (970 4349121 Funi (970} 434-0851

To: Grand Junction Alrport Authority Contact: Ted Balbier
Address: 2828 Walker Field Drive, Suite 301 Phone:
Grand Junction, CO 81506 Fax:
Project Name: GJ Airport Asphalt Repair & Drainage Improvements Bid Number: 1
Project Location:  Grand Junction Regional Alrport, Various Locations, Grand Junction, Bid Date: 7/13/2016
co
Skyline Contracting, Inc. is pleased to provide you with a quotation on the above project, as follows:
jitem # Item Description Estimated Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Price]
A. General Condition
1 Mobilization, Private Locates, And Securlty Badges 1.00 LS $3,400.00 $3,400.00
Total Price for above A. General Condition Items: $3,400.00
B. Asphalt Repair At Fuel Truck Paridng (103' X 68')
2 Remave Asphalt Paving 780.00 SY $4.10 $3,198.00
3 Site Grading For New Asphalt Paving Section - Cut & 170,00 CY $18.50 $3,145.00
Bxport 170 CY
4 Asphalt Paving Subgrade Reconditioning - 18" Thick 780.00 SY $3.70 $2,686.00
5 Asphalt Class 6 Base Course - 8" Thick 350.00 TON £24.80 $8,680.00
6 Asphalt Paving - 4" Thick 7,004.00 SF $2.50 $17,510.00
Total Price for above B. Asphalt Repair At Fuel Truck Parking (103° X 68') Items: $35,419.00
C. Asphalt Repair The C1A Taxiway (60' X 32"}
7 Remove Asphalt Paving 210.00 SY $4.30 $903.00
8 Site Grading For New Asphalt Paving Section - Cut & 50.00 Cr $18.50 £925.00
Export 170 CY
9 Asphalt Subgrade Reconditioning - 18" Thick 210,00 SY $3.70 $777.00
10 Asphalt Class 6 Base Course - 8" Thick 100.00 TON $26.30 $2,630.00
1 Asphalt Paving - 4" Thick 1,920.00 SF $3.30 $6,336.00
Total Price for above C. Asphalt Repair The C1A Taxiway (60" X 32') Items: $11,571.00
D. Drainage Improvements At Western Sky Hangar
12 Remove Site Concrete Walk And Valley Pan 60.00 SY $10.00 $600.00
13 Remove Asphalt Paving 40.00 SY $5.00 $200,00
14 Grading - Cut & Export 20 CY 20.00 CY $24.40 $488.00
15 Concrete Subgrade Preparation 80.00 SY $5.70 $456.00
16 Concrete Class 6 Base Course - 6" Thick 30.00 TON $28.70 $861.00
17 Concrete Sidewalk & 4' Valley Pan B0.00 SY $72.80 $5,824.00
18 Asphalt Subgrade Preparation 10.00 SY $15.20 $152.00
19 Asphalt Class 6 Base Course - B” Thick B.00 TON $35.00 $280.00
20 Asphalt Paving - 4" Thick 115.00 SF $9.20 $1,058.00
21 12" SDR35 Storm Drain Piping 100.00 LF $33.20 $3,320.00
22 6" SDR35 Roof Drain Connections 3.00 EACH $650.00 $1,950.00
23 Rip Rap 40.00 SY $43.50 $1,740.00
Tatal Price for above D. Drainage Improvements At Western Sky Hangar Items: $16,929.00
Total Bid Price: $67,319.00
7/13/2016 4:22:13 PM Page 1 of2



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority

Agenda Item Summary

TOPIC:

PURPOSE:

RECOMMENDATION:

LAST ACTION:
DISCUSSION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

COMMUNICATION
STRATEGY:

ATTACHMENTS:

STAFFCONTACT:

Taxi lane C1A Repair

Information X Guidance (O Decision

Staff recommends that the Board approve the award of the work to
Skyline Contracting for $11,571.00

None

Staff has solicited quotes to repair a section of Taxi lane C1A that has
sunk and is in need of repair. The repair is approximately 32’ x 60’
and will include repair/replacement of subbase material to prevent
future sinking.

This fix is in the 2016 budget.

The repair will require that Taxi lane C1A be closed for
approximately 2 days while the repairs take place. Staff will
coordinate with affected tenants to make alternate arrangements for
their aircraft should they need to fly during that period.

$11,571.00

None.

Price Comparison

Ben Johnson
Office: 970.248.8596

Email: biohnson@gjairport.com



Price Comparison for Purchases of
Goods, Materials, Supplies & General Services

$500 to $10,000
EVERY PURCHASE OVER $10,000 MUST BE APPROVED BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

General

To comply with the requirements of our Purchasing and Procurement Policy, you must document
a basis for vendor selection and proof of reasonable price by performing a price comparison. If
there is justification for not performing a price comparison, document the justification!

Instructions
1. This document is required to be complete and retained for all purchases of goods,
services, supplies, and general services between $500 and $10,000.
2. This form should not be used to document a Request for Proposal process.
3. Please submit this completed form, and any other documentation to the appropriate
Department Manager, prior to purchase, for pre-approval.

PRICE COMPARISON DOCUMENTATION

NAME OF PERSON COMPLETING FORM:___ Ben Johnson

DATE: August 2016

Please attempt to obtain three or more competitive price quotes. Vendors may submit phone, fax,
or email price quotes. Online quotes are accepted, but you must obtain at least one quotation in
another form.

Items/Services to be purchased:

Items 1;___ Asphalt Repair - C1A

Items 2:

Items 3:

Purchasing Comparison Form (Rev 1 — September 2014) Page 1 of 2



PRICE COMPARISON TABLE

Vendor Name

Vendor Name

Vendor Name

Vendor Name

Vendor Name

Vendor Contact
Name, Phone, and
Email

Skyline
Contractors

Elam

G & G Paving

Item 1 — Price
Quotation

11,571

Came out and
saw areas but
failed to

13,924.90

Item 2 — Price
Quotation

respond with
bid after
multiple

Item 3 — Price
Quotation

attempts to
contact

PURCHASE AWARDED TO (VENDOR NAME):

If lowest priced vendor DID NOT receive award, please explain:

Item 1 - Skyline

DEPARTMENT MANAGER APPROVAL:

AIRPORT MANAGER APPROVAL (IF REQUIRED):

If a price comparison WAS NOT performed, please complete the following:

Check the appropriate box, or fill out the “other section.

Purchase requires brand compatibility with existing equipment and is available only
from the manufacturer or sole authorized distributor.

Purchase requires a match of currently owned product (e.g., furniture).

Product is under warranty and therefore, purchase was made through the
manufacturing company, so that the warranty is not jeopardized.

Emergency Purchase (Must comply with the emergency purchase section of the
purchasing and procurement policy).

O 0O 0O O

Purchasing Comparison Form (Rev | — September 2014)

Page 2 of 2




-

=
e
SKZLINE =
C

SR ACTESS, INC.

é/'ltl:(ﬂ?ﬂ)‘iﬁ-ﬂlil Fux: (970) 414-0851

To: Grand Junction Airport Authority Contact: Ted Balbier
Address: 2828 Walker Field Drive, Suite 301 Phone:
Grand Junction, CO 81506 Fax:
Project Name: G Airport Asphalt Repair & Drainage Improvements Bid Number: 1
Project Location: gr}and Junction Regional Alrport, Various Locations, Grand Junction, Bid Date: 7/13/2016

Skyline Contracting, Inc. is pleased to provide you with a quotation on the above project, as follows:

|1tem # Item Description Estimated Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Price|
A. General Condition
1 Mobilization, Private Locates, And Security Badges 1.00 LS $3,400.00 $3,400.00
Total Price for above A. General Condition Items: %3,400.00
B. Asphalt Repair At Fuel Truck Parking (103’ X 687)
2 Remove Asphalt Paving 780.00 SY $4.10 $3,198.00
3 Site Grading For New Asphalt Paving Section - Cut & 170.00 CY $18.50 $3,145.00
Export 170 CY
4 Asphalt Paving Subgrade Reconditioning - 18" Thick 780.00 SY $3.70 $2,686.00
5 Asphalt Class 6 Base Course - 8" Thick 350.00 TON $24.80 $8,680.00
6 Asphalt Paving - 4" Thick 7,004.00 SF $2.50 $17,510.00
Total Price for above B. Asphalt Repair At Fuel Truck Parking (103" X 68') Items: %$35,419.00
C. Asphalt Repair The C1A Taxiway (60' X 32")
7 Remove Asphalt Paving 210.00 SY $4.30 $503.00
8 Site Grading For New Asphalt Paving Section - Cut & 50.00 Cy $18.50 $925.00
Export 170 CY
9 Asphalt Subgrade Reconditioning - 18" Thick 210.00 SY $3.70 $777.00
10 Asphalt Class 6 Base Course - 8" Thick 100.00 TON $26.30 $2,630.00
11 Asphalt Paving - 4" Thick 1,920.00 SF $3.30 $6,336.00
Total Price for above C. Asphalt Repair The C1A Taxiway (60" X 32') Items: $11,571.00
D. Drainage Improvements At Western Sky Hangar
12 Remove Site Concrete Walk And Valley Pan 60.00 5Y $10.00 $600.00
13 Remove Asphalt Paving 40.00 SY £5.00 $200.00
14 Grading - Cut & Export 20 CY 20.00 Cy $24.40 $488.00
15 Concrete Subgrade Preparation 80.00 SY $5.70 $456.00
16 Concrete Class 6 Base Course - 6" Thick 30.00 TON $28.70 $861.00
17 Concrete Sidewalk & 4' Valley Pan 80.00 SY $72.80 %5,824.00
18 Asphalt Subgrade Preparation 10.00 SY $15.20 $152.00
19 Asphalt Class 6 Base Course - B* Thick B.00 TON $35.00 $280.00
20 Asphalt Paving - 4" Thick 115.00 SF $9.20 $1,058.00
21 12" SDR35 Storm Drain Piping 100.00 LF $33.20 $3,320.00
22 6" SDR35 Roof Drain Connections 3.00 EACH $650.00 $1,950.00
23 Rip Rap 40.00 SY $43.50 $1,740.00
Total Price for above D. Drainage Improvements At Western Sky Hangar Items: %$16,929.00
Total Bid Price: $67,319.00

7/13/2016 4:22:13 PM

Page 1 of 2



G and G Paving Construction, Inc.

516 Fraitvale Court, Suite A
Grand Junction, Colorado B1504
Phone: (970) 243-8307
Fax: (970) 243-1364

PROPOSAL
August 5, 2016
To: Grand Junction Regional Airport
800 Eagle Drive
Grand Junction, CO 81506
Project Name & Location: GJ Regional Airport

Contact Name: Ted Balbier
Phone Number: 270-0455

G &G Paving Construction is pleased to provide you with this propoesal for the work listed below:

Description Uit Quantity Unit Price Total Amount
Bid
Item 1 Remove 27 of existing asphalt by Rotomilling and hauling
to dump site and replace and level with 27 of new HBP. LS 1 $13,924.90 $13,924.90
TOTAL = $13,924.90

**Note** Total amount for each item listed above
includes all Labor, Equipment, Materials and
Maobilizations needed to perform the work,

THIRTEEN THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED TWENTY-FOUR AND 90/100 DOLLARS

Progress payments with total due on Complction.

A late charge of 18% per annum on all outstanding balances will be imposed upon past due accounts. Customer agrees 1o pay all costs of collection and

a reasonable attorney fee if the account becomes delinquent and is referred for collection

All materials arc guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed in a workman ke maaner according to standard practices. Any afterations or deviations
from the above specifications involving extra cost will be executed only upon written orders, and will becone an extra charge over the above estimate. All
agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents or delays beyond our control Owner to carry fire, tomado and other necessary insurance. Our workers are

fully covered by workers compensation insumnce

Authonzed Signature —
Note: We may withdraw this proposal if not accepted within _ 30_davs

Acceptance of proposal- The above prices, specifications and
conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are authorized
to do work as specified. Paymem will be made as outlined above.

Signature Date of Acceptance




Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority

Agenda [tem Summary

TOPIC:

PURPOSE:

RECOMMENDATION:

LAST ACTION:
DISCUSSION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

COMMUNICATION
STRATEGY:

ATTACHMENTS:

STAFFCONTACT:

Landside Fog Seal Project

Information X Guidance [] Decision X

Staff recommends that the Board approve the award of the Landside
Fog Seal Project to Galaxy Asphalt Preservation, and authorize the
Executive Director to sign the quotation.

None

The majority of the Landside streets were rebuilt in 2007 and 2008
and have yet to receive a preventative maintenance surface treatment.
Typically it is recommended to apply a fog seal treatment every 5 to §
years. In 2012 staff had a representative from Asphalt Systems, Inc.
visit the airport to look at the condition of the asphalt. After looking at
the pavement, signs of asphalt oxidation and raveling were observed.
It was recommended that a fog seal should be performed soon to
rejuvenate the pavement. As the 2016 budget was prepared it was
decided to split our paved surfaces into three phases so that the cost
would be spread over a three year period. The first phase was
budgeted for this year and includes Walker Field Drive, Falcon Way,
and the RV parking portion of the main terminal parking lot. A total
of six companies were contacted for quotation and three quotes were
received. Staff contacted the low bidder during the review of the
quotations and verified that their quote includes any required surface
preparation, and that the product application rate will be at 0.13
gallons per square yard.

Galaxy Asphalt Preservation Quotation: $24,725.00

2016 Budgeted Amount: $44,000.00

None.

Price Quotations

Ben Peck
Office: 970.248.8589

Email: bpeck@gjairport.com



s

QUOTE‘

3

Quotatien prepared by: —M&Q’A‘_’—

- - ]
Galaxy Asphalt Preservation s
DATE: JULY 26, 2016
P.0. Box 1445 Palisade CO. 81526 explration dats AUGUST 26, 2016
Phone 970 640 2222 Fax 970 464 1268
mmosher@bresnan.net
TO
Grand Junction Regional Airport
800 Eagle Drive
Grand Juncton CO. 81508
§70 244 9100
A 08 PAYMENT TERMS DUE DATE
Mike Mosher Airport Terminal Due on receipt * JBD
') § DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE LINE TOTAL
1 Traffic Control 1500.00 1500.00
2600 gal. GSB-78 B ot p—
! Striping 1LF 5961.00
| §
alaxy Asphalt Preservation
Miteer Ve e R e |
Q7,0 640222202 _
SUBTOTAL 24725.00
I ‘1_*;3 5 bxperance SALES TAX
TOTAL 24725.00

This [s a quotation on the goods named, subject te the conditions noted below: These prices are good for 30 days.

To accept this quotation, sign here and retum:

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!




upply, Inc.

Proposal

2462 Industrial Blvd,

Grand Junction, CO 81505

{970) 242-B4B7 * (970) 242-4467 Fax
TOLL FREE 1-888-333.6539

PROPOSAL SUBMITTED TO:

Phone:; Date
244-9100 July 11, 2016

G.J. Regional Airport

800 Eagle Dr.

Grand Junction, CO 81506
Atten: Shawn Stratton

Job Name & Address:

Fog Seal Roads and Parking Lots
G. J. Regional AIP

We hereby propose to fumish the following services:

Furnish and apply a fog seal to roadways and parking areas $35,500.00

1. Broom all areas to be sprayed.

2. Apply a fog seal using GSB-78 Sealer produced by Asphalt Systems at a rate o
between 0.12 and 0.15 gal. per sy on an area of approximately 24,300 SY.

Provide traffic control during all fog seal applications on xoadways

Restrip lines and arrows on roads and parking Iots §5,875.00

1. Restrip all lines as is existing now.

2. All thermoplastic arrows will only be restriped with paint.

3. No beads will be used to restrip lines.

Notes:

1. Fog seal will be done during day time hours with roads being done one-half at

a time until dry to allow traffic back on.

2. Traffic control will he the use of cones to close one lane at a time without the

use of flaggers.

All quotes are made based upon the price and availability of asphalt at the time the quote ia made. An adjusted quote will be provided prior to work beginning
based on the price and availability of ssphalt at that time, Either party may cancel thia sgreement based upon the incresse in price. If azphalt becomen
unavailable at any time during the project, Asphalt Specinlists & Supply, Inc. ehall not be liable for any costa due to delays or inability to complete the work. If the
project is more that five (5) days in duration, the price will be adjusted upward or downward during the actun! time of construction. This document and all terma
contrined herein are to be considered as incorporated and/or merged into any subisequent agreements signed between these parties and relating to the snme work

quoted

The terms and conditions atated on page 2 are expressly made a part of this agreement. Asphalt Specinliats & Supply, Inc. shall pot be bound herein unleas the

owner provides satisfactory evidence of adequale financing,

Acceptance of Terms & Conditions

The prices, specifications, terms and conditions stated above and Respectfully submitted,

on page 2 are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.

by:

Signature

Printed name

ASPHALT SPECIALISTS & SUPPLY, INC.

by:

Earl Elam, Estimator

Page 1 of 2



INCORPORATED

TOLL FREE:

1-877-9-SEALCO

WWW.SEALCOINCORPORATED.COM

GRAND JUNGTION REGIONAL AIRFORT PROJECTLOCATION TR0

2828 WALKER FIELD DR PAVEMENT PRESERVATION

GRAND JUNCTION, CO

81506

PROPOSAL [esiwator Jim P.O& BID# 16483
DESCRIETION QNTYZ] NI | ToTAL:

SeaiCo Spectrum Seal™ - Deapest Black Color ~ Exterded Longevily SealCoal

OUR PROPRIETARY, CUSTOM BLENDED ASPHALT SEALER SUPPLEMENTED WITH BLACK

AGGREGATES. POLYMER ADDITIVES, AND DARK COLOR ENHANCERS,

Spectrum Seal™ APPLICATION INCLUDES.

CLEANING OF ASPHALT AS NEEDED,

SPOT PRIMING OF O SPQTS - [F ANY.

INCLUDES TRAFFIC CONTROL

BLUE AREAS - 70,000 SF 1] 12,000.00 12,000.00

GREEN AREAS - 47,000 SF 1 8.000.00 8,000.00

YELLOW AREAS - 86,000 SF 1 12,500.00 12,500.00

SUBTOTAL 32,500.00

RE-STRIPING OF EXISTING PARKING AREA MARKINGS.

BLUE AREAS 1 1.500.00 1.500.00

GREEN AREAS 1 1,500.00 1,500.00

YELLOW AREAS 1 2,000.00 2,000.00

SUBTOTAL 5.000.00

SealCo™ - Highest Quality Products
Best Customer Service - Before and After the Sale.

READ BEFORE SIGNING - TERMS OF SALE - ESTIMATE VALID FOR THIRTY DAYS. THIS IS AN ESTIMATE ONLY

PAYABLE WITHIN FIVE DAYS OF PURCHASE. A FINANCE CHARGE OF 2% PER MONTH (ANNUAL PERCENTAGE
RATE OF 24%) WILL BE AGDED TO ALL ACCOUNTS NOT PAID WATHIN FIVE DAYS FOLLOWING PURCHASE I¥
PLACED FOR COLLECTION PURCHASER AGREES TO PAY ALL ATTORMEY AND COLLECTION COSTS
CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT BE HELD RESPONSIELE FOR SAFETY VIOLATIONS OF OTHERS, ALL DIMENSIONS
AND QUANTITIES ARE APPROXIMATE ADDITIONAL CO5TS WILL BE INCURRED DUE TO INTERFERENCE FROM
VEHICLES AND/OR HINDRANLES FROM ANY SOURCE DURING ANDIOR PRIOR T APPLICATION THE ABQVE
TERMS AND COSTS ARE ACCEFTED. | UNDERSTAND THAT ADDITIONAL CHARGES MAY APPLY, YOU ARE
HERERY AUTHORIZED TO COMPLETE THE WORIK AND ANY ADOITIONAL WORK AS NEEDED.

SIGNATURE & DATE:

VISA & MASTERCARD ACCEPTED

P.O. BOX 778 GUNNISON, COLORADO 81230

GUNNISON 841-4260 MONTROSE 249-8812 GLENWOOD SPRINGS 945-4260 FAX: 970-641-2477




Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority

Agenda Item Summary

TOPIC:

PURPOSE:

RECOMMENDATION:

LAST ACTION:
DISCUSSION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

COMMUNICATION
STRATEGY:

ATTACHMENTS:

STAFFCONTACT:

Asset Disposal and Purchase Request

Information X Guidance [ Decision X

Staff recommends that the Board approve the disposal of the 2013
Polaris Ranger, by trade, and Purchase of a 2016 Polaris Ranger from
English Bros. Polaris.

None

This is a scheduled replacement of the UTV used by Airside
Operations staff. Typically, because of frequent use on the airfield on
pavement and off, the Airport replaces this UTV every 2 to 3 years.

This replacement is in the 2016 budget. Staff solicited quotes from the
two Polaris dealers (one in Montrose).

2013 Polaris Ranger Trade Value  $9,000.00
2016 Polaris Ranger Purchase $14,950.00
Net $5,950.00
None.

Price Comparison

Ben Johnson
Office: 970.248.8596
Email: bjohnson{@giairport.com




Price Comparison for Purchases of
Goods, Materials, Supplies & General Services

$500 to $10,000
EVERY PURCHASE OVER $10,000 MUST BE APPROVED BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

General

To comply with the requirements of our Purchasing and Procurement Policy, you must document
a basis for vendor selection and proof of reasonable price by performing a price comparison. If
there is justification for not performing a price comparison, document the justification!

Instructions
1. This document is required to be complete and retained for all purchases of goods,
services, supplies, and general services between $500 and $10,000.
2. This form should not be used to document a Request for Proposal process.
3. Please submit this completed form, and any other documentation to the appropriate
Department Manager, prior to purchase, for pre-approval.

PRICE COMPARISON DOCUMENTATION

NAME OF PERSON COMPLETING FORM: __+. e/ . Jrcces

DATE: 3 —1E-Rol(,

Please attempt to obtain three or more competitive price quotes. Vendors may submit phone, fax,
or email price quotes. Online quotes are accepted, but you must obtain at least one quotation in
another form.

Items/Services to be purchased:

Items 1: OIOS ?c\l&\r‘:‘&

Items 2:

Items 3:

Item 4:

Purchasing Comparison Form (Rev 1 — September 2014) Page 1 0of 3



PRICE COMPARISON TABLE

Vendor Name | Vendor Name | Vendor Name | Vendor Name | Vendor Name |
ry
Vendor Contact Grondd Sel . E“J ke Bros
Name, Phone, and  |(&uy 9?-'4'5 Pl
. i 5
Email 23 - K400
Item 1 - Price $ 1o 190. L¥ | s14950
Quotation # .
po Tde DY Fog 552
Item 2 — Price
Quotation
Item 3 — Price ]
Quotation
PURCHASE AWARDED TO (VENDOR NAME):
If lowest priced vendor DID NOT receive award, please explain:
DEPARTMENT MANAGER APPROVAL:
AIRPORT MANAGER APPROVAL (IF REQUIRED):
If a price comparison WAS NOT performed, please complete the following:
Check the appropriate box, or fill out the “other section.
Purchase requires brand compatibility with existing equipment and is available only L]
from the manufacturer or sole authorized distributor.
Purchase requires a match of currently owned product (e.g., furniture). L]
Product is under warranty and therefore, purchase was made through the manufacturing | [_]
company, so that the warranty is not jeopardized.
Emergency Purchase (Must comply with the emergency purchase section of the L]
purchasing and procurement policy).

Purchasing Comparison Form (Rev | — September 2014)

Page 2 of 3



2013 Polaris Ranger 900 Xtreme Performance Browning Limited Edition Standard Equip... Page 1 of 1

NADAguides Price Report

7/18/2016

2013 Polaris

Ranger 900 Xtreme Performance Browning
Limited Edition

Values

Suggested Low Average

List Price Retail Retail

Base Price $15,799 $8,860 %$11,655
Options: (s}

Polaris HD Integrated
4500 Ib Winch $660 $239 $332
TOTAL PRICE: $16,459 $9,099 $11,987
Value Explanations

Prices shown are retail consumer values and are (D be considered as sefling prices. Trade-in vaiues are to be determined
by local deslers and are generatly lower than values shown.

Suggested List — The manufacturer's (distributors) wghest suggested list prica in the U 5.A. when the unit was new
Unless indicated, the suggested list price does not include destination charges, dealer set-up, state or local taxes,
license tags or insurance.

Low Retail Value - A low retail unit may have extensive wear and tear. Body parts may have dents and biemishes.
The buyer can expect to invest in cosmetic and/or mechanical work. This vehide shoukd be in safe running order. Low
retail vehicles wusually are not found on dexler lots. Low Retail is not trade-in value,

Average Retall Value — An average retail unit should be clean without obvious defects. All rubber and cables should

be in good condition. The paint should match and have a goad finish. All lights and switches should work property. The
mileage should be within or slightly higher than the average range. This unit should alse pass any emission inspection.

= Cepynght 2016 Nanonal Apprasal Guides Inc all nghts mserved Habonal Apprasal Guidas. Inc 1s a stratege ally ofJ D Pawer and Asscoates ©.J 0 FPower ant Associates 2014 afl fights
reserved

http://'www.nadaguides.com/Motorcvcles/2013/Polariss/RANGER-900-XP-BROWNING-T. 71870164



Grand Valiley Powersports

: 2865 North Avenue
Grand Junction, CO 81501
- (970) 263-4600
X32226

URCTTON RESTEIGEXIREERT Stock # 1/18/2016
Purctaser (Print) GREND 9o . 22=PIBr Winkler - 3alespers
Purchaser (Pdnt‘ Salasperson.‘n 5 g TALARTS
Address Year i Make
City & State Zip New [Fthed ] Model R1GRTEO7AS
Phone No, Home Business GC
Driver's Lic. No. ; Birth Date V.IN. ANIRTED 1 CoheZE 20

ALL USED VEHIGLES ROLD "AS IS OR

“WITH ALL FAULTS" UNLESS SEPARATE AGREEMENT 15 FURNISHED BUYER

List Addional Accessoties and Equipment Below { Sales Price as Equippsd ¥ lmw

DESCRIPTION PRICE Freight - =%
B ;qgf.__%___ —‘.-_—-:Se'l-l.lp *ILe-E0

Sub-Total FI5,4Ll5.99

Total Accessories ’ ¥0.00

Total Sales Prics *15,8L9-39

. Filing Fee

GAP Insurance 000

: Theft Protection ¥ua.00

AR 3 Manufacturer Extended Warranty]| ~ 30.00
. Extended Service Plan $0.00

_ Labog f2e instadlcd padifs — 1= § — = — —towiTaresress FfaT20
—PRlies prowSseng - Accessories Sales Tax 5000
: Machine Sales. Tax Due ¥0.00
LAROR po.0 Delivery and Handling | 5550

' cmeran

UPON VERIFKCA TICHN BUYER AGREES Ti
PAY AMOUNT EXCEETING THIS FICURE

Total Accessories b0 _od| TOTALCASHPRICE]  **1
Deposit Received | 50 . 0GRS
Trade in Allowance 50.00 | e n] Lafhion s i

TRADE IN: Make LESS PAYOFF $0.¢0° -
#1 Model Year TRADE EQUITY |
vig o . . Miles JlAddiionat Down Pymt.
TRADE IN° Make IR B oz
#2 Model Year 5SS T e T
ViN# Hiles Cash Due on Delivery

Balanog to Fnance

] NEW MACHINE

SELLER'S OBL.GATIONGS ARE HINITED TOANY AND ALL RESTRICTIONS AND
UMITATIONS AS STATED BY HDVIDUAL MAMURACTURER'S WARRANTIES
COVERING THIS NEW EGUIPMENT. INDIVIDIAL EQUIPMENT WARRANTIES

WHL BE DELIVERED TO PLRCHASER BY SE1LER

[ ] USED MACHINE

THIS LINIT IS SOLD “AS IS, WHERE I5° WITHOUT AMY WARRANTIES WHATSO-
EVER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE MERCHANTABIITY, FITNESS FOR
ANY PURPQSE, DURABILITY, DESIGN OR SUITABLITY

[] DEALER RETAINS ALL
FACTORY INCENTIVES

INMTAL e

WNITAL

INITIAL

By intalng below Burchaser acknemwiedius and agroes to tully cocperate and adjust for clencal errats on any and alf finanang opphuaticns of bai documantaticn o desmed
rsCessary of desirabla at tha ez sonable Jiscotion of Seller ar any therd party lender If Purchaser fails, after 15 days of Seffar's requsst & sxzeute such documents comect-
mg effers, and if Purchaser s in covparate with Seller's roquest, Sefler may instituta any action of proceeding agatnst Pirchaser relsting to Be provisions herein. In the
event ef ary such uzon or proceesing, Seller shull be entitied 1o recover from Purchaser its reasonabls costs, expanses and attameys’ foos

NITIAL

The undersigned purchasens) «knirsiguiges (hat ho 'she "as read arg understands all of the terms and conditons sef lorth on bot sidus of tus agremend | of we, heteby acknowledgs

recapt of § 2opy of {5 order

X

£CCEFYED 8Y

FURCHASER'S SIGNATURE

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

THIS BJVER'S ORDER MUST BE SIGNED BY AN DFFICIAL OF THE COMPANY

AR e oV P e

PR s abse e

W AL

e i PN



(D(D"-JCDUI&(-JN

10
n
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

PURE

SE PeLARIs J

% o CUSTOMEF:‘. #

ADDRESS Q_- : ‘ P.O/BUYER

CiTY-STATE ZIpP SALESPERSON

PHONE { ) NEXT DAY 2 DAY 3 DAY

FAX { ) SPECIAL INST'RUCTIONS
Rt o o oxe o vmanes = 00w ], arerovnss

]
Qry PART NUMBER DESCRIPTION PRICE

\ e « s w ‘S ]‘chSD-tE
SefBIOe, POLo SRe0 0\ Beas  1l-Canaepg F0o

T le—Canber Q00 Nnlig,

] S hon
1 \b\ﬁﬂ-@-&ﬁmﬂn}m

SO GAT  SETidy b‘tm;\une\l CotNINTAON

— FO00 "

e

ASCD

Smos e ?

ENGLISH BROS. POLARIS

ATV - Snowmobiles - Trailers 67809 East Hwy. 50

We Sell Factory Parts .
We Service All Makes & Models ontrose, CO 81401

E-mail: english@montrose.net

PHONE: [970) 249-0101 FAK: (9701 249-8932




JULY 2016 PERFORMANCE

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Assets — The revenue bond sinking fund increases $128,000 each month to pay for the semi-annual interest
due June and December and the annual principal due in December, PFC restricted cash balance is consistent
with the payment for the bond debt service.

Liabilities — Remaining balance of the 2009 Colorado SIB loan is $1,328,000 with an annual debt service of
$465,000 and maturity of June 2019. Remaining balance of the 2007 Revenue Bonds is $13,760,000 with an
annual debt service of approximately $1,540,000.

Aeronautical Revenue — aeronautical revenue is consistent with budget and prior year.

Non-Aeronautical Revenue — non-aero revenue amounts are consistent with current pricing, specifically the
increase in the parking rate, and enplanements compared to prior year.

Operating Expense
1. Personnel expense is lower due to fewer than budgeted staff of 29 versus actual of 25.
2. Contract services are higher compared to budget and 2015 as legal expenses continue to drive up
total operating expenses.

Non-operating Revenue/Expense ~ non-operating revenue/expense is consistent with budget and prior year,
showing an increase in customer facility charges as a result of the increase from $3.80 to $4.00 per rental
day.

BOND UPDATE

e Staff requested bids for bond and disclosure counsel and after review of the 5 bids K&L Gates was
selected. The engagement letter is available for review as part of the Action Items at this August
board meeting.

» Staff will be providing the necessary information to bond counsel which will provide the foundation
for the offering document. The first draft is expected by the end of August.

e  Staff will be providing the total amount of requested new money to RBC once a decision is made as
to what projects need to be completed. This discussion will take place at this August board meeting.

* We anticipate to have pricing in late October and closing in early November.

Page 10of 2



ENPLANEMENTS

2016 vs 2015
Yearto
Month Date
2015 21,712 123,808
2016 20,774 128,543
Difference (938) 4,735
Enplanements
Current Year vs Prior Year Variance
15.0%
10.0%
5.0%
0.0%
-5.0% Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
-10.0%
m—— ONth = Year
Historical Average
Year to
Month Date
5 Year Average 20,666 126,590
201e 20,774 128,543
Difference 108 1,953
Enplanements
Current Year vs 5 Year Average
25,000
s 23,000
$ 21,000
E
% 19,000
a 17,000
=
w 15000
13,000
Jan Feb Mar Apr May lun Jul Aug Sep Ot Mow Dec
w2016 Actual =5 Year Average

Page 2 of 2




Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority
Statements of Changes in Net Position

Operating revenie
Aeronautical revenue
Passenger airline revenue
Passenger airline landing fees
Terminal rent
Other
Total passenger airline revenue

Non-passenger airline revenue
Landing (ees from cargo
Cargo and hangar rentals
Aviation fuel tax
Fuel flowage lees
Other

Total non-passenger airline revenue

Total aeronautical revenue

Non-aeronautical revenue
Land and building leases
Terminal - food and beverage
Terminal - retail
Terminal - other
Rental cars
Parking and ground transportation
Other

‘T'otal non-acronautical revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Personnel compensation and benefits
Communications and wtilities
Supplies and materials
Contract services
Repairs & maintenance
Insurance
Other

Total operating expenses
Operating income, before depreciation
Depreciation
Onpetating gain (loss)

Non-operating revenues {expenses)
Passenger facility charges
Interest income
Interest expense
Customer facility charges
Capital contributions
Capital expenditure
Debt principal payments
Other

Total non-operating revenue

Excess of revenues over (under) expense

YEAR TO DATE MONTH
Actual Budget Actual Actual Budget Actual
73172016 7/3172016 73172015 7/3172016 773172016 7/31/2015
297,099 267,000 275,787 57,734 47,000 40,109
689,409 688,800 689,409 98,487 98,400 98,487
48,350 56,000 46,420 6.575 8.000 5,350
1,034,858 1,011,800 1,011,616 162,796 153,400 144,146
59,683 52,000 54,344 10,870 9,000 9,579
29,534 29,534 29,534 4219 4,219 4,219
107,946 149,000 147,541 5,953 27,000 26,149
272,698 271,000 245,658 46,236 39,000 43,634
469,861 501,534 477,077 67,278 79,219 83,581
1,504,719 1,513,334 1,488,693 230,074 232,619 227,727
338,655 338,466 311,208 46,225 46,781 44,127
23,397 24,120 24,455 7,593 3,446 3,494
19,688 14,000 18,317 2,745 2,000 3,396
140,855 105,000 140,855 20,122 15,000 20,122
551,949 520,560 496,992 101,980 97,650 88,940
788,925 742,000 628,254 104,676 114,000 100,109
47,804 55,000 56,890 9.020 10,600 10.962
1,911,273 1,799,146 1,676,971 292,362 288,877 271,150
3415992 1.312.480 3,165.664 522,436 521.496 498 877
1,003,478 1,211,132 1,015,525 143,284 163,775 141,545
167,784 184,429 166,022 26414 26,258 27,131
125,830 161,257 103,050 13,500 19410 10,489
629,997 479,199 222,137 55,103 45,035 33,848
236,401 289,044 121,691 25,955 27,386 15,134
53,110 53,763 51,778 7,598 7.924 7,729
36,492 54,148 54,723 3,995 7175 4,599
2,253,092 2,433,012 1,734,926 275,849 296,963 240,474
1,162,900 879,468 1,430,738 246,587 224,533 258,403
1,162,900 879.468 1,430,738 246,587 224,533 258,403
518,499 503,000 496,168 74,031 88,000 77,591
15,849 6,300 8,875 2,338 900 1,884
{411,463} (411,465) (440,768) (58,540) (58,540) {62,740}
357,275 321,000 293,508 69,284 56,000 60,212
747,272 827,232 - 707,890 713,470 -
{990,465) {1,013,602) (224,347) (785,817) (788,848) (193,210)
(210,031) {210,031) (203.865) - - -
26,936 22,434 (70,429) 9,187 10,982 (115,263)
1,189.836 901.902 1,360,309 255,774 235,515 143,140




Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority
Statements of Net Position

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable - operations
Accounts receivable - grants
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Restricted assets
Passenger facility charges
Revenue bond reserve fund
Revenue bond sinking fund
Customer facility charge
Lease deposits
Total restricted assets
Pension deferred outflow
Capital assets, net
Total non-current assets
Total assets

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - capital
Accrued expenses
Lease deposits
Current portion of note payable
Current portion of bonds payable

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Net pension liability
Pension deferred inflow
Note payable, net of current portion
Bonds payable, net of current portion
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service and capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position
Total liabilities and net position

713112016 12/31/2015
6,878,295 6,265,142
506,726 501,573
- 22,379
85,085 77,851
7,470,106 6,866,945
1,498,565 1,779,152
1,376,000 1,460,000
621,803 182,452
607,578 538,310
160,953 150,953
4,264,899 4,110,867
331,456 331,456
58,942,759 58,942,759
63,539,114 63,385,082
71,009,320 70,252,027
119,692 166,671
165,817 463,701
278,142 375,913
160,953 150,953
423,096 423,096
875,547 875,000
2,023,247 2,455,334
2,136,600 2,136,600
105,192 105,192
1,114,764 1,114,764
12,891,015 12,891,562
16,247,571 16,248,118
18,270,818 18,703,452
43,638,337 43,638,337
3,496,368 3,421,604
5,603,697 4,488,634
52,738,402 51,548,575
71,009,220 70,252,027




//A'AF{MSTFIONG

GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL AIRPORT

MONTHLY ENGINEER UPDATE
Comments by: Eric Trinklein, Armstrong Consultants, Inc.

Date: 10 August 2016

Seal Coat and Remark (AIP 52)

Work was completed by Straight Stripe Painting out of St. George, Utah in July. The project
was completed on-time and within the project budget. Work was completed entirely at night in
a time window of 11:45pm until 5:45am in order to facilitate commercial traffic operations.
Commercial operations were not impacted during this project. This project will help preserve
the useful life of Runway 11/29 and Taxiway A.

Wind Cone, Segmented Circle, and Edge Lighting Modifications (AIP 52)

Work was completed by Pro Electrical Contractors from Cedaredge, Colorado in July. The
project was completed on-time. Extra work was completed by the Contractor which was
necessary to achieve a quality project. Funding for the additional work was available within the
grant. Additional work was also provided to bury a cable located in the work area. This work
was tracked separately, however, Pro Electric did not charge for this work. This work scope was
required by a Part 139 inspection. The Segmented Circle /Wind Cone is now located outside the
Taxiway Object Free area and complies with FAA requirements. Additionally, the taxiway
lighting circuit on the Runway 4 /22 intersection has been modified so that Taxiway and
Runway lights no longer conflict.

Connector Taxiway Mill and Overlay (AIP 52)

Work is being performed by Elam Construction out of Grand Junction, Colorado, Work is
scheduled to be complete by the end of August. Currently, about 10% of the project is
complete. This work is removing and replacing some of the lowest rated pavement on GJT. This
work will remove the Foreign Object Debris (FOD) generating surface, and replace it with a new
surface meeting FAA requirements. Work is being accomplished at night after the last
commercial flight and prior to the first commercial flight in the morning. Impacts to the GJT
daily operations are being reduced by only allowing three connector closures at a time, without
allowing adjacent connector closures.

The project is currently behind schedule. Elam has failed three asphalt test sections to date. A
test section meeting FAA requirements must be provided prior to production paving. The
August 20 completion time of this project will most likely not be met.

East Terminal Air Carrier Apron (AIP 54)

Bids were opened for this project on August 3 and Interstate Highway Construction out of
Englewood, Colorado is the apparent low bidder. The existing air carrier apron was constructed
in 1982. The concrete has deteriorated due to alkali-silica reactivity (ASR} which is a significant
source of foreign object debris (FOD). The project is in the Award and Grant approval process.
Construction work is anticipated to start in early spring 2017, Work will begin immediately to
obtain schedules, review materials, and receive project documentation from the contractor once
the contracts, bonding, and insurance are received.

Grand Junction Regional Airport 1of 2
Monthly Update August 2016



Runway 11/29 Relocation (Design Only) (AIP 55)

This project will construct a new Runway 11/29 637.5 feet to the north of the existing runway.
This design effort will provide Geotechnical Evaluation, Topographical Survey, coordination
with BLM, and conceptual design of the entire project.

The scope of work is currently under review with FAA. This is the first step toward the
construction project which will take approximately 10-years to complete. The overall project
encompasses a massive coordination, design, and construction effort involving, GJT, Airport
Users, several levels of the FAA lines of business, contractors, and Armstrong. Armstrong is
very appreciative to have the opportunity to be participate in this project.

Once the scope of work is determined fees will be calculated and GJT will perform the
independent fee estimate concurrently.

Department of Energy Calibration Pad Maintenance {DOE Funding Only)

This project is completely funded by the DOE. This work will include cold milling of the existing
concrete calibration pads utilized by the DOE on the leased area. As part of the work effort
DOE will fund a mill and overlay of the asphalt pavement adjacent to the pads. The project is
currently in the scoping phase between Armstrong and the DOE’s contractor. Work is
anticipated to begin in June 2017. Armstrong will coordinate all work with Airport staff and
facilitate FAA involvement as required.

Additional Notes

Special thanks to Ben Johnson, Brian Harrison, Chance Ballegeer, Ted Balbier, and the night
operations crew for their extra work. Extra coordination was provided by Airport staff to obtain
Security Badges, complete NOTAMs, and provide detailed insight to the various functions of the
Airport. The staff has been a great resource to GJT with their professional approach to provide
quality work as well as continue safe and secure operations of the airport.

Grand Junction Regional Airport 20f2
Menthly Update August 2016



Grant Nao.
3-08-0027-052-2015

3-08-0027-052-2015
3-08-0027-052-2015

3-08-0027-0654-2016

3-08-0027-055-2016
N/A
N/A
NfA

T.0.

)

Ijx

g
GRAND JUNCTION

REGIONAL AIRPORT

Status of Engineering Services

As of August 11,2016
Project Name Current Status
TW Mill & Overlay Construction
Seal Coat and Remark Construction
RWa1/2gand TW A Complete
WindCone Construction
and Edge Lighting Complete
East Terminal Air Carrier Apron ;
Reconstruction (Construct'i)on) Bid Opened
Replace Runway 13/25 {Design Only) Draft Scope
Off Airport Property Maps Draft
Lease Parcel Map Draft
GA Development Area In-Process

Completed Items

Completion Next Milestone
August 2016 Complete Construction
August 2016 Close Out
August 2016 Close Out

2016 Grant Offer and Award
August 2016 Final Scope and IFE

Final Proofs for Printing
Final Procfs for Printing
Draft Scope of Work

Grant No. Project Name Current Status Completion Next Milestone
Draft
3-08-0027-053-2015 F RW 11/2g9 Mods to Standards Analysis Complete Complete Awaiting FAA comments
August 4h

NA C Ground Radar Bidding Complete April 2015

N/A B Land Release Approval/Exhibit A Complete 1231125

NfA A RW Geotech Analysis Complete August 2014

Terminal Air Carrier Apron
3-08-0027-053-2015 E Reconstruction Complete July 2016
{Design Only)
N/A G GRSS Complete Spring 2016 Phase 2
1ofa

Il ARMSTRONG



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority

Agenda Item Summary

TOPIC:

PURPOSE:

RECOMMENDATION:

LAST ACTION:
DISCUSSION:

FISCAL IMPACT:
ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF CONTACT:

Pre-security food location

Information X Guidance O Decision [

Staff recommends the Board allow staff to enter into negotiations with
Tailwinds (current food/beverage concessionaire) to consider an amendment
to their current agreement with the Authority, for the use of the second floor
meet & greet area (the current board conference room) to be used for a
food/bar & retail service on the pre-security side of the terminal.

None

As part of the Request For Proposal (RFP) which resulted with Tailwind’s
being awarded as the food/beverage concessionaire for GJT, the RFP pre-
security food service was offered by Tailwind in their submittal. At the time
staff and Tailwind had not decided on a location or method to permit this
food service offering in the pre-security area of the terminal.

Staff have since been in discussions with Tailwind on optimal locations and
offerings of service. One idea presented by Tailwind was to have a
telephone ordering system at the first floor, near the baggage claim, where
the Denver Air passengers typically gather before the flight. However,
during this discussion it was proposed to have a more “permanent” solution
on the second floor.

The proposed location for a more permanent type of food/beverage & retail
service would be the second floor meet & greet area (also currently used as
the board conference room). This would allow a much more expansive
food/beverage & retail selection and provide Tailwind the ability to have a
more professional look and feel to the traveling public.

TBD.
None
Kip Turner, Executive Director

Office: 970.248.8588
Email: kturner@gijairport.com




Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority

Agenda Item Summary

TOPIC:

PURPOSE:

RECOMMENDATION:

LAST ACTION:
DISCUSSION:

FISCAL IMPACT:
ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF CONTACT:

Terminal Renovation

Information X Guidance O Decision [J

None

The attached memorandum from Mead & Hunt is a summary of the
recommendations and cost estimates as part of the Terminal Area Plan
project. These recommendations from Mead & Hunt are described as
Terminal Survival Recommendations.

The cost of the recommendations will be used to request additional debt as
part of the 2007 Bond Refund (Refund). The Refund was approved at the
July board meeting.

TBD.

Mead & Hunt terminal renovation recommendations

Kip Turner, Executive Director
Office: 970.248.8588
Email: kturnerf@gjairport.com



Mead
zrunt

From: Ryan Hayes, Mark McFarland, Mark Sorenson, Scot Whitney (Mead & Hunt) and
David W, Lewis (S.A. Miro)
Date: 27 July 2016

Subject: Terminal Renovation Recommendations and Cost Estimates
GJT/Grand Junction Regional Airport

Memorandum

Overview

Based on the 2016 Update to the BCER Terminal Building Assessment, conducted as part of the on-
going Terminal Area Plan Amendment project, the Airport has requested an estimate of the absolute
minimum level of renovation necessary to make the terminal building safe and functional for at least the
next 10 years. It is important to note that many of the building components and systems have reached or
exceeded their useful life and that very few recommendations from the 2011 BCER Assessment have
been completed in the last 5 years. Consequently, this minimum level of renovation will also be referred
to as the Terminal Survival Recommendations. In other words, without completing these recommended
renovations, the Airport risks losing its ability to process arriving and departing commercial passengers
and thus, risks its survival. The list of survival recommendations and rough order of magnitude (ROM)
construction cost estimates and construction plus soft/contingency costs for each recommendation are as
follows:

Item/Issue ROM Construction Cost ROM +Soft/Con. Costs*
Mechanical
HVAC, total replacement $2,960,000 $4,410,400

Structural Foundation and Building Frame Integrity

Repair beams in lower level and in terminal roof, install

monitering gauges on precast panels, structural foundation,

floor slab & geotechnical investigation $126,000 $187,740

Code Compliancel/Life Safety
Smoke evacuation system for atrium, fire alarm upgrade,

emergency and egress lighting and exit stair enclosures $1,400,000 $2,086,000
Other

Roof, electrical and escalators $1,206,000 $1,796,940
Total $5,651,000 $8,481,080

*Includes 7.5% construction contingency, 15% Ceontractor overhead/profit, 20% soft costs, 5% design contingency



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority

Agenda Item Summary

TOPIC:

PURPOSE:

RECOMMENDATION:

LAST ACTION:
DISCUSSION:

FISCAL IMPACT:
ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF CONTACT:

2013 Project at 800 Eagle Drive

Information X Guidance O Decision O

None

The attached memorandum from Mead & Hunt is a summary of the
recommendations and cost estimates for the future of the 2013 Project
(formerly known as the Administration Building).

The cost of the recommendations will be used to request additional debt as
part of the 2007 Bond Refund (Refund). The Refund was approved at the
July board meeting.

TBD.

Mead & Hunt options and cost estimates

Kip Turner, Executive Director
Office: 970.248.8588
Email: kturner@gjairport.com




Mead
To: Kip Turner | I I u nt

From: Ryan Hayes, Mark McFarland, Mark Sorenson, Laurie Goscha, Scot Whitney, Scott Lind
Date: 19 July 2016
Subject: Administration/ARFF Building Options and Cost Estimates

GJT/Grand Junction Regional Airport

Memorandum

Overview
The purpose of this memo is to provide Mead & Hunt's analysis and update to four potential options for
the partially constructed Administration/ARFF Building at Grand Junction Regional Airport.

Background

Construction was halted on the Administration/ARFF Building in early 2014 at which time the contractor
had been paid approximately 51% of the construction contract. Since this time, the site has been fenced
off and the building has been left exposed to the elements, including two winter seasons. In the fall of
2014, Architectural Alliance Group (AAG) reviewed the condition of the site and facility, assessed the
level of completion of the project, identified potential deficiencies in the work and provided four options for
the facility. Their findings are described in “Report No. 01 - Evaluation and Assessment Report” dated
October 30, 2014 and in “Report No. 02 — Evaluation and Assessment Report” dated November 21, 2014,
Mead & Hunt has reviewed the original construction documents, AAG’s reports, and photos along with a
list of stored materials provided by Grand Junction Regional Airport. As we did not perform a detailed
survey of the work, we have taken AAG's assessment regarding the project's level of completion as
accurate. We have considered the options presented and the condition of the facility as described by
AAG and have used our experience, knowledge, and resources to evaluate each option. Projected costs
include the construction cost escalated to the year noted, design and construction contingencies,
anticipated permits and construction and testing as A/E fees and associated costs and are as follows:

Option 1 — Tear Bown of Building

Spring 2017: $1,064,400

This option includes salvaging the stored materials (stone masonry and roofing) and selling them to the
highest bidder followed by the complete demolition of the partially constructed Administration/ARFF
Building. Concrete and steel may be salvaged for recycling by contractors, reducing the cost of
demolition. Existing utilities would be capped and abandoned below-grade and the site would be
regraded and seeded. With this option, the site could remain or be developed for some other purpose.
AAG estimated the cost of this work to be $661,839. Mead & Hunt agrees with AAG's assessment of this
work and estimates the cost of this option if construction begins in Spring 2017 at $1,064,400.

Option 2 - Temporary Protection

Spring 2017: $33,800

AAG’s Report 01 describes temporary protection measures to include items of work already completed by
GJT staff and the following remaining items: regrading of the site to direct water away from the building
and fastening of the ARFF roof decking to the structure. This option does not enclose the exterior of the
building to protect the concrete slabs or exposed structural steel. After a more in-depth review of the
information provided, Mead & Hunt determined that the building elements which are currently subjected to



winter conditions are those which suffer only minor deterioration due to weather. The existing cracking in
the concrete slabs appear to have been caused by the lack of isolation joints more than weather. While
these slabs are subject to further deterioration due to freeze/thaw, it is already recommended that the
elevated slabs be removed and replaced in options 3 and 4. As such, providing temporary enclosure to
the building does not appear to offer payback to justify the cost of the work and is not included in this
option. With this option, the building remains in its incomplete state, moving the cost to complete the work
further down the road. Mead & Hunt agrees with AAG’s assessment of this work and estimates the cost of
this option if construction begins in Spring 2017 at $33,800.

Option 3 - Finish the Building Exterior as Originally Planned — Value Engineer Interior

Spring 2018: $5,842,400

This option completes the construction of the exterior walls of the Administration/ARFF Building as
originally planned and designed. As depicted in AAG's Report 02, the Ground Level and Second Level
interior build out would be reduced to create open office space or rental space for other tenants. AAG
estimated savings of $700,000 - $900,000 for this option. Mead & Hunt agrees with AAG's approach,
however, the cost savings appear to be optimistic. It is anticipated that at the conclusion of this option, the
building would be occupied and would therefore include complete mechanical, electrical, plumbing, fire
protection and technology systems. While minor savings may be had on these systems by eliminating
interior walls, the primary savings will be the cost of the removed interior walls, doors, and finish items.
Countering the savings are costs associated with removing and replacing the existing damaged floor
slabs, retaining another A/E to modify the drawings, rebidding costs and the contractor's remobilization
costs. As such, Mead & Hunt estimates the cost of this option if construction begins in Spring 2018 at
$5,842,400. This option results in an occupiable building which could be leased to another entity
producing revenue for the airport. In addition, this option provides space for the Administration to occupy
should a terminal project come to fruition.

Option 4 ~ Finish the Building as Originally Planned and Designed

Fall 2017: $6,410,500

This option completes the construction of the entire Administration/ARFF Building as originally planned
and designed. It is assumed that the existing stored materials are available and in good condition for use
in the project. It is further assumed that approximately 50% of the existing elevated floor slabs will need to
be removed and replaced. AAG estimated the cost of this option to be between $2,735,129 - $3,555,669.
Mead & Hunt has taken a different approach to evaluating the anticipated cost for this work. We
calculated the remaining labor and material costs from the contractor’s pay application, added re-buyout
for a handful of contractors, anticipated the premium the contractors will charge to rebid partially complete
work and added on the Contractor's anticipated fees. This option does not include any design
contingency as the project is already designed and includes limited A/E fees. Based upon these factors,
Mead & Hunt estimates the cost of this option if construction begins in Fall 2017 at $6,410,500. This
option results in the completion of the administration building for use as originally intended. In addition,
this option provides space for the Administration to occupy should a terminal project come to fruition.



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority

Agenda Item Summary

TOPIC:

PURPOSE:

RECOMMENDATION:

LAST ACTION:

DISCUSSION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

COMMUNICATION
STRATEGY:
ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF CONTACT:

Resolution No. 2016-004: Revised Resolution Conceming
Execution of Documents Pertaining to Bank Accounts

Information Guidance [ Decision

Staff recommends the Board adopt resolution No. 2016-004:
Revised Resolution Concerning Execution of Documents
Pertaining to Bank Accounts.

At the March 2016 Board Meeting, the board adopted resolution
2016-003 which amended the previous banking resolution, added
the Airport Operations Manager.

The banking resolution is amending the March 2016 resolution
adding the Executive Director and removing the Airport Facilities
Manager.

None

None

Resolution No. 2016-004: Revised banking resolution. A
resolution concerning execution of documents pertaining to bank
accounts.

Ty Minnick

Email: tminnick{@gjairport.com

Office: 970-248-8593




Resolution No. 2016-004
Of the
GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY
A Resolution Concerning
Execution of Documents Pertaining to Bank Accounts

WHEREAS, the Board of Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority (“the Board™) desires to
authorize the deposit of Authority funds, and funds due to the Authority, into Authority accounts in
eligible financial institutions in Mesa County which have been designated by the Board as meeting the
requirements for deposit of Authority monies under appropriate federal and Colorado laws; and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to authorize the Board Chairman, Executive Director, Airport
Operations Manager or Finance Manager to transfer funds between Authority accounts within the same
Authority Board-designated financial institution; and

WHEREAS, The Board desires to authorize the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director or
Airport Operations Manager as designated below, to execute with only one (1) signature any and all
(A) bank documents, checks and other instruments of withdrawal in the sum of less than $2,000,
and (B) any payroll and payroli related expenditures, including but is not limited to, payments for
tax withholding, payments for retirement and 401(k) contributions and garnishments and sales tax:

Steve Wood Chairman

Paul Nelson Vice Chairman

Kip Turner Executive Director

Ben Johnson Airport Operations Manager

Provided, however, that checks or other instruments of withdrawal (ether than payroll and payroll
related expenditures including but not limited to payments for tax withholding, payments for
retirement and 401(k) contributions, and garnishments and sales tax) in an amount equal to or
greater than $2,000 shall have two (2) such signatories, as follows:

» Chairman; AND/OR

®*  Vice Chairman; AND

= Executive Director OR

* Airport Operations Manager

AND,

WHEREAS, The Board desires to require three (3) signatories, as follows, to execute any
promissory note or other evidence of indebtedness at any financial institution:

s Chairman or Vice Chairman; AND
= Executive Director; AND
®  QOne (1) additional Board Commissioner

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED that the Board authorizes the deposit of Authority
funds, and funds due to the Authority, into an Authority account in a eligible financial institution in Mesa
County which has been designated by the Board as meeting the requirements for deposit of public monies
under appropriate federal and Colorado laws; and



IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board authorizes the Board Chairman, Executive
Director, Airport Operations Manager, or Finance Manager to transfer funds between Authority accounts
within the same Authority Board-designated financial institution; and

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board authorizes the Chairman, Vice Chairman,
Executive Director or Airport Operations Manager to execute with one (1) signature any and all (A)
bank documents, checks and other instruments of withdrawal in the sum of less than $2,000, and
(B) all payroll and payroll related expenditures, including but not limited to, payments for tax
withholding, payments for retirement and 401(k) contributions, and garnishments and sales tax:

Steve Wood Chairman

Paul Nelson Vice Chairman

Kip Turner Executive Director

Ben Johnson Airport Operations Manager

Provided, however, that checks or other instruments of withdrawal (other than payroll and payroll
related expenditures, including but not limited to payments for tax withholding, payments for
retirement and 401(k) contributions, garnishments and sales tax) in an amount equal to or greater
than $2,000 shall require two (2) such signatures as follows:

= Chairman; AND/OR

*  Vice Chairman; AND

=« Executive Director; OR

= Ajrport Operations Manager
AND,

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board requires three (3) signatures, as follows, to execute any
promissory note or other evidence of indebtedness at any financial institution:

®  Chairman or Vice Chairman; AND
s Executive Director; AND
®  One (1) additional Board Commissioner



PASSED AND ADOPTED this day of , 2016.

Victoria Villa, Clerk Chairman
Verification

, first duly sworn, deposes and states that he has read the foregoing Resolution and
that the same is true and correct to the best of his knowledge and belief.

Chairman

STATE OF COLORADO ]
PSS
COUNTY OF MESA J

Subscribed and sworn before me this day of , 2016.

Notary Public

My commission expires

Board Members Voting AYE Board Members Voting NAY



Grand Junction Regional
Airport Authority
Agenda Item Summary

TOPIC:

PURPOSE:

RECOMMENDATION:

LAST ACTION:

DISCUSSION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

COMMUNICATION
STRATEGY:

ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF CONTACT:

Resolution No. 2016-005: Appointment of a Budget Officer

Information J Guidance O Decision X

Staff recommends the Board appoint the Finance and Accounting Manager to be the
budget officer for the 2017 budget.

In August 2015 the Board appointed the “Finance and Accounting Manager” to be
the budget officer.

Colorado Statutes/Colorado Revised Statutes /TITLE 29 GOVERNMENT -
LOCAL/GENERAL PROVISIONS/ARTICLE | BUDGET AND SERVICES/PART
1 LOCAL GOVERNMENT BUDGET LAW OF COLORADQ/29-1-104. By whom
budget prepared.

29-1-104. By whom budget prepared.

The goveming body of each local government shall designate or appoint a
person to prepare the budget and submit the same to the governing body.

The budget officer is responsible for submitting the proposed budget to the board and
to publish the Notice of Budget.

None,
To be determined.

1. Resolution No. 2016-005

Ty Minnick

Email: tminnick{@gijairport.com
Office: 970-248-8593



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority
Resolution No. 2016-005: Appointment of a Budget Officer

WHEREAS, the Local Government Budget Law of Colorado, §§ 29-1-101, et seq.,
C.R.S,, requires the Board to hold a public hearing on proposed budgets and amendments
Thereto, to adopt budgets, and to file copies of the budgets and amendments thereto; and

WHEREAS, the Grand Junction Regional Airport Board of Commissioners desires to appoint an
officer for the Airport to who shall be designated as the budget officer required to prepare and submit to
the Board a proposed annual budget by October 15, pursuant to §§ 29-1-104 and 29-1-105(3)(d), C.R.S.;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GJIRAA BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
THAT:

1. The Board designates , to serve as the budget officer, and to submit a
proposed budget to the Board by October 15, and, in cooperation with legal counsel, to schedule a
public hearing on the proposed budget; to prepare a final budget, budget resolutions and
amendments to the budget, if necessary; and to file the approved budgets and amendments thereto
with the proper governmental agencies in accordance with the Local Government Budget Law of
Colorado.

The effective date of this Resolution is the date passed and approved below.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16" day of August, 2016.

Victoria Villa, Clerk Steve Wood, Chairman
Verification

first duly sworn deposes and states that he has read the foregoing Resolution and
that the same is true and correct to the best of his knowledge and belief.

STATE OF COLORADO ]
b SS
COUNTY OF MESA J

Subscribed and sworn before me this day of , 2016.

Notary Public

My commission expires

Board Members Voting AYE Board Members Voting NAY



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority

Agenda Item Summary

TOPIC:
PURPOSE:

RECOMMENDATION:

LAST ACTION:
DISCUSSION:

FISCAL IMPACT:
COMMUNICATION
STRATEGY:
ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF CONTACT:

Mesa County Federal Mineral Lease District Grant Application/Resolution

Information O Guidance Decision &

Staff recommends the Board pass Resolution 2016-006, supporting an
application for a Mini Grant not to exceed $50,000 to the Mesa County
Federal Mineral Lease District (MCFMLD)

None

The MCFMLD has opened its Fall 2016 grant cycle with approximately
$1.2 Million dollars available for grants. Staff has identified a suitable
project and is preparing the grant application for a Mini Grant. Mini Grants
are capped at $50,000 and require no local matching funds.

The project would add recommended safety and security upgrades to the
passenger terminal building.

In 2014, a Department of Homeland Security, Visible Intermodal Prevention
and Response {VIPR) Team performed a vulnerability assessment at the
Airport and identified some measures the Airport could take to increase the
security of the Airport. Among those recommendations were adding
surveillance cameras to the terminal and placing vehicle barriers in front of
the terminal.

Staff is still working out details and costs of the camera systems given the
current bandwidth constraints of the Airport’s intranet. Adding cameras may
require network upgrades as well. Staff is working to have a project cost
breakdown by the Board Meeting.

Staff is proposing to submit a grant application for a Mini-Grant for up to
$50,000 to cover these projects.

The application requires the Board to pass a resolution in support of the
application.
$50,000
N/A
1. Resolution 2016-006
Ben Johnson

bjohnson{@gjairport.com
Office: 970-248-8596




Resolution 2016-006

Grand Junction Regional Airport
Resolution No. 2016-006: Federal Mineral Lease District Grant Application

Resolution Supporting the Grant Application for a Planning Grant from the
Mesa County Federal Mineral Lease District for a
Passenger Terminal Safety and Security Upgrades

WHEREAS, the Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority (“GJIRAA™) is a political
subdivision of the State of Colorado, and therefore an eligible applicant for a grant awarded by
the Mesa County Federal Mineral Lease District (“MCFMLD”); and

WHEREAS, GJIRAA desires to submit a Grant Application for a planning grant
requesting a total award not to exceed $50,000; and

WHEREAS, GIRAA supports the completion of the project if a grant is awarded by the
MCFMLD.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GJRAA BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
(“The Board”) THAT:

1. The above recitals are hereby incorporated as findings by The Board

2. The Board authorizes Kip Turner, Executive Director to sign the grant application

3. The Board strongly supports the Grant Application that will be submitted by GJRAA and

has appropriated matching funds for a grant with Mesa County Federal Mineral Lease

District.

If the grant is awarded, The Board strongly supports the completion of the project.

The Board of GIRAA authorizes the expenditure of funds necessary to meet the terms

and obligations of any grant awarded pursuant to a Grant Agreement with the MCFMLD,

6. If a grant is awarded, the Board hereby authorizes Steve Wood, Chairman, to sign a Grant
Agreement with the MCFMLD

S

The effective date of this Resolution is the date passed and approved below.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16 day of August, 2016.

Victoria Villa, Clerk Chairman

Verification

first duly sworn, deposes and states that he has read the foregoing
Resolution and that the same is true and correct to the best of his knowledge and belief.

b

STATE OF COLORADO |



COUNTY OF MESA J

Subscribed and swom before me this

Notary Public

My commission expires

Resolution 2016-006

day of , 2016.

Board Members Voting AYE

Board Members Voting NAY



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority

Agenda Item Summary
TOPIC:

PURPOSE:

RECOMMENDATION:

LAST ACTION:

DISCUSSION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

ATTACHMENTS:

AIP 54 Grant Offer and Co-Sponsorship Agreements

Information O Guidance Decision X

Staff recommends the Board authorize the Chairman to execute the
following:

1. Grant Agreement 3-08-0027-054-2016
2. City of Grand Junction Co-Sponsorship Agreement
3. Mesa County Co-Sponsorship Agreement

The Board approved the airports AIP grant application for this
project on November 17, 2015.

Task Order J was approved at the March 15, 2016 Regular Board
Meeting for Armstrong Consultants to begin work on this project.

The FAA has issued the grant for the 2016 AIP project to reconstruct
the Terminal Air Carrier Apron- Phase I.

Mesa County and the City of Grand Junction are required by the
FAA to be Co-Sponsors with the Airport on all AIP grants. On the
following dates, staff will present the Grant Offers and Agreements
to the City and the County and obtain necessary approvals to execute
the Agreements.

e August 22, 2016 — County Commission
e August 17,2016 ~ City of Grand Junction

AIP 54 Terminal Air Carrier Apron Reconstruction — Phase I

Federal AIP Grant (Entitlement Funds) - $4,222,273.00
State Match - $125,000.00
Local Match - $344,141.50

Total- $4,691,414.50

1. AIP Grant Agreement AIP 54
2. Co-Sponsorship Agreement — Mesa County
3. Co-Sponsorship Agreement — City of Grand Junction



STAFF CONTACT: Kip Turner
kturner@gjairport.com
Office: 970-248-8588



Q

U.S. Department Northwest Mountain Region Denver Airports District Office
of Transportation Colorado - Idaho - Montana - Oregon - Utah 26805 E. 68th Ave., Suite 224
Federal Aviation Washington - Wyoming Denver, CO 80249

Administration

[Date]

The Honorable Phyllis Norris, Mayor
City of Grand Junction

250 North Fifth Street

Grand Junction, Colorado 81501

Ms. Rose Pugliese, Chair

Board of Mesa County Commissioners
544 Rood Avenue

Grand Junction, Colorado 81501

Mr. Steve Wood, Chairman

Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority
800 Eagle Drive

Grand Junction, Colorado 81506

Dear Mayor Norris, Commissioner Pugliese and Mr. Wood:

We are enclosing 4 copies of the Grant Offer for Airport Improvement Program (AIP) Project No. 3-08-
0027-054-2016 at the Grand Junction Regional Airport. Please read this letter and the Grant Offer
carefully.

To properly enter into this agreement, you must do the following:

* The governing body must provide authority to execute the grant to the individual signing the
grant; i.e. the sponsor’s authorized representative.

* The sponsor’s authorized representative must execute the grant, followed by the attorney’s
certification, no later than [Grant Expiration Date], in order for the grant to be valid.

* | The Sponsor’s attorney must sign and date the grant agreement after the Sponsor.
* You may not make any modification to the text, terms or conditions of the grant offer.

* We ask that you return one executed copy of the Grant Offer. Please keep the other copies of the
grant for your records.

Subject to the requirements in 2 CFR §200.305, each payment request for reimbursement under this grant
must be made electronically via the Delphi eInvoicing System. Please see the attached Grant Agreement
for more information regarding the use of this System.

Please note Grant Condition No. 6 requires you to complete the project without undue delay. To ensure

proper stewardship of Federal funds, you are expected to submit payment requests for reimbursement
of allowable incurred project expenses in accordance with project progress. Should you fail to make

draws on a regular basis, your grant may be placed in “inactive” status which will impact future grant
offers.

Until the grant is completed and closed, you are responsible for submitting formal reports as follows:



* A signed/dated SF-270 (non-construction projects) or SF-271 or equivalent (construction
projects) and SF-425 annually, due 90 days after the end of each federal fiscal year in which this
grant is open {due December 31 of each year this grant is open); and

* Performance Reports are due within 30 days of the end of a reporting period as follows:
1. Non-construction project: Due annually at end of the Federal fiscal year.

2. Construction project: Submit FAA form 5370-1, Construction Progress and Inspection
Report at the end of each fiscal quarter.

Once the project is completed and all costs are determined, we ask that you close the project without
undue delay and submit the final closeout report documentation as required by FAA’s Denver Airports
District Office.

As a condition of receiving Federal assistance under this award, you must comply with audit requirements
as established under 2 CFR part 200. Subpart F requires non-Federal entities that expend $750,000 or
more in Federal awards to conduct a single or program specific audit for that year. Note that this includes
Federal expenditures made under other Federal-assistance programs. Please take appropriate and
necessary action to assure your organization will comply with applicable audit requirements and
standards. A copy of a "Single Audit Certification Form” is enclosed. Please complete and return a
copy to our office with the executed Grant Agreement. Please make a copy for your files.

Marc Miller is the assigned program manager for this grant and is readily available to assist you and your
designated representative with the requirements stated herein. If you should have any questions, please
contact Marc at (303) 342-1282,

We sincerely value your cooperation in these efforts and look forward to working with you to complete
this important project.

Sincerely,

John P. Bauer
Manager, Denver Airports District Office

Enclosures



3-08-0027-054-2016

A

U.5. Department
of Transportation

Federal Aviation
Administration

GRANT AGREEMENT
PART | — OFFER

Date of Offer {Enter Grant Offer Date)
Airport/Planning Area Grand Junction Regional Airport
AIP Grant Number 3-08-0027-054-2016 (Contract No. DOT-FA16NM-10XX)
DUNS Number 156135394
10: County of Mesa, Colorado; City of Grand Junction, Calorado; and the Grand Junction Regional Airport

: Authority
{herein called the “Sponsor”] {For Co-Sponsars, list all Co-Sponsor names. The word “Sponsor” in this Grant Agreement also applies to a
Ca-Sponsor.)

FROM: The United States of America {acting through the Federal Aviation Administration, herein called the
MFAA.M)

WHEREAS, the Sponsor has submitted to the FAA a Project Application dated November 30, 2015, for a grant of Federal
funds for a project at or associated with the Grand Junction Regional Airport, which is included as part of this Grant
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the FAA has approved a project for the Grand Junction Regional Airport {herein called the “Project”)
consisting of the following:

Rehabilitate East Terminal Air Carrier Apron {Construction)

which Is more fully described in the Project Application.

NOW THEREFORE, according to the applicable provisions of the former Federal Aviation Act of 1958, as amended and
recodified, 49 U.S.C. 40101, et seq., and the former Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982 (AAJA}, as amended
and recodified, 49 U.S.C. 47101, et seq., (herein the AAIA grant statute is referred to as “the Act”), the representations
contained in the Project Application, and in consideration of (a) the Sponsor's adoption and ratification of the Grant
Assurances dated March 2014, and the Sponsor’s acceptance of this Offer, and (b) the benefits to accrue to the United
States and the public from the accomplishment of the Project and compliance with the Grant Assurances and conditions
as herein provided,

THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE UNITED STATES, HEREBY OFFERS AND
AGREES to pay 90.00 percent of the allowable costs incurred accomplishing the Project as the United States share of the
Project.

1]



3-08-0027-054-2016
This Offer is made on and SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

CONDITIONS

1. Maximum Obligation. The maximum obligation of the United States payable under this Offer is S[Enter Grant
Amount].
The following amounts represent a breakdown of the maximum obligation for the purpose of establishing
allowable amounts for any future grant amendment, which may increase the foregoing maximum obligation of the
United States under the provisions of 45 U.5.C. § 47108(b):
$0 for planning

S[Enter Airport Development or Noise Program Amount] for airport development or noise program
implementation

S0 for land acquisition.

2.  Period of Performance. The period of performance begins on the date the Sponsor formally accepts this
agreement. Unless explicitly stated otherwise in an amendment from the FAA, the end date of the project period
of performance is 4 years (1,460 calendar days) from the date of formal grant acceptance by the Sponsor.

The Sponsor may only charge allowable costs for cbligations incurred prior to the end date of the period of
performance {2 CFR § 200.309). Unless the FAA authorizes a written extension, the sponsor must submit all
project closeout documentation and liquidate {pay off) all obligations incurred under this award no later than 90
calendar days after the end date of the period of performance (2 CFR § 200.343).

The period of performance end date does not relieve or reduce Sponsor obligations and assurances that extend
beyond the closeout of a grant agreement.

3. Ineligible or Unallowable Costs. The Sponsor must not include any costs in the project that the FAA has
determined to be ineligible or unallowable.

4.  Indirect Costs — Sponsor. Sponsor may charge indirect costs under this award by applying the indirect cost rate
identified in the project application and as accepted by the FAA to allowable costs for Sponsor direct salaries and
wages.

5.  Determining the Final Federal Share of Costs. The United States’ share of allowable project costs will be made in
accordance with the regulations, policies and procedures of the Secretary. Final determination of the United
States’ share will be based upon the final audit of the total amount of allowable project costs and settlement will
be made for any upward or downward adjustments to the Federal share of costs.

6. Completing the Project Without Delay and in Conformance with Requirements. The Sponsor must carry out and
complete the project without undue delays and in accordance with this agreement, and the regulations, policies
and procedures of the Secretary. The Sponsor also agrees to comply with the assurances which are part of this
agreement.

7.  Amendments or Withdrawals before Grant Acceptance. The FAA reserves the right to amend or withdraw this
offer at any time prior to its acceptance by the Sponsor.

8.  Offer Expiration Date. This offer will expire and the United States will not be obligated to pay any part of the costs
of the project unless this offer has been accepted by the Sponsor on or before [Enter Date When Offer Expires), or
such subsequent date as may be prescribed in writing by the FAA.

9. Improper Use of Federal Funds. The Sponsor must take all steps, including litigation if necessary, to recover
Federal funds spent fraudulently, wastefully, or in violation of Federal antitrust statutes, or misused in any other
manner in any project upon which Federal funds have been expended. For the purposes of this grant agreement,
the term “Federal funds” means funds however used or dispersed by the Sponsor that were originally paid
pursuant to this or any other Federal grant agreement. The Sponsor must obtain the approval of the Secretary as
to any determination of the amount of the Federal share of such funds. The Sponsor must return the recovered

2|



10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

3-08-0027-054-2016

Federal share, including funds recovered by settiement, order, or judgment, to the Secretary. The Sponsor must
furnish to the Secretary, upon request, all documents and records pertaining to the determination of the amount
of the Federal share or to any settlement, litigation, negotiation, or other efforts taken to recover such funds. All
settlements or other final positions of the Sponsor, in court or otherwise, involving the recovery of such Federal
share require advance approval by the Secretary.

United States Not Liable for Damage or Injury. The United States is not responsible or liable for damage to
property or injury to persons which may arise from, or be incident to, compliance with this grant agreement.

System for Award Management (SAM) Registration And Universal Identifier.

A. Requirement for System for Award Management {SAM):  Unless the Sponsor is exempted from this
requirement under 2 CFR 25.110, the Sponsor must maintain the currency of its information in the SAM until
the Sponsor submits the final financial report required under this grant, or receives the final payment,
whichever is later. This requires that the Sponsar review and update the information at least annually after
the initial registration and more frequently if required by changes in information or another award term.
Additional information about registration procedures may be found at the SAM website (currently at

http://www.sam.gov).
B. Requirement for Data Universal Numbering System {DUNS) Numbers

1. The Sponsor must notify potential subrecipient that it cannot receive a contract unless it has provided its
DUNS number to the Sponsor. A subrecipient means a consultant, contractor, or other entity that enters
into an agreement with the Sponsor to provide services or other work to further this project, and is
accountable to the Sponsor for the use of the Federal funds provided by the agreement, which may be
provided through any legal agreement, including a contract.

2. The Sponsor may not make an award to a subrecipient unless the subrecipient has provided its DUNS
number to the Sponsor.

3. Data Universal Numbering System: DUNS number means the nine-digit number established and assigned
by Dun and Bradstreet, Inc. {D & B} to uniquely identify business entities. A DUNS number may be
obtained from D & B by telephone {currently 866-606-8220) or the Internet (currently at

http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform).
Electronic Grant Payment(s). Unless otherwise directed by the FAA, the Sponsor must make each payment
request under this agreement electronically via the Delphi elnvoicing System for Department of Transportation
{DOT) Financial Assistance Awardees.
Informal Letter Amendment of AIP Projects. If, during the life of the project, the FAA determines that the
maximum grant obligation of the United States exceeds the expected needs of the Sponsor by $25,000 or five
percent (5%), whichever is greater, the FAA can issue a letter amendment to the Sponsor unilaterally reducing the
maximum obligation.
The FAA can also issue a letter to the Sponsor increasing the maximum obligation if there is an averrun in the total
actual eligible and allowable project costs to cover the amount of the overrun provided it will not exceed the
statutory limitations for grant amendments. The FAA's authority to increase the maximum obligation does not
apply to the “planning” component of Condition No. 1.
The FAA can also issue an informal letter amendment that modifies the grant description to correct administrative
errors or to delete work items if the FAA finds it advantageous and in the best interests of the United States.

An informal letter amendment has the same force and effect as a formal grant amendment.

Air and Water Quality. The Sponsor is required to comply with all applicable air and water quality standards for all
projects in this grant. If the Sponsor fails to comply with this requirement, the FAA may suspend, cancel, or
terminate this grant.

Financial Reporting and Payment Requirements. The Sponsor will comply with all federal financial reporting
requirements and payment requirements, including submittal of timely and accurate reports.

3|



16,

17.

18.

19,

20.

21,

3-08-0027-054-2016

Buy American. Unless otherwise approved in advance by the FAA, the Sponsor will not acquire or permit any
contractor or subcontractor to acquire any steel or manufactured products produced outside the United States to
be used for any project for which funds are provided under this grant. The Sponsor will include a provision
implementing Buy American in every contract.

Maximum Obligation increase for Primary Airports. In accordance with 49 U.5.C. § 47108(b), as amended, the
maximum obligation of the United States, as stated in Condition No. 1 of this Grant Offer:

A. may not be increased for a planning project;
B. may be increased by not more than 15 percent for development projects;
C. may be increased by not more than 15 percent for a land project.

Audits for Public Sponsors. The Sponsor must provide for a Single Audit in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200. The
Sponsor must submit the Single Audit reporting package to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse on the Federal Audit

Clearinghouse’s Internet Data Entry System at http://harvester.census.gov/facweb/. The Sponsor must also
provide one copy of the completed 2 CFR Part 200 audit to the Airports District Office,

Suspension or Debarment. When entering into a “covered transaction” as defined by 2 CFR § 180.200, the

Sponsor must:

A, Verify the non-federal entity is eligible to participate in this Federal program by:

1.  Checking the excluded parties list system (EPLS) as maintained within the System for Award
Management {SAM) to determine if non-federal entity is excluded or disqualified; or

2. Collecting a certification statement from the non-federal entity attesting they are not excluded or
disqualified from participating; or

3.  Adding a clause ar condition to covered transactions attesting individual or firm are not excluded or
disqualified from participating.

B.  Reguire prime caontractors to comply with 2 CFR § 180.330 when entering into lower-tier transactions (e.g.

Sub-contracts).

C. Immediately disclose to the FAA whenever the Sponsor: {1} learns they have entered into a covered

transaction with an ineligible entity or {2) suspends or debars a contractor, person, or entity.

Ban on Texting When Driving.

A. In accordance with Executive Order 13513, Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving,
October 1, 2009, and DOT Order 3902.10, Text Messaging While Driving, December 30, 2009, the Sponsor is
encouraged to:

1. Adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers including
policies to ban text messaging while driving when performing any work for, or on behalf of, the Federal
government, including work relating to a grant or subgrant.

2. Conduct workplace safety initiatives in a manner commensurate with the size of the business, such as:

a. Establishment of new rules and programs or re-evaluation of existing programs to prohibit text
messaging while driving; and

b. Education, awareness, and other outreach to employees about the safety risks associated with texting
while driving.

B. The Sponsor must insert the substance of this clause on banning texting when driving in all subgrants,
contracts and subcontracts

Trafficking in Persons.

A. Prohibitions: The prohibitions against trafficking in persons {Prohibitions) that apply to any entity other than a
State, local government, Indian tribe, ar foreign public entity. This includes private Sponsors, public Sponsor
employees, and subrecipients of private or public Sponsors (private entity). Prohibitions include:

1. Engaging in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the agreement is in effect;
4]




22,

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

3-08-0027-054-2016
2. Procuring a commercial sex act during the period of time that the agreement is in effect; or

3. Using forced labor in the performance of the agreement, including subcontracts or subagreements under
the agreement.
B. In addition to all other remedies for naoncompliance that are available to the FAA, Section 106(g) of the
Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA), as amended (22 U.S.C. 7104{g)), allows the FAA to
unilaterally terminate this agreement, without penalty, if a private entity —

1. Is determined to have violated the Prohibitions; or
2. Has an employee who the FAA determines has viclated the Prohibitions through conduct that is either—
a. Associated with performance under this agreement; or

b. Imputed to the Sponsor or subrecipient using 2 CFR part 180, “OMB Guidelines to Agencies on
Government-wide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement),” as implemented by the FAA at 2
CFR part 1200.

Exhibit “A” Property Map. The Exhibit “A” Property Map date November 2009, is incorporated herein by
reference or is submitted with the project application and made part of this grant agreement.

Co-Sponsor. The Co-Sponsors understand and agree that they jointly and severally adopt and ratify the
representations and assurances contained therein and that the word "Sponsor" as used in the application and
other assurances is deemed to include all co-sponsors.

Co-Sponsorship Agreement: The FAA in tendering this Grant Offer on behalf of the United States recognizes the
existence of a Co-Sponsorship Agreement between the County of Mesa, Colorado and the City of Grand Junction,
Colorado. By acceptance of the Grant Offer, said parties assume their respective obligations as set forth in said
Co-Sponsorship Agreement. It is understood and agreed that said Agreement will not be amended, modified, or
terminated without prior written approval of the FAA.

Current FAA Advisory Circulars for AIP Projects: The sponsor will carry out the project in accordance with
policies, standards, and specifications approved by the Secretary including but not limited to the advisory circulars
listed in the Current FAA Advisory Circulars Required For Use In AlP Funded and PFC Approved Projects, dated
December 31, 2015, and included in this grant, and in accordance with applicable state policies, standards, and
specifications approved by the Secretary.

Assurances: The Sponsor agrees to comply with the Assurances attached to this offer, which replaces the

assurances that accompanied the Application for Federal'Assistance.

Pavement Maintenance Management Program: The Sponsor agrees that it will implement an effective airport

pavement maintenance management program as required by Grant Assurance Pavement Preventive

Management. The Sponsor agrees that it will use the program for the useful life of any pavement constructed,

reconstructed, or repaired with federal financial assistance at the airport. The Sponsor further agrees that the

program will

1) Follow FAA Advisory Circular 150/5380-6, “Guidelines and Procedures for Maintenance of Airport Pavements,”
for specific guidelines and procedures for maintaining airport pavements, establishing an effective
maintenance program, specific types of distress and its probable cause, inspection guidelines, and
recommended methods of repair;

2) Detail the procedures to be followed to assure that proper pavement maintenance, both preventive and
repair, is performed;
3) Include a Pavement Inventory, Inspection Schedule, Record Keeping, Information Retrieval, and Reference,
meeting the following requirements:
a. Pavement Inventory. The following must be depicted in an appropriate form and level of detail:
1. location of all runways, taxiways, and aprons;
2. dimensions;

51



28.

4)

5)

3-08-0027-054-2016
3. type of pavement, and;
4. year of construction or most recent major rehabilitation.
b. Inspection Schedule.

1. Detailed Inspection. A detailed inspection must be performed at least once a year. If a history of
recorded pavement deterioration is available, i.e., Pavement Condition Index {PCl) survey as set forth
in the Advisory Circular 150/5380-6, the frequency of inspections may be extended to three years.

2. Drive-By Inspection. A drive-by inspection must be performed a minimum of once per month to detect
unexpected changes in the pavement condition. For drive-by inspections, the date of inspection and
any maintenance performed must be recorded.

Record Keeping. Complete information on the findings of all detailed inspections and on the maintenance
performed must be recorded and kept on file for a minimum of five years. The type of distress, location, and
remedial action, scheduled or performed, must be documented. The minimum information is:

a. inspection date;

b. location;

c. distress types; and

d. maintenance scheduled or perfarmed.

Information Retrieval System. The Sponsor must be able to retrieve the information and records produced by
the pavement survey to provide a report to the FAA as may be required.

Projects Which Contain Paving Work in Excess of $500,000: The Sponsor agrees to:

1)

2)

3)

Furnish a construction management program to the FAA prior to the start of construction which details the
measures and procedures to be used to comply with the quality control provisions of the construction
contract, including, but not limited to, all quality control provisions and tests required by the Federal
specifications. The program must include as a minimum:

a. The name of the person representing the Sponsor who has overall responsibility for contract
administration for the project and the authority to take necessary actions to comply with the contract.

b. Names of testing laboratories and consulting engineer firms with quality control responsibilities on the
project, together with a description of the services to be provided.

¢. Procedures for determining that the testing laboratories meet the requirements of the American Society
of Testing and Materials standards on laboratory evaluation referenced in the contract specifications {D
3666, C'1077).

d. Qualifications of engineering supervision and construction inspection personnel.

e. A listing of all tests required by the contract specifications, including the type and frequency of tests to be
taken, the method of sampling, the applicable test standard, and the acceptance criteria or tolerances
permitted for each type of test.

f. Procedures for ensuring that the tests are taken in accordance with the program, that they are
documented daily, and that the proper corrective actions, where necessary, are undertaken.

Submit at completion of the project, a final test and quality assurance report documenting the summary
results of all tests performed; highlighting those tests that indicated failure or that did not meet the
applicable test standard, The report must include the pay reductions applied and the reasons for accepting
any out-of-tolerance material. Submit interim test and quality assurance reports when requested by the FAA.

Failure to pravide a complete report as described in paragraph b, or failure to perform such tests, will, absent
any compelling justification; result in a reduction in Federal participation for costs incurred in connection
with construction of the applicable pavement. Such reduction will be at the discretion of the FAA and will be
based on the type or types of required tests not performed or not documented and will be commensurate

€|



3-08-0027-054-2016

with the proportion of applicable pavement with respect to the total pavement constructed under the grant
agreement.

4) The FAA, at its discretion, reserves the right to conduct independent tests and to reduce grant payments
accordingly if such independent tests determine that sponsor test results are inaccurate.

29. Final Project Documentation: The Sponsor understands and agrees that in accordance with 49 USC 47111, and
the Airport District Office's concurrence, that no payments totaling more than 97.5 percent of United States
Government’s share of the project’s estimated allowable cost may be made before the project is determined to be
satisfactorily completed. Satisfactorily complete means the following: (1) The project results in a complete, usable
unit of work as defined in the grant agreement; and {2) The sponsor submits necessary documents showing that
the project is substantially complete per the contract requirements, or has a plan (that FAA agrees with) that
addresses all elements contained on the punch list.

30. AGIS Requirements: Airports G!S requirements, as specified in Advisory Circular 150/5300-18, apply to the project
included in this grant offer. Final construction as-built information or planning deliverables must be collected
according to these specifications and submitted to the FAA. The submittal must be reviewed and accepted by the
FAA before the grant can be administratively closed.

7]



3-08-0027-054-2016

The Sponsor’s acceptance of this Offer and ratification and adoption of the Project Application incorporated herein shall be
evidenced by execution of this instrument by the Sponsor, as hereinafter provided, and this Offer and Acceptance shall comprise a
Grant Agreement, as provided by the Act, constituting the contractual obligations and rights of the United States and the Sponsor
with respect to the accomplishment of the Project and compliance with the assurances and conditions as provided herein. Such
Grant Agreement shall become effective upon the Sponsor’s acceptance of this Offer.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION

{Signature)
John P. Bauer
{Typed Name)
Manager, Denver Airports District Office
{Title of FAA Official)

PART [l - ACCEPTANCE
The Sponsor does hereby ratify and adopt all assurances, statements, representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements
contained in the Project Application and incorporated materials referred to in the foregoing Offer, and does hereby accept this Offer
and by such acceptance agrees to comply with all of the terms and conditions in this Offer and.in the Project Application.

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.!

Executed this day of B 2016

COUNTY OF MESA, COLORADO
{Nome of Sponsor)

{Signoture of Sponsor’s Authorized Official)
By:

{Printed Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official)
Title:

{Title of Spansor’s Authorized Official)

CERTIFICATE OF SPONSOR’S ATTORNEY
1, , acting as Attorney for the Sponsor da hereby certify:

That in my opinion the Sponsor is empowered to enter into the foregoing Grant Agreement under the laws of the State of Colorado.
Further, | have examined the foregoing Grant Agreement and the actions taken by said Sponsor and Sponsor’s official representative
has been duly authorized and that the exacution thereof is in all respects due and proper and in accordance with the laws of the said
State and the Act. In addition, for grants involving projects to be carried out on property not owned by the Sponsor, there are no
legal impediments that will prevent full performance by the Spansor. Further, it is my opinion that the said Grant Agreement
constitutes a Jegal and binding obligation of the Sponsor in accordance with the terms thereof.

Dated at {location) this day of ; 2016

By

(Signature of Sponsar’s Attornay)

' Knowingly and willfully providing false information to the Federal government is a violation of 18 U.5.C. Section 1001 (False
Statements) and could subject you to fines, imprisonment, or both.
8|



3-08-0027-054-2016
The Sponsor does hereby ratify and adopt all assurances, statements, representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements
contained in the Project Application and incorporated materials referred to in the foregoing Offer, and does hereby accept this Offer
and by such acceptance agrees to comply with all of the terms and conditions in this Offer and in the Project Application.
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.?

Executed this day of b 2016

CITY OF GRAND JUNCITON, COLORADO

{Name of Sponsor)

{Signature of Sponsor’s Authorized Official)
By:

{Printed Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official)
Title:

(Title of Sponsor’s Designated Authorized Official}

CERTIFICATE OF SPONSOR’S ATTORNEY
l, , acting as Attorney for the Sponsor do hereby certify:

That in my opinion the Sponsor is empowered to enter into the foregoing Grant Agreement under the laws of the State of Colorado.
Further, | have examined the foregoing Grant Agreement and the actions taken by said Sponsor and Sponsor’s official representative
has been duly authorized and that the execution thereof is in all respects due and proper and in accordance with the laws of the said
State and the Act. In addition, for grants involving projects to be carried out on property not owned by the Sponsor, there are no
legal impediments that will prevent full performance by the Sponsor. Further, it is my opinion that the said Grant Agreement
constitutes a legal and binding obligation of the Sponsor in accordance with the terms thereof.

Dated at {location} this day of , 2016

By

{Signature of Sponsor’s Attorney}

2 Knowingly and willfully providing false information to the Federal government is a violation of 18 U.5.C. Section 1001 (False
Statements) and could subject you to fines, imprisonment, or both.

9|



3-08-0027-054-2016
The Sponsor does hereby ratify and adopt all assurances, statements, representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements
contained in the Project Application and incorporated materials referred to in the foregoing Offer, and does hereby accept this Offer
and by such acceptance agrees to comply with all of the terms and conditions in this Offer and in the Project Application.
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.?

Executed this day of , 2016

GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

{Name of Sponsor)

{Signature of Sponsor’s Authorized Official}
By:

{Printed Nome of Sponsor’s Authorized Officiol)
Title:

{Title of Sponsor’s Designoted Authorized Officiol)

CERTIFICATE OF SPONSOR’S ATTORNEY
I, , acting as Attorney for the Sponsor do hereby certify:

That in my opinion the Sponsor is empowered to enter into the foregoing Grant Agreement under the laws of the State of Colorado.
Further, | have examined the foregoing Grant Agreement and the actions taken by said Spansor and Sponsor’s official representative
has been duly authorized and that the execution thereof is in all respects due and proper and in accordance with the laws of the said
State and the Act. In addition, for grants involving projects to be carried out on property not owned by the Sponsor, there are no
legal impediments that will prevent full performance by the Sponsor. Further, it is my opinion that the said Grant Agreement
constitutes a legal and binding obligation of the Sponsor in accardance with the terms thereof.

Dated at {location) this day of , 2016

By

{Signature of Sponsor’s Attorney)

3 Knowingly and willfully providing false information to the Federal government is a violation of 18 U.5.C. Section 1001 (False
Statements} and could subject you ta fines, imprisonment, or both.

10|



SUPPLEMENTAL CO-SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT

This Supplemental Co-Sponsorship Agreement is entered into and effective this day
of , 2016, by and between the Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority
(“Airport Authority”), and the City of Grand Junction (City).

RECITALS

A. The Airport Authority is a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, organized
pursuant to Section 41-3-101 et seq., C.R.S. The Airport Authority is a separate and distinct
entity from the City.

B. The Airport Authority is the owner and operator of the Grand Junction Regional
Airport, located in Grand Junction, Colorado (“Airport™).

C. Pursuant to the Title 49, U.S.C., Subtitle VII, Part B, as amended, the Airport
Authority has applied for monies from the Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA”), for the

construction of certain improvements upon the Airport, pursuant to the terms, plans and
specifications set forth in AIP Grant Application No. 3-08-0027-054-2016 (“Project”).

D. The FAA is willing to provide $4,222,273.00 toward the estimated costs of the
Project, provided the City of Grand Junction and Mesa County execute the Grant
Agreement as co-sponsors with the Airport Authority. The FAA is insisting that the
City and County execute the Grant Agreement as co-sponsors for two primary
reasons. First, the City and County have taxing authority, whereas the Airport
Authority does not; accordingly, the FAA is insisting that the City and County
execute the Grant Agreement so that public entities with taxing authority are liable
for the financial commitments required of the Sponsor under the Grant Agreement,
should the Airport Authority not be able to satisfy said financial commitments out of
the net revenues generated by the operation of the Airport. In addition, the City and
County have jurisdiction over the zoning and land use regulations of the real property
surrounding the Airport, whereas the Airport Authority does not enjoy such zoning
and land use regulatory authority. By their execution of the Grant Agreement, the
City and County would be warranting to the FAA that the proposed improvements are
consistent with their respective plans for the development of the area surrounding the
Airport, and that they will take appropriate actions, including the adoption of zoning
laws, to restrict the use of land surrounding the Airport to activities and purposes
compatible with normal Airport operations.

E. The City is willing to execute the Grant Agreement, as a co-sponsor, pursuant to the
FAA’s request, subject to the terms and conditions of this Supplemental Co-
Sponsorship Agreement between the City and Airport Authority.

Therefore, in consideration of the above Recitals and the mutual promises and
representations set forth below, the City and Airport Authority hereby agree as follows:



AGREEMENT

1. By its execution of this Agreement, the City hereby agrees to execute the Grant
Agreement, as a co-sponsor, pursuant to the FAA’s request.

2. In consideration of the City’s execution of the Grant Agreement, as co-sponsor, the
Airport Authority hereby agrees to hold the City, its officers, employees, and agents,
harmless from, and to indemnify the City, its officers, employees, and agents for:

(@) Any and all claims, lawsuits, damages, or liabilities, including reasonable
attorney’s fees and court costs, which at any time may be or are stated, asserted, or made
against the City, its officers, employees, or agents, by the FAA or any other third party
whomsoever, in any way arising out of, or related under the Grant Agreement, or the
prosecution of the Project contemplated by the Grant Agreement, regardiess of whether
said claims are frivolous or groundless, other than claims related to the City’s covenant to
take appropriate action, including the adoption of zoning laws, to restrict the use of land
surrounding the Airport, over which the City has regulatory jurisdiction, to activities and
purposes compatible with normal Airport operations, set forth in paragraph 21 of the
Assurances incorporated by reference into the Grant Agreement (“Assurances™); and

(b) The failure of the Airport Authority, or any of the Airport Authority’s officers,
agents, employees, or contractors, to comply in any respect with any of the requirements,
obligations or duties imposed on the Sponsor by the Grant Agreement, or reasonably
related to or inferred there from, other than the Sponsor’s zoning and land use obligations
under Paragraph 21 of the Assurances, which are the City’s responsibility for lands
surrounding the Airport over which it has regulatory jurisdiction.

3. By its execution of this Agreement, the Airport Authority hereby agrees to comply
with each and every requirement of the Sponsor, set forth in the Grant Agreement, or
reasonably required in connection therewith, other than the zoning and land use
requirements set forth in paragraph 21 of the Assurances, in recognition of the fact
that the Airport Authority does not have the power to effect the zoning and land use
regulations required by said paragraph.

4. By its execution of this Agreement and the Grant Agreement, the City agrees to
comply with the zoning and land use requirements of paragraph 21 of the Assurances,
with respect to all lands surrounding the Airport that are subject to the City’s
regulatory jurisdiction. The City also hereby warrants and represents that, in
accordance with paragraph 6 of the Special Assurances; the Project contemplated by
the Grant Agreement is consistent with present plans of the City for the development
of the area surrounding the Airport.

5. The parties hereby warrant and represent that, by the City’s execution of the Grant
Agreement, as a co-sponsor, pursuant to the FAA’s request, the City is not a co-
owner, agent, partner, joint venture, or representative of the Airport Authority in the
ownership, management or administration of the Airport, and the Airport Authority
1s, and remains, the sole owner of the Airport, and solely responsible for the operation
and management of the Airport.



Done and entered into on the date first set forth above.

GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

By

Kip Turner, Executive Director

CITY OF GRAND JUNCTION

By

Greg Caton, City Manager



SUPPLEMENTAL CO-SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT

This Supplemental Co-Sponsorship Agreement is entered into and effective this
day of , 2016, by and between the Grand Junction Regional
Airport Authority (“Airport Authority”), and Mesa County (“County™).

RECITALS

A. The Airport Authority is a political subdivision of the State of Colorado,
organized pursuant to Section 41-3-101 et seq., C.R.S. The Airport Authority is a
separate and distinct entity from Mesa County.

B. The Airport Authority is the owner and operator of the Grand Junction
Regional Airport, located in Grand Junction, Colorado (“Airport™).

C. Pursuant to the Title 49, U.S.C., Subtitle VII, Part B, as amended, the Airport
Authority has applied for monies from the Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA™), for
the construction of certain improvements upon the Airport, pursuant to the terms, plans
and specifications set forth in AIP Grant Application No. 3-08-0027-054-2016
(“Projects™).

D. The FAA is willing to provide approximately $4,222.273.00 toward the
estimated costs of the Projects, provided the City of Grand Junction and Mesa County
execute the Grant Agreement as co-sponsors with the Airport Authority. The FAA is
insisting that the City and County execute the Grant Agreement as co-sponsors for two
primary reasons. First, the City and County have taxing authority, whereas the Airport
Authority does not; accordingly, the FAA is insisting that the City and County execute
the Grant Agreement so that public entities with taxing authority are liable for the
financial commitments required of the Sponsor under the Grant Agreement, should the
Airport Authority not be able to satisfy said financial commitments out of the net
revenues generated by the operation of the Airport. In addition, the City and County
have jurisdiction over the zoning and land use regulations of the real property
surrounding the Airport, whereas the Airport Authority does not enjoy such zoning and
land use regulatory authority. By their execution of the Grant Agreement, the City and
County would be warranting to the FAA that the proposed improvements are consistent
with their respective plans for the development of the area surrounding the Airport, and
that they will take appropriate actions, including the adoption of zoning laws, to restrict
the use of land surrounding the Airport to activities and purposes compatible with normal
Airport operations.

E. The County is willing to execute the Grant Agreement, as a co-sponsor,
pursuant to the FAA’s request, subject to the terms and conditions of this Supplemental
Co-Sponsorship Agreement between the County and Airport Authority.



Therefore, in consideration of the above Recitals and the mutual promises and
representations set forth below, the County and Airport Authority hereby agree as
follows:

AGREEMENT

1. By its execution of this Agreement, the County hereby agrees to execute the
Grant Agreement, as a co-sponsor, pursuant to the FAA’s request.

2. In consideration of the County’s execution of the Grant Agreement, as co-
sponsor, the Airport Authority hereby agrees to hold the County, its officers, employees,
and agents, harmless from, and to indemnify the County, its officers, employees, and
agents for:

(a) Any and all claims, lawsuits, damages, or liabilities, including
reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs, which at any time may be or are stated,
asserted, or made against the County, its officers, employees, or agents, by the
FAA or any other third party whomsoever, in any way arising out of, or related
under the Grant Agreement, or the prosecution of the Project contemplated by the
Grant Agreement, regardless of whether said claims are frivolous or groundless,
other than claims related to the County’s covenant to take appropriate action,
including the adoption of zoning laws, to restrict the use of land surrounding the
Airport, over which the County has regulatory jurisdiction, to activities and
purposes compatible with normal Airport operations, set forth in paragraph 21 of
the Assurances incorporated by reference into the Grant Agreement
(‘““‘Assurances™); and

(b) The failure of the Airport Authority, or any of the Airport Authority’s
officers, agents, employees, or contractors, to comply in any respect with any of
the requirements, obligations or duties imposed on the Sponsor by the Grant
Agreement, or reasonably related to or inferred therefrom, other than the
Sponsor’s zoning and land use obligations under Paragraph 21 of the Assurances,
which are the County’s responsibility for lands surrounding the Airport over
which it has regulatory jurisdiction.

3. By its execution of this Agreement, the Airport Authority hereby agrees to
comply with each and every requirement of the Sponsor, set forth in the Grant
Agreement, or reasonably required in connection therewith, other than the zoning and
land use requirements set forth in paragraph 21 of the Assurances, in recognition of the
fact that the Airport Authority does not have the power to effect the zoning and land use
regulations required by said paragraph.

4. By its execution of this Agreement and the Grant Agreement, the County
agrees to comply with the zoning and land use requirements of paragraph 21 of the
Assurances, with respect to all lands surrounding the Airport that are subject to the
County’s regulatory jurisdiction. The County also hereby warrants and represents that, in



accordance with paragraph 6 of the Special Assurances, the Project contemplated by the
Grant Agreement is consistent with present plans of the County for the development of
the area surrounding the Airport.

5. The parties hereby warrant and represent that, by the County’s execution of
the Grant Agreement, as a co-sponsor, pursuant to the FAA’s request, the County is not a
co-owner, agent, partner, joint venturer, or representative of the Airport Authority in the
ownership, management or administration of the Airport, and the Airport Authority is,
and remains, the sole owner of the Airport, and solely responsible for the operation and
management of the Airport.

Done and entered into on the date first set forth above.

GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

By

Kip Turner, Executive Director

MESA COUNTY

By

Frank Whidden, County Administrator



Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority

Agenda Item Summary
TOPIC:
PURPOSE:

RECOMMENDATION:

LAST ACTION:
DISCUSSION:

FISCAL IMPACT:
COMMUNICATION

STRATEGY:
ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF CONTACT:

Award of Contract for AIP 54
Information OJ Guidance O Decision &
Staff recommends the Board Authorize the Chairman to execute the Notice

of Award and Contract with Interstate Highway Construction, Inc for the
reconstruction of the Terminal Air Carrier Apron — Phase L.

The Board approved the application for AIP-54 on November 17, 2015.

This project encompasses work to reconstruct the East half of the Terminal
Air Carrier Apron.

Work associated with AIP 54 was published for bid July 2016. Bids were
opened August 3, 2016. Four bids were received.

After careful review it was determined that the low bidder is Interstate
Highway Construction, Inc and their bid in compliance with all [FB terms
and conditions.

The projects will begin Spring 2017 and is scheduled to last for 120 days.
$4,278,834.50

N/A

I. Armstrong Recommendation of Award
2. Notice of Award and Contract

Kip Turner
ktumer@gjairport.com
Office: 970-248-8588




lARMSTRONG

August 9, 2016

Mr. Kip Turner

Grand Junction Regional Airport
800 Eagle Drive

Grand Junction, Colorado 81506

RE: Recommendation of Award - Grand Junction Regional Airport
AIP No. 3-08-0027-054-2016
Commercial Apron Phase 1 Construction

Dear Mr. Tumer,
As you are aware, bids were received for the above mentioned project on August 3, 2016.

A great deal of effort was expended to attract bidders for this project. The project was
advertised in the local paper for three consecutive weeks. The project was also listed in the
advertisements of a local and national plan room. Five Contractors/Sub-Contractors
purchased plans from the Armstrong Consultants, Inc. bidding website. A pre-bid meeting
was held at the airport on July 20, 2016, prior to bid opening to answer questions and show
the project to potential bidders.

Four bids were received. The bids were reviewed for math errors and other items of
responsiveness. The tables below list a general review of bid responsiveness.

Company item Action
Addendum Acknowledged Addenda #1 & #2
. Bid Bond Included for 5%
Igtarstt;tetli-llghrvay Proposal Sheets 1-15 Completed and Signed
olReon Inc. List on Federal No (Checked Federal System for
Debarred Award Management Website B/9/16)
Company Item Action
Addendum Acknowledged Addenda #1 & #2
Bid Bond Included for 5%
Oldcastlfnséw Group, Proposal Sheels 1-15 Completed and Signed
: List on Federal No (Checked Federal System for
Debarred Award Management Website 8/9/1 6)
Company item Action
Addendum Acknowledged Addenda #1 & #2
Bid Bond Included for 5%
Elam Construction Proposal Sheets 1-15 Completed and Signed
List on Federal No (Checked Federal System for
Debarred Award Management Website 8/9/1 6)

Page |1



I Company s Hem B A?tion -_]
Addendum Acknowledged Addenda#1&#2 |
Bid Bond Included for 5%
Concrete Works Proposal Sheels 1-15 Completed and Signed
List on Federal No (Checked Federal System for
Debarred Award Manﬁement Website 819!161

The following table shows the relationship of the bids to the Engineer's estimate:

ENGINEER'S
ESTIMATE

Inc.

Interstate
Highway
Construction,

Oldcastle SW
Group, inc.

Elam
Construction

Concrete
Works

TOTAL $3,249,710.00

$4,278,834.50

$5,799,677.00

$5,137,154.75

34,906,374.50

A bid tabulation is attached to this letter.

The DBE goal for the project is 2.66%. Interstate Highway Construction, Inc, has
committed to meeting this goal. A Letter of Intent has been provided by the Contractor
confirming DBE participation, and is summarized below:

Sub-Contractor Work itemn Anticipated Amount
Cowboy Trucki Trucking $65.000
Hot Shot Supply Material Supply $19,000
. : Manufacture and Supply
Light (j.:p Industne; _ of Mia_tgﬁals $43,600

The budget for AIP 3-08-0027-054-2016 that needs to be developed for the Project includes
federal, state, and local funds as shown below:

AlIP NO. 54
TOTAL FAA CDOoT LOCAL
90% 5% 5%
Administration
Advertising/lFE $5,000.00 $4,500.00 $0.00 $500.00
Engineering
Task Order J $412,580.00 $0.00 30.00 $0.00
Construction
Schedule | | $4,278,834.50 $2,563,417 | $141,856.50 | $141,856,50
Total | $4,696,414.50 | $4,226,773.00 | $125,000.00 $344,641.50

Page |2




We recommend awarding Schedule | lnterstate nghway Cmstmchm lnc for a total of
$4,278,834.50 ncume: he res e :

Sincerely,
ARMSTRONG CONSULTANTS, INC.
<<ORIGINAL SIGNED BY>>
Eric Trinklein, P.E.
enck Bid Tab
DBE Vendor Information
Sam.gov registration summary
ce: Marc Miller, FAA
Scott Storie, CDOT

Page |3 ¥ o



ol irdlio

SAM | System Ror Awand Fonsgersast 1.0

Note ta all Users: This bs a Federal Government computer
System. Use of this System momstihutes mnsent to monitoring at all
tines.

VIEW LISTENS - CYmTY UVETWIEW | SiySIEM 10f AWEra Managemen

LISER NARE PASS\YORD

C = Jicceis |

Eoooliherome?  Forgol Pospond?

Entity Overview

Enty Reglistration Semerary

Rama: INTERSTATE HEGHWAY
Doing Businezs Ast IHE
Business Typa: Busines or
Last Updated By: Karen Sotton
Reglstration Status: Active
Activation Cate: 0/15/2015
Expiration Date: 03/19/2017

Active Exclusion Records? o

1BMv1 PAB20160624-1124
WWwW7

G525 ’Eﬁé:gg

hline lhuuny gom rradreetsl I8 L Mramdmatirnaletalas IRDNS (A NARYA-AS IaY Y Fhal™ Ern VIV Ky S b BNV [0 7024 I IO EYNFAALALNANAmItdva 1"



orxalin LOOran UNINec L ertn CEn FTogram

Vendor Information CLOSE WINDOYY X

Vendor information
Business Name Cowboy Trucking, LLC
Ovwmer Jose Martinez
Address 2558 Gypsum Creek Rd
> Map This Address Gypsum, CO 81637
Phone 970-376-5584
Fax 970-524-0978
Email cowhoyt2004@hotmall.com
Ethnicity Hispanic
Gandet Male
Carlification Information
Cerlifying Agency City and County of Denvar
Cerlification Type DBE - Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
Certified Business Truck Hauling Services
Description
Work Codes
NAICS MAICS Index
COUCPNAICS  Dump trucking {e.g., gravel, sand, iop soil)
484220
COUCPNAICS Gravel hauling, local
484220
COUCPNAICS  Sand hauling, local
484220
COUCPNAICS  Top-soil hauling, local
484220
Customer Support Brint This Page

Copyright © 2016 B2Gnow. All rights reserved.

hitre lierarn dhacvelam crenErnntEadlondor SaorrbB s Natell sen T INe IR TN 3o enki~ NG P IRAC RR24TNAN A VRO N AN TRAS ATRE R AR E941 n



- = faF -]

Vendor Information

LOraraco Unire L eruncaEon rrogram

CLESE WINDGYY

Vendar Information
Business Name Hat Shot Supply Co.
Owner Ms Erin Hartman
Address 5351 Lincoln St
> Map This Addmess Denver, COB021€
Phone 720-352-1869
Email Hotshotsupply@hotmailcom
Ethnicily Caucasian
Gender Female
Certification Information
Certifying Agency City and County of Denver
Cerlification Type DBE - Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
Certified Business Supptier of construction materials: Quickcrete, J-Drains, sealants,
Description dowels, rebar cages, paving baskets, concrete blades, drills, too!
sats, nall stakes, ADA pavers.
Work Codes
NAICS NAICS Index

COUCPNAICS  Caoncrela building products merchant wholesalers

423320

COUCP NAICS  Rooflng malerials (except wood) merchant wholesalers

423330

COUCPNAICS  Handtools (excepl motor vehicle mechanics', machinisks' precision) merchant
423710 wholesalers

COUCPNAICS  Power handiools {(e.g., drills, sanders, saws) merchant wholesalers

COUCPNAICS  Cthar Building Materia! Daalers

423710
444190
Customer Support

Print This Page

Copyright © 2016 B2Grow. All rights reserved.

hitra:lirra on dhasveiem romiErnnt Endfusrsior Saarre hBnhirDatnll oen7¥IN=RIIRTN=rr mal SN CARRIEE7 4™ A4R 1 NRNAN J0TRETRETTRARFC DA MR RT

"



oAl

Vendor Information

LOeOr 800 LUTNRED LerTR RN FTogram

CLCSE WINBCW

Vendor Information
Business Name LIGHTCAP INDUSTRIES, INC., bBA JC Supply & Manufacturing
Owner Ms. Connia Lightcap
Address 1612 S, CUCAMONGA AVENUE,
> Thi ONTARIO, CA 91761
Phone 809-373-1773
Fax 908-373-1785
Email connle@jcsupplyus
Website wwwicsupplv.us
Ethnicly Caucasian
Gender Female
Certification Information
Certifying Agency Colorado Depariment of Transportation
Cerlification Type DBE - Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
Cerfified Business Manufacturer of dowel baskets
Description
Work Codes
NAICS NAICS Index
COUCPNAICS  All Other Miscellangous Manutacturing
335999
Qﬁn omer Support nt Thi

Copyright 2 2016 82Gnew. All rights reserved.

hitre-lirr v rhacvsiom rom FerniE el CoorrhDy Nis Mol sen 7Y IRz AMARTHE rooen S Nz T4 AN SENEEATIIAE AN MTIEASN T8RS M IE1N

m



NOTICE OF AWARD
FOR
A.L.P. PROJECT NO. 3-08-0027-054-2016
GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL AIRPORT

TO: Interstate Highway Construction, Inc.
7135 S. Tucson Way
Englewood, CO 80112

The OWNER has considered the Bid submitted by you for the above described Work in response to
its Invitation for Bids and Instructions to Bidders.

You are hereby notified that your Bid has been accepted in the amount of Four Million Two Hundred
Seventy-Eight Thousand Eight Hundred Thirty-Four Dollars and Fifty Cents ($4,278,834.50 ).

You are required by the Instructions to Bidders to execute the Agreement and fumish the required
Contractor's Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bonds and Proofs of Insurance within fifteen
(15) calendar days from the date of this Notice to you.

If you fail to execute said Agreement and to furnish said Bonds and Proofs of Insurance within fifteen
(15) days from the date of this Notice, said Owner will be entitled to consider your Bid abandoned,
to annul this Notice of Award and to declare your Bid Security forfeited.

You are required to return an acknowledged copy of this NOTICE OF AWARD to the Owner.

Dated this day of , 2016.

GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY, Owner

By , Chairman
Address: 800 Eagle Drive

Grand Junction, Colorado 81506
Telephone:  (970) 244-9100

ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE
Receipt of the above NOTICE OF AWARD is hereby acknowledged by:

Interstate Highway Construction, Inc. , Contractor

By: Date:
Title: Telephone;
Contract Documents MA-1 Armstrong Consuftants, Inic.

166350 Grand Junction Regicnal Airport



AGREEMENT FOR THE RECONSTRUCTION OF THE EAST TERMINAL AIR CARRIER APRON

This Agreement for the Reconstruction of the East Terminal Air Carrier Apron, (hereinafter
“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 16" day of August, 2016 by and between the Grand
Junction Regional Airport Authority (hereinafter “Sponsor”), a body corporate and politic and
constituting a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, and Interstate Highway Construction, Inc.
(hereinafter “Contractor”), a Colorado Corporation:

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Sponsor received sealed proposals for the provision and furnishing of any and all labor,
tools, supplies, equipment, and/or materials necessary and required for the Reconstruction of the
East Terminal Air Carrier Apron, and which more fully defined and identified in A.L.P. Project No. 3-
08-0027-054-2016, or A.C.). Project No. 166350 (hereinafter “Project); and

WHEREAS, Contractor submitted a sealed proposal to Sponsor for the Project; and
WHEREAS, the Project has been awarded to Contractor; and

WHEREAS, Contractor is willing and able to perform all of the work that is necessary and required
to complete the Project; and

THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the fees, covenants, and agreements contained herein,
and for other good and valuable consideration, it is agreed and understood between Sponsor and
Contractor:
ARTICLE 1
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

1.1 The Contract Documents consist of, and are defined as, the Invitation for Bids, the
Instructions to Bidders, the Proposal, the Bid Bond, the Notice of Award, this Agreement, the
Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bonds, the Certification of Inclusion of Labor & EEQ
Requirements in Subcontracts, the Notice to Proceed, the Change Orders, the Applications for
Payment, the Notice of Contractor's Settlement, Wage Rates, the General Provisions, the Technical
Specifications, the Special Provisions, the Construction Safety and Phasing Plan, the Construction
Management Plan, the Plans and Drawings, any Addenda issued prior to the execution of this
Agreement, any written and signed modifications issued after the execution of this Agreement, and/or
any other documents listed in this Agreement. These Contract Documents are incorporated herein
and are a part of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 2
SCOPE OF WORK

2.1 Contractor is to complete the Project in accordance with the Contract Documents and in
accordance with all codes and regulations governing the construction of the Project. Any work,
materials, or equipment that may be reasonably inferred from the Contract Documents as being
required to produce the intended result shall be supplied by Contractor whether or not specifically
called for. Reference to standard specifications, manuals, or codes of any technical society,
organization or association, or to the laws or regulations of any governmental authority, whether such
reference be specific or by implication, shall mean the latest standard, specification, manual, code,
or laws or regulations in effect at the time of opening of bids and Contractor shall comply therewith.
Sponsor shall have no duties other than those duties and obligations expressly set forth within the
Contract Documents.

Contract Documents A-1 Amnstrong Consuftanis, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Reglonal Airport



ARTICLE 3
CONTRACT TIME

3.1 Contractor agrees to undertake the performance of the Project on the date stated in the
Notice to Proceed and agrees to fully complete the Project within one hundred-ten (110) calendar
days (hereinafter “Contract Time") unless an extension of time is granted by Sponsor in accordance
with the provisions of Section 80, Paragraph 7, of the General Provisions.

ARTICLE 4
DAMAGES

41 It is acknowledged that Contractor's failure to compiete the Project within the Contract Time
will cause Sponsor to incur substantial economic damages and losses of the types and in the
amounts which are significantly difficult to compute and ascertain with any certainty as a basis for
the recovery by Sponsor of actual damages, and that liquidated damages represent a fair,
reasonable, and appropriate estimate thereof. Accordingly, in lieu of actual damages for such delay,
Contractor agrees that liquidated damages may be assessed and recovered by Sponsor as against
Contractor and its Surety in the event of delayed completion and without Sponsor being required to
present any evidence of the amount or character of actual damages sustained by reason thereof.
Contractor shall be liable to Sponsor for payment of liquidated damages in the amount of One
Thousand and No/100ths Dollars {$1,000) for each day that the Project is delayed beyond the
Contract Time as adjusted for any time extension that may be provided for by the Contract
Documents. Such liquidated damages are intended to represent estimated actual damages and are
not intended as a penalty, and Contractor shall pay them to Sponsor without limiting Sponsor’s right
to terminate this Agreement for defauit as provided elsewhere herein. Additionally, Sponsor may
hold ali or part of any liquidated damages from payments that may be due to Contractor for the
Project. The acceptance by Sponsor of such liquidated damages does not constitute a waiver by
Sponsor of any other remedy, or limit Sponsor’s claims for additional damages, that may be available
at law or in equity, and Sponsor expressly reserves its right to pursue any available remedy and seek
the recovery of any damages it may have sustained.

4.2 If Contractor fails to comply with any covenants or conditions of this Agreement, Sponsor
may take such actions as Sponsor deems necessary to complete the Project using persons and
entities selected by Sponsor. If Sponsor's costs of completing the Project exceed any unpaid
amounts to Contractor for the Project, upon demand, Contractor shall reimburse Sponsor the
difference between the actual cost of completion and the unpaid balance of any amounts that
remain to be paid for the Project. Sponsor's rights and remedies under this section are not
exclusive and are cumulative with any other rights and remedies Sponsor may have under this
Agreement or applicable law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, and to the extent applicable,
Sponsor shali have all available rights and remedies pursuant to Colorado’s Construction Defect
Action Reform Act, C.R.S. § 13-20-801, et seq., as well as any and all other applicable federal,
state, or local statutes, laws, rules, and/or regulations.

ARTICLE 5
TERMS OF PAYMENT

5.1 Sponsor agrees to pay Contractor in accordance with the price or prices set forth in
Contractor's Proposal, for the total cost of the Project, or the “Contract Price,” will be Four Million
Two Hundred Seventy-Eight Thousand Eight Hundred Thirty-Four Dollars and Fifty Cents
($4,278,834.50). Partial payments will be made for work completed on the Project during the

Contract Documnents A-2 Amnstrong Consultants, inc.
166350 Grand Junction Ragional Airport



previous month, as well as for materials (invoice cost only) delivered to the site of the Project and
which are properly and suitably stored.

5.2  Application for partial payments for stored materials must be accompanied by certified
invoices showing all pertinent data that may be required by Armstrong Consulfants, Inc.
(“Engineer”), to verify the accuracy of the invoices and their relation to the stored materials.
Failure to provide certified invoices will disqualify the materials in guestion from consideration for
partial payment. Partial payments for work completed on the Project during the previous month
will be made based on the Contractor's Application for Payment and any Recommendation of
Payment made by Engineer. Sponsor will retain, from any partial payments, ten percent (10%)
of the total amount due to Contractor based on the Contractor's Application for Payment and any
Recommendation of Payment made by Engineer. However, nothing herein shall be construed as
relieving Contractor and his, her, or its Sureties on the Contractor's Bond from any claim or claims
for work or labor done, or materials or supplies furnished, as part of this Agreement and the
completion of the Project.

5.3 Itis the intent of Sponsor to make any partial payments in the following manner:

5.3.1. The Contractor shall submit to Engineer his Application for Payment no later than
the next to last Friday of the month.

5.3.2. Engineer will, within 7 days after receipt, submit the Application for Payment to
Sponsor for payment along with its Recommendation of Payment, noting any changes. The
Sponsor will then make payment to Contractor when funds are received from the FAA and/or
the State of Colorado and are available to Sponsor for payment to Contractor.

ARTICLE 6
BONDS & INSURANCE

6.1 At the time of the execution of this Agreement, Contractor shall provide the bonds that are
required by the Contract Documents. The Performance Bond will be in an amount not less than
one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Price and shall provide for the completion of the
Project in accordance with the Contract Documents, without additional cost to Sponsor. The
Payment Bond will be in an amount not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract
Price and it shall provide for the payment of all Project costs in accordance with the Contract
Documents, without additional cost to Sponsor. The Maintenance Bond will provide for the
correction or replacement of any portion of the Project that is considered by Sponsor and/or
Engineer to be defective in materials and workmanship for a period of one year following final
acceptance of the Project, and it shall fully cover any and all of the costs of removal, correction,
reconstruction, and any and ail other related expenses in repairing or correcting the defective
portions of the Project, without additional cost to Sponsor.

6.2 Contractor shall obtain, before beginning the Project, and maintain in full force at all times
relevant to this Agreement, as well as assure that all persons or entities working on the Project
obtain and maintain in full force at all times, insurance for the protection of claims under workers’
compensation laws. Prior to commencing work on the Project, Contractor, at Sponsor’s request,
shall provide Sponsor with a certification of the maintenance of workers’ compensation as
required by this section. Contractor shall also maintain, in full force at all times relevant to this
Agreement, public liability/commercial general liability insurance and property damage insurance
with a limit of at least $2,000,000 per occurrence. This insurance shall also include coverage for
completed operations, contractual liability, and automotive liability and shall afford coverage for
all claims for bodily injury, including death, and all claims for the destruction of, or damage to,

Contract Documents A-3 Armstrong Consuttants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Reglonal Airport



property arising out of or in connection with any work completed on the Project in regard to this
Agreement, whether such work was done by Contractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed
by Contractor or by a subcontractor. Additionally, Contractor shall name Sponsor and Engineer
as additional named insureds on these insurance policies, with the exception of the Workers’
Compensation Insurance. Contractor, at Sponsor's request, shall provide Sponsor with
certificates of these insurance policies. Prior to the completion of the Project, Contractor’s
insurance required under this Agreement cannot be cancelled without at least ten (10) days prior
written notice to Sponsor.

ARTICLE 7
ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS

71 Pursuant to 2 C.F.R. § 200.336 & 2 C.F.R. § 200.333, as well as any related Appendixes
thereto, Contractor shall maintain an acceptable cost accounting system. The Contractor agrees
to provide the sponsor, the Federal Aviation Administration, and the Comptroller General of the
United States or any of their duly authorized representatives, access to any books, documents,
papers, and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to the specific contract for the
purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions. The Contractor agrees to
maintain all books, records and reports required under this contract for a period of not less than
three years after final payment is made and all pending matters are closed.

ARTICLE 8
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION REQUIREMENTS

8.1 Pursuant to 41 C.F.R. Part 60-4 and Executive Order 11246, the following “Notice of
Requirement for Affirmative Action to Ensure Equal Employment Opportunity (Executive Order
11246)" is hereby provided as follows:

8.1.1. The Contractor's attention is called to the "Equal Opportunity Clause" and the
"Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications” set
forth herein.

8.1.2. The goals and timetables for minority and female participation, expressed in
percentage terms for Contractor's aggregate workforce in each trade on all construction work
in the covered area, are as follows:

Timetables Goals for Minority Participation Goals for Female
in Each Trade Participation in Each Trade
10.2% 6.9%

These goals are applicable to all of the Contractor's construction work (whether or not it is
Federal or federally-assisted) performed in the covered area. If the Contractor performs
construction work in a geographical area located outside of the covered area, it shall apply
the goals established for such geographical area where the work is actually performed. With
regard to this second area, the Contractor is also subject to the goals for both federally funded
and non-federally funded construction regardless of the percentage of federal participation in
funding.

The Contractor's compliance with the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-
4 shall be based on its implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, specific affirmative
action obligations required by the specifications set forth in 41 CFR 60-4.3(a), and its efforts
to meet the goals. The hours of minority and female employment and training shall be

Contract Docurnents A-4 Armsirong Consultants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Regional Alrport



substantially uniform throughout the length of the contract, and in each trade, and the
Contractor shall make a good faith effort to employ minorities and women evenly on each of
its projects. The transfer of minority or female employees or trainees from Contractor to
Contractor or from project to project, for the sole purpose of meeting the Contractor’s goals,
shall be a violation of the contract, the Executive Order, and the regulations in 41 CFR Part
60-4. Compliance with the goals will be measured against the total work hours performed.

8.1.3. The Contractor shall provide written notification to the Director, Office of Federal
Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP), within 10 working days of award of any
construction subcontract in excess of $10,000 at any tier for construction work under the
contract resulting from this solicitation. The notification shall list the name, address, and
telephone number of the subcontractor; employer identification number of the subcontractor;
estimated dollar amount of the subcontract; estimated starting and completion dates of
subcontract; and the geographical area in which the subcontract is to be performed.

8.1.4. As used in this notice and in the contract resulting from this solicitation, the
"covered area” is Grand Junction, Mesa County, Colorado.

ARTICLE 9
BREACH OF CONTRACT

9.1 Contractor agrees to comply with 2 CFR § 200 Appendix li(A), and any violation or
breach of terms of this contract on the part of the Contractor or its subcontractors may result in
the suspension or termination of this contract or such other action that may be necessary to
enforce the rights of the parties of this agreement.

9.2  Owner will provide Contractor written notice that describes the nature of the breach and
corrective actions the Contractor must undertake in order to avoid termination of the contract.
Owner reserves the right to withhold payments to Contractor until such time the Contractor
corrects the breach or the Owner elects to terminate the contract. The Owner's notice will identify
a specific date by which the Contractor must correct the breach. Owner may proceed with
termination of the contract if the Contracior fails to correct the breach by deadline indicated in

the Owner’s notice.

9.3 The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and
remedies available thereunder are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any duties, obligations,
rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law.

ARTICLE 10
BUY AMERICAN PREFERENCE

10.1 Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. § 50101, which provides that Federal funds
may not be obligated unless all steel and manufactured goods used in AlP-funded projects are
produced in the United States, unless the FAA has issued a waiver for the product; the product is
listed as an Excepted Article, Material Or Supply in Federal Acquisition Regulation subpart
25.108; or is included in the FAA Nationwide Buy American Waivers Issued fist. Contractor
hereby agrees and warrants that it submitted all of the appropriate Buy America certification with
its Proposal, offer, and/or bid.
ARTICLE 11
CIVIL RIGHTS

11.1  Contractor agrees that it will comply with all pertinent statutes, Executive Orders, and all
rules or regulations that are promulgated to ensure that no person shall, on the grounds of race,

Contract Documents A5 Armstrong Consultants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Regional Airport



creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or handicap be excluded from participating in any activity
conducted with or benefiting from Federal assistance.

11.2 This provision binds the contractor and subtier contractors and/or subcontractors from the
bid solicitation period through the completion of the contract. This provision is in addition to that
required of Title Vi of the Civil Rights-Act of 1964.

ARTICLE 12
CIVIL RIGHTS - TITLE VI ASSURANCES

Compliance with Nondiscrimination Requirements
During the performance of this contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors
in interest (hereinafter referred to as the “contractor”) agrees as follows:

12.1 Compliance with Regulations: The contractor (hereinafter includes consultants) will
comply with the Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities, as they may be
amended from time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this
contract.

12.2 Non-discrimination: The Contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the
contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and
retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The
contractor will not participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the
Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, including employment practices when the contract covers
any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR part 21.

12.3 Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and
Equipment: In all solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the
contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or
leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the contractor of
the contractor's obligations under this contract and the Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities on
the grounds of race, color, or national origin.

12.4 Information and Reports: The Contractor will provide all information and reports
required by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit
access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be
determined by the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration to be pertinent to ascertain
compliance with such Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities and instructions. Where any
information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses
to furnish the information, the contractor will so certify to the sponsor or the Federal Aviation
Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.

12.5 Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of a contractor's noncompliance with the
Non-discrimination provisions of this contract, the sponsor will impose such contract sanctions as
it or the Federal Aviation Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited
to:
a. Withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies;
and/or
b. Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part.

12.6 Incorporation of Provisions: The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs
12.1 through 12.6 in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of
equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto.

Conlract Documenils A-6 Armstrong Consutiants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Fegilonal Airport



The contractor will take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the sponsor or
the Federal Aviation Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including
sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if the contractor becomes involved in, or is
threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, the contractor
may request the sponsor to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the sponsor. In
addition, the contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the
interests of the United States.

Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors
in interest (hereinafter referred to as the “contractor”) agrees to comply with the following non-
discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to:

e Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252}, (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin);

s 49 CFR part 21 (Non-discrimination In Federally-Assisted Programs of The Department
of Transportation—Effectuation of Title VI of The Civil Rights Act of 1964);

e The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970,
(42 U.S.C. § 4601), {prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has
been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);

e Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended,
{(prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 43 CFR part 27;

e The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 ef seq.), (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of age);

e Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as
amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);

» The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage
and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of
1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the
terms “programs or activities” to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid
recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are
Federally funded or not);

» Titles Il and lll of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which prohibit discrimination
on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation
systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131
- 12189) as implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 CFR parts
37 and 38;

e The Federal Aviation Administration'’s Non-discrimination statute (49 U.5.C. § 47123)
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex),

o Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority
Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures non-discrimination against
minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activites with
disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority
and low-income populations;

e Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes
discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with
Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful
access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100),

Contract Documents A-7 Armstrong Consultants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Regional Airport



o Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq.).

ARTICLE 13
CLEAN AIR & WATER POLLUTION CONTROL

13.1 Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, and regulations issued
pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 740-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control
Act as amended (33 U.S.C. § 1251-1387). The Contractor agrees to report any violation to the
Owner immediately upon discovery. The Sponsor assumes responsibility for notifying the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the Federal Aviation Administration.

Contractor must include this requirement in all subcontracts that exceeds $150,000.

ARTICLE 14
CONTRACT WORKHOURS & SAFTEY STANDARDS ACT REQUIREMENTS

14.1 Overtime Requirements.

No Contractor or subcentractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or
involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or
mechanic, including watchmen and guards, in any workweek in which he or she is employed on
such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic
receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all
hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

14.2 Violation; Liability for Unpaid Wages; Liquidated Damages.

In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph 14.1 of this clause, the contractor
and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such
contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under
contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated
damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or
mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in
paragraph (1) of this clause, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day on which such individual
was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without
payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph 14.1 of this clause.

14.3 Withholding for Unpaid Wages and Liquidated Damages.

The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) or the Owner shall upon its own action or upon written
request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be
withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or
subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime
contractor, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and
Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be
determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid
wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph 14.2 of this clause.

14.4 The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in
paragraphs 14.1 through 14.4 and also a clause requiring the subcontractor to include these
clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance
by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs 14.1
through 14.4 of this clause.

Contract Documents A-B Armstrong Consultants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Regicnal Airport



ARTICLE 15
COPELAND “ANTI-KICKBACK” ACT

15.1 Contractor must comply with the requirements of the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (18
U.S.C. 874 and 40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulation 29 CFR
part 3. Contractor and subcontractors are prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person
employed on the project to give up any part of the compensation to which the employee is entitled.
The Contractor and each Subcontractor must submit to the Owner, a weekly statement on the
wages paid to each employee performing on covered work during the prior week. Owner must
report any violations of the Act to the Federal Aviation Administration.

ARTICLE 16
DAVIS-BACON REQUIREMENTS

16.1 Minimum Wages

(i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work will be paid
unconditionally and not léss often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or
rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by the Secretary of
Labor under the Copeland Act (28 CFR Part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide
fringe benefits (or cash equivalent thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not
less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is
attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardiess of any contractual relationship which
may be alleged to exist between the Contractor and such faborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under
section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered
wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (1)(iv) of
this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period
(but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular
weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period.
Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on
the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to
skill, except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work
in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each
classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, that the employer's payroll
records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed.
The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed
under (1)(ii} of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all
times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and
accessible place where it can easily be seen by the workers.

(iF)
(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including
helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under
the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The
contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe
benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:

(1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a
classification in the wage determination; and

Contract Documents A-9 Armstrong Consultants, inc.
166350 Grand Junction Regional Airport



(2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and

(3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a
reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.

(B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification
(if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification
and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate},
a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator
of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department
of Labor, Washington, D.C. 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative,
will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days
of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within
the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

(C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the
classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the
proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe
benefits where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including
the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to
the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative,
will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer
or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is
necessary.

(D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to
subparagraphs (1)(ii) (B) or (C) of this paragraph, shall be paid to all workers performing
work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed
in the classification.

(ii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or
mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor
shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona
fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.

(iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor
may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs
reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program,
Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor,
that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor
may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of
obligations under the plan or program.

16.2. Withholding.

The Federal Aviation Administration or the Sponsor shall upon its own action or upon written
request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be
withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same
prime contractor, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing
wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued
payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics,
including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor
the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or

Coniract Documents A-10 Armstrong Consuttants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Regional Airport



mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of work,
all or part of the wages required by the contract, the Federal Aviation Administration may, after
written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be
necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until
such violations have ceased.

16.3. Payrolls and basic records.

(i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during
the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers
and mechanics working at the site of the work. Such records shall contain the name,
address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification,
hourly rates of wages paid (inciuding rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide
fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-
Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages
paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1){iv) that the wages
of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in
providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-
Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide
such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the
plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected,
and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual costs incurred in providing such
benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall
maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of
trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage
rates prescribed in the applicable programs.

(ii)

(A) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is
performed a copy of all payrolls to the Federal Aviation Administration if the agency is a
party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the
payrolis to the applicant, sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to the
Federal Aviation Administration. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and
completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i),
except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on
weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually
identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social
security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form
desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this pumpose from the Wage and Hour
Division Web site at http./www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor
site. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all
subcontractors. Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security
number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon
request to the Federal Aviation Administration if the agency is a party to the contract, but
if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit them to the applicant, sponsor,
or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to the Federal Aviation Administration,
the contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes
of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a
violation of this section for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide
addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records,
without weekly submission to the sponsoring government agency (or the applicant,
SpOoNSsor, or owner).

Coniract Docurnents A-11 Armstrong Consultants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junciion Ragional Airport



(B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance,"”
signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the
payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:

(1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be
provided under 29 CFR § 5.5(a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being
maintained under 29 CFR § 5.5 (a)}{3)(i) and that such information is correct and
complete;

(2) That each laborer and mechanic (including each helper, apprentice and trainee)
employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly
wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions
have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than
permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations 29 CFR Part 3;

(3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage
rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed,
as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.

(C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse
side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the
"Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph (3)ii}{B) of this section.

(D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or
subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section
231 of Title 31 of the United States Code.

(iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (3)(i)
of this section available for inspection, copying or transcription by authorized representatives
of the sponsor, the Federal Aviation Administration or the Department of Labor, and shall
permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the
contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available,
the Federal agency may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant or owner,
take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment,
advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon
request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant
to 29 CFR 5.12.

16.4. Apprentices and Trainees.
(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitied to work at less than the predetermined rate for
the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in
a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor,
Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or with a
State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, or if a person is employed in his or
her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship
program, wha is not individually registered in the program, but who has been cenrified by the
Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where
appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio
of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater
than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered
program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or

Centract Documnents A-12 Armslrong Consultants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Regional Airport



otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate
on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any
apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the
registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage
determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction
on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and
wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the
contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be cbserved. Every apprentice must
be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice’s leve}
of progress, expressed as a percentage of the joumeymen hourly rate specified in the
applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with
the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify
fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage
determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different
practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in
accordance with that determination. In the event the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training,
or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, withdraws approval of an
apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at
less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable
program is approved.

(i) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at
less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant
to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by
formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training
Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than
permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every
trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the
trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the joumeyman hourly rate
specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in
accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not
mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the
wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that
there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage
rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for
apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate that is not registered and
participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall
be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the
classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job
site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than
the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the
event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training
program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the
applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is
approved.

(iii) Equal Employment Opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen
under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements
of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR Part 30.

Contract Documents A-13 Armstrong Consuftants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Regional Afrport



16.5. Compliance with Copeland Act Requirements.
The contractor shali comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3, which are incorporated by
reference in this contract.

16.6. Subcontracts.

The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR
Part 5.5(a)(1) through (10} and such other clauses as the Federal Aviation Administration may
by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include
these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the
compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clausesin 29
CFR Part 5.5.

16.7. Contract Termination: Debarment.

A breach of the contract clauses in paragraph 1 through 10 of this section may be grounds for
termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided
in29 CFR 5.12.

16.8. Compliance With Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements.
All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts
1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.

16.9. Disputes Concerning Labor Standards.

Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the
general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the
procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6 and 7. Disputes within the
meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors)
and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their
representatives.

16.10. Certification of Eligibility.

(i) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any
person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is & person or firm ineligible to be
awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR
5.12(a)(1).

(ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award
of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR
5.12{a)(1).

(iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C.
1001,

ARTICLE 17
DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

17.1 Contractor certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred or suspended
by any federal department or agency from participation in this Agreement and transaction.

17.2 Contractor will administer each lower tier subcontract that exceeds $25,000 as a “covered
transaction” and will verify that each lower tier participant is not debarred or otherwise disqualified
from participation in the Project or in the performance of this Agreement by checking the System

Contract Documenis A-14 Armstrong Consultants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Regional Airport



for Award Management at hitp:/www.sam.gov and by collecting a certification statement similar
to the statement contained in Paragraph 17.1. If the FAA iater determines that a lower tier
participant failed to tell a higher tier that it was excluded or disqualified at the time it entered into
the covered transaction, the FAA ma pursue any available remedy, including suspension and
debarment.

ARTICLE 18
DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE

18.1 Contract Assurance (§ 26.13) - The Contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on
the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor
shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT
assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of
this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy, as the
recipient deems appropriate.

18.2 Prompt Payment (§26.29) - The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under
this prime contract for satisfactory performance of its contract no later than 30 days from the receipt
of each payment the prime contractor receives from the Grand Junction Regional Airport. The prime
contractor agrees further to return retainage payments to each subcontractor within 30 days after the
subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed. Any delay or postponement of payment from the
above referenced time frame may occur only for good cause following written approval of the Grand
Junction Regional Airport. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.

ARTICLE 19
DISTRACTED DRIVING

TEXTING WHEN DRIVING
19.1 In accordance with Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text
Messaging While Driving" (10/1/2009) and DOT Order 3902.10 “Text Messaging While Driving”
(12/30/2009), the FAA encourages recipients of Federal grant funds to adopt and enforce safety
policies that decrease crashes by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text messaging
while driving when performing work related to a grant or sub-grant.

In suppont of this initiative, the Owner encourages the Contractor to promote policies and initiatives
for its employees and other work personnel that decrease crashes by distracted drivers, including
policies that ban text messaging while driving motor vehicles while performing work activities
associated with the project. The Contractor must include the substance of this clause in all sub-tier
contracts exceeding $3,500 and involve driving a motor vehicle in performance of work activities
associated with the project.

ARTICLE 20
ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS

20.1 Contractor and Subcontractor agree to comply with mandatory standards and policies
relating to energy efficiency as contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance
with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (42 U.5.C. 6201 et seq).

Contract Documents A-15 Armstrong Consuftants, inc.
166350 Grand Junction Regional Airport



ARTICLE 21
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE AND SPECIFICATIONS

21.1 During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor agrees as follows:

21.1.1 Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Contractor will take affirmative action to
ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without
regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be
limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for
training, including apprenticeship. Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to
employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of
this nondiscrimination clause.

21.1.2 Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on
behalf of Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

2113 Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided
advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of Contractor's commitments under this
section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and
applicants for employment.

211.4 Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,
1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

2115 Contractor will furnish all information and reporis required by Executive Order 11246
of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or
pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering
agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with
such rules, regulations, and orders.

2116 In the event of Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this
Agreement or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this Agreement may be canceled,
terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and Contractor may be declared ineligible for further
Govemment contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures
authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be
imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965,
or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

21.1.7 Contractor will include the sentence beginning Paragraph 21.1 and the provisions of
Paragraphs 21.1.1 through this Paragraph 21.1.7 in every subcontract or purchase order unless
exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section
204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding
upon each subcontractor or vendor. Contractor will take such action with respect to any
subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing
such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event
Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor

Contract Documents A-16 Armnstrong Consultanis, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Regional Airport



as a result of such direction by the administering agency, Contractor may request the United
States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

21.2 Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications:
1. Asused in these specifications:

A. "Covered area" means the geographical area described in the solicitation from which
this contract resulted;

B. "Director" means Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs
(OFCCP), U.S. Department of Labor, or any person to whom the Director delegates
authority;

C. "Employer identification number" means the Federal social security number used on
the Employer's Quarterly Federal Tax Return, U.S. Treasury Department Form 941;

D. "Minority" includes:

1. Black {all) persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups not
of Hispanic origin};

2. Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or Southr
American, or other Spanish culture or origin regardless of race);

3. Asian and Pacific Islander (all persons having origins in any of the original
peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the
Pacific Islands); and

4. American Indian or Alaskan native (all persons having origins in any of the
original peoples of North America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations
through membership and participation or community identification).

2. Whenever the Contractor, or any subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a portion of
the work invelving any construction trade, it shall physically include in each subcontract
in excess of $10,000 the provisions of these specifications and the Notice which
contains the applicable goals for minority and female participation and which is set
forth in the solicitations from which this contract resulted.

3. If the contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR 60-4.5) in a Hometown Plan
approved by the U.S. Department of Labor in the covered area either individually or
through an association, its affirmative action obligations on all work in the Plan area
(including goals and timetables) shall be in accordance with that Plan for those trades
which have unions participating in the Plan. Contractors shall be able to demonstrate
their participation in and compliance with the provisions of any such Hometown Plan.
Each contractor or subcontractor participating in an approved plan is individually
required to comply with its obligations under the EEO clause and to make a good faith
effort to achieve each goal under the Plan in each trade in which it has employees.
The overall good faith performance by other contractors or subcontractors toward a
goal in an approved Plan does not excuse any covered contractor's or subcontractor's
failure to take good faith efforts to achieve the Plan goals and timetables.

Conlract Documents A-17 Ammstrong Consultants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junclion Regional Airport



4. The Contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided in
paragraphs 7a through 7p of these specifications. The goals set forth in the solicitation
from which this contract resulted are expressed as percentages of the total hours of
employment and training of minority and female utilization the contractor should
reasonably be able to achieve in each construction trade in which it has employees in
the covered area. Covered construction contractors performing construction work in a
geographical area where they do not have a Federal or federally assisted construction
contract shall apply the minority and female goals established for the geographical
area where the work is being performed. Goals are published periodically in the
Federal Register in notice form, and such notices may be obtained from any Office of
Federal Contract Compliance Programs office or from Federal procurement
contracting officers. The Contractor is expected to make substaniially uniform
progress in meeting its goals in each craft during the period specified.

5. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement nor the failure by a union
with whom the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement to refer either
minorities or women shall excuse the Contractor's obligations under these
specifications, Executive Order 11246 or the regulations promulgated pursuant
thereto.

6. In order for the non-working training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted
in meeting the goals, such apprentices and trainees shall be employed by the
Contractor during the training pericd and the contractor shall have made a commitment
to employ the apprentices and trainees at the completion of their training, subject to
the availability of employment opportunities. Trainees shall be trained pursuant to
training programs approved by the U.S. Department of Labor.

7. The Contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment
opportunity. The evaluation of the Contractor's compliance with these specifications
shall be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from its actions. The
Contractor shall document these efforts fully and shall implement affirmative action
steps at least as extensive as the following:

A. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and
coercion at all sites, and in all facilities at which the Contractor's employees are
assigned to work. The Contractor, where possible, will assign two or more women
to each construction project. The contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen,
superintendents, and other onsite supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out
the Contractor's obligation to maintain such a working environment, with specific
attention to minority or female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities.

B. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources,
provide written notification to minority and female recruitment sources and to
community organizations when the Contractor or its unions have employment
opportunities available, and maintain a record of the organizations' responses.

C. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of each
minority and female off-the-street applicant and minority or female referral from a
union, a recruitment source, or community organization and of what action was taken
with respect to each such individual. If such individual was sent to the union hiring
hall for referral and was not referred back to the Contractor by the union or, if referred,

Contract Documents A-18 Armstrong Consultants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junclfon Reglonal Airport



not employed by the contractor, this shall be documented in the file with the reason
therefore along with whatever additional actions the contractor may have taken.

D. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions with
which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the
Contractor a minority person or female sent by the Contractor, or when the Contractor
has other information that the union referral process has impeded the Contractors
efforts to meet its obligations.

E. Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs for
the area which expressly include minorities and women, including upgrading
programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the Contractors
employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved by the
Department of Labor. The Contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the
sources compiled under 7b above.

F. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions
and training programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting the contractor in
meeting its EEO obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective
bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual repon,
etc.; by specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all
minority and female employees at least once a year; and by posting the company
EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location where
construction work is performed.

G. Review, at least annually, the company's EEO policy and affirmative action
obligations under these specifications with all employees having any responsibility
for hiring, assignment, layoff, termination, or other employment decisions including
specific review of these items with onsite supervisory personnel such as
superintendents, general foremen, efc., prior to the initiation of construction work at
any job site. A written record shall be made and maintained identifying the time and
place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed, and
disposition of the subject matter.

H. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy extemally by including it in any advertising
in the news media, specifically including minority and female news media, and
providing written notification to and discussing the Contractor's EEO policy with other
contractors and subcontractors with whom the Contractor does or anticipates doing
business.

I. Directits recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female, and community
organizations, to schools with minority and female students; and to minority and
female recruitment and training organizations serving the Contractor's recruitment
area and employment needs. Not later than one month prior to the date for the
acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment
source, the Contractor shall send written notification to organizations, such as the
above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the
selection process.

J. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons
and women and, where reasonable provide after school, summer, and vacation
employment to minority and female youth both on the site and in other areas of a
Contractor's workforce.

Contract Documents A-19 Armstrong Consultants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Regional Aiport



K. Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do
so under 41 CFR Part 60-3.

L. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and
female personnel, for promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to
seek or to prepare for, through appropriate training, etc., such opportunities.

M. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments, and other
personnel practices do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all
personnel and employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the
Contractor's obligations under these specifications are being carried out.

N. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are non-segregated except that
separate or single user toilet and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to
assure privacy between the sexes.

0. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontracts from
minority and female construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of
solicitations to minority and female contractor associations and other business
associations.

P. Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisor's adherence to and performance
under the Contractor's EEQ policies and affirnative action obligations.

8. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations, which assist in
fulfilling one or more of their affirmative action obligations (7a through 7p). The efforts of
a contractor association, joint contractor union, contractor community, or other similar
groups of which the Contractor is a member and participant, may be asserted as fulfilling
any one or more of its obligations under a through p of these specifications provided that
the Contractor actively participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that the
group has a positive impact on the employment of minorities and women in the industry,
ensures that the concrete benefits of the program are reflected in the Contractor's minority
and female workforce participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual goals
and timetables, and can provide access o documentation which demonstrates the
effectiveness of actions taken on behalf of the Contractor. The obligation to comply,
however, is the Contractor's and failure of such a group to {fulfill an obligation shall not be
a defense for the Contractor's noncompliance.

8. A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women have been established.
The Contractor, however, is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take
affirmative action for all minority groups, both male and female, and all women, both
minority and non-minority. Consequently, if the particular group is employed in a
substantially disparate manner (for example, even though the Contractor has achieved its
goals for women generally,) the Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a
specific minority group of women is underutilized.

10. The Contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action standards to
discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

11. The Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract with any person or firm debarred from
Government contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246.

Contract Documents A-20 Armstrong Consultants, Inc,
166350 Grand Junction Regional Aiport



12. The Contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these
specifications and of the Equal Opportunity Clause, including suspension, termination,
and cancellation of existing subcontracts as may be imposed or ordered pursuant to
Executive Order 11246, as amended.

13. The Contractor, in fulfilling its obligations under these specifications, shall implement
specific affirmative action steps, at least as extensive as those standards prescribed in
paragraph 18.7 of these specifications, so as to achieve maximum results from its efforts
to ensure equal employment opportunity. If the Contractor fails to comply with the
requirements of the Executive Order, the implementing regulations, or these
specifications, the Director shall proceed in accordance with 41 CFR 60-4.8.

14. The Contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related
activity to ensure that the company EEO policy is being carried out, to submit reports
relating to the provisions hereof as may be required by the Government, and to keep
records. Records shall at least include for each employee, the name, address, telephone
number, construction trade, union affiliation if any, employee identification number when
assigned, social security number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice, trainee,
helper, or laborer), dates of changes in status, hours worked per week in the indicated
trade, rate of pay, and locations at which the work was performed. Records shall be
maintained in an easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to the degree that
existing records satisfy this requirement, contractors shall not be required to maintain
separate records.

15. Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other
laws which establish different standards of compliance or upon the application of
requirements for the hiring of local or other area residents (e.g., those under the Public
Works Employment Act of 1877 and the Community Development Block Grant Program).

ARTICLE 22
FEDERAL FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT

22.1 This Agreement incorporates the provisions of 29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq., by reference, and
those provisions have the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein. Contractor has the
responsibility to monitor compliance with these provisions, and Contractor must address any claims
or disputes that pertain to a referenced requirement directly with the Federal Agency with
enforcement responsibilities, which is the U.S. Department of Labor, Wage and Hour Division, for
the provisions of the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act, 28 U.S.C. § 201, et seq.

ARTICLE 23
LOBBYING AND INFLUENCING FEDERAL EMPLOYEES

23.1 Contractor agrees and certifies that no federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be
paid, by or on behali Contractor to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee
of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any
federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and
the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan,
or cooperative agreement. However, if any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been
paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a

Coniract Documents A-21 Armstrong Consuitanis, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Reglonal Airport



Member of Congress in connection with a federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement,
Contractor shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in
accordance with its instructions.

23.2 This certification in Paragraph 23.1 is a material representation of fact upon which reliance
was placed when this Agreement is entered into. This cettification is a prerequisite for making or
entering into this Agreement, as imposed by 31 U.S.C.§1352. If Contractor fails to provide this
certification, it shall be subject to a civil penalty of not iess than $10,000 and not more than $100,000
for each such failure.

ARTICLE 24
PROHIBITION OF SEGREGATED FACILITIES

241 The Contractor agrees that it does not and will not maintain or provide for its employees any
segregated facilities at any of its establishments, and that it does not and will not permit its employees
to perform their services at any location under its control where segregated facilities are maintained.
The Contractor agrees that a breach of this clause is a violation of the Equal Opportunity clause in
this contract.

24.2 “Segregated facilities,” as used in this clause, means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest
rooms and wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other
storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas,
transportation, and housing facilities provided for employees, that are segregated by explicit directive
or are in fact segregated on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin because of written
or oral policies or employee custom. The term does not include separate or single-user rest rooms
or necessary dressing or sleeping areas provided to assure privacy between the sexes.

24.3 The Contractor shall include this clause in every subcontract and purchase order that is
subject to the Equal Opportunity clause of this contract.

ARTICLE 25
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY & HEALTH ACT OF 1970

25.1  All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference the
requirements of 29 CFR Part 1910 with the same force and effect as if given in full text. Contractor
must provide a work environment that is free from recognized hazards that may cause death or
serious physical harm to the employee. The Contractor retains full responsibility to monitor its
compliance and their subcontractor's compliance with the applicable requirements of the
Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (20 CFR Part 1910). Contractor must address any
claims or disputes that pertain to a referenced requirement directly with the U.S. Department of Labor
- Occupational Safety and Health Administration.

ARTICLE 26
PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS

26.1 Contractor and subcontractor agree to comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste
Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, and the regulatory
provisions of 40 CFR Part 247. In the performance of this contract and to the extent practicable,
the Contractor and subcontractors are to use of products containing the highest percentage of
recovered materials for items designated by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) under
40 CFR Part 247 whenever:

Contract Documents A-22 Armstrong Consutiants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junclion Regional Airport



a) The contract requires procurement of $10,000 or more of a designated item during the
fiscal year; or,

b) The contractor has procured $10,000 or more of a designated item using Federal funding
during the previous fiscal year.

The list of EPA-designated items is available at
www.epa.gov/epawaste/conserve/tools/cpg/products/

Section 6002(c) establishes exceptions to the preference for recovery of EPA-designated
products if the contractor can demonstrate the item is:

a) Not reasonably available within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract
performance schedule;

b) Fails to meet reasonable contract performance requirements; or

c) ls only available at an unreasonable price.

ARTICLE 27
RIGHT TO INVENTIONS

27.1 Contracts or agreements that include the performance of expenmental, developmental, or
research work must provide for the rights of the Federal Government and the Owner in any resulting
invention as established by 37 CFR part 401, Rights to Inventions Made by Non-profit Organizations
and Small Business Firms under Govemment Grants, Contracts, and Cooperative Agreements. This
contract incorporates by reference the patent and inventions rights as specified within in the 37 CFR
§401.14. Contractor must include this requirement in all sub-tier contracts involving experimental,
developmental or research work.

ARTICLE 28
SEISMIC SAFETY

28.1 The Contractor agrees to ensure that all work performed under this contract, including work
performed by subconiractors, conforms to a building code standard that provides a level of seismic
safety substantially equivalent to standards established by the National Earthquake Hazards
Reduction Program (NEHRP). Local building codes that model their code after the current version
of the International Building Code (IBC) meet the NEHRP equivalency level for seismic safety.

ARTICLE 29
TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

Temination for Convenience {Construction & Equipment Contracts)

29.1 The Owner may terminate this contract in whole or in part at any time by providing written
notice to the Contractor. Such action may be without cause and without prejudice to any other
right or remedy of Owner. Upon receipt of a written notice of termination, except as explicitly
directed by the Owner, the Contractor shall immediately proceed with the following obligations
regardless of any delay in determining or adjusting amounts due under this clause:

1. Contractor must immediately discontinue work as specified in the written notice.

2. Terminate all subcontracts to the exient they relate to the work terminated under the
notice.

3. Discontinue orders for materials and services except as directed by the written notice.

Contract Documenis A-23 Armstrong Consultants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Ragional Airport



4, Deliver to the owner all fabricated and partially fabricated parts, completed and partially
completed work, supplies, equipment and materials acquired prior to termination of the
work and as directed in the written notice.

5. Complete performance of the work not terminated by the notice.

6. Take action as directed by the owner to protect and preserve property and work related
to this contract that Owner will take possession.

Unless Owner determines that under the circumstances it would be unreasonable to do so, or if
the actions and/or omissions of the Contractor, any subcontractor, or any design professional,
caused the Owner to terminate this contract, Owner agrees to pay Contractor for;

a) completed and acceptable work executed in accordance with the contract documents prior
to the effective date of termination;

b) documented expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing
work and furnishing labor, materials, or equipment as required by the contract documents
in connection with uncompleted work;

¢) reasonable and substantiated claims, costs and damages incurred in settlement of
terminated contracts with Subcontractors and Suppliers; and
d) reasonable and substantiated expenses to the Contractor directly attributable to Owner's
termination action

Owner will not pay Contractor for loss of anticipated profits or revenue or other economic loss
arising out of or resulting from the Owner’s termination action.

The rights and remedies this clause provides are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law or under this contract.

Termination for Default (Construction)

29.2 Section 80-09 of FAA Advisory Circular 150/5370-10 establishes conditions, rights and
remedies associated with Owner termination of this contract due to the default of the Contractor.

ARTICLE 30
TRADE RESTRICTION CERTIFICATION

30.1 By submission of an offer, the Contractor certifies that with respect to this solicitation and
any resultant contract, the Contractor —

a. is not owned or controlled by one or more citizens of a foreign country included in the list
of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms as published by the Office of the United
States Trade Representative (U.S.T.R.);

b. has not knowingly entered into any contract or subcontract for this project with a person
that is a citizen or national of a foreign country included on the list of countries that
discriminate against U.S. firms as published by the U.S.T.R; and

c. has not entered into any subcontract for any product to be used on the Federal project
that is produced in a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate
against U.S. firms published by the U.S.T.R.

30.2 This certification concemns a matter within the jurisdiction of an agency of the United
States of America and the making of a false, fictitious, or fraudulent certification may render the
maker subject to prosecution under Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001,

Contract Documents A-24 Armstrong Consultants, Inc,
166350 Grand Junction Regional Airport



30.3 The Contractor must provide immediate written notice to the Owner if the Contractor
learns that its certification or that of a subcontractor was erroneous when submitted or has
become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. The Contractor must require
subcontractors provide immediate written notice to the Contractor if at any time it learns that its
certification was erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

30.4 Unless the restrictions of this clause are waived by the Secretary of Transportation in
accordance with 48 CFR 30.17, no contract shall be awarded to an Contractor or subcontractor:

(1) who is owned or controlled by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign country included
on the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms published by the U.S.T.R. or

(2) whose subcontractors are owned or controlled by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign
country on such U.S.T.R. list or

{(3) who incorporates in the public works project any product of a foreign country on such U.S.T.R.
list;

30.5 Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a
system of records in order to render, in good faith, the certification required by this provision.
The knowledge and information of a contractor is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

30.6 The Contractor agrees that, if awarded a contract resulting from this solicitation, it will
incorporate this provision for certification without modification in in all lower tier subcontracts.
The Contractor may rely on the certification of a prospective subcontractor that it is not a firm
from a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms as
published by U.S.T.R, unless the Contractor has knowledge that the certification is erroneous.

30.7 This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when making an award. [f it is later determined that the Contractor or subcontractor knowingly
rendered an erroneous certification, the Federal Aviation Administration may direct through the
Owner cancellation of the contract or subcontract for default at no cost to the Owner or the FAA.

ARTICLE 31
VETERAN'S PREFERENCE

31.1 in the employment of labor (excluding executive, administrative, and supervisory positions),
the Contractor and all sub-tier contractors must give preference to covered veterans as defined within
Title 49 United States Code Section 47112. Covered veterans include Vietnam-era veterans,
Persian Gulf veterans, Afghanistan-lraq war veterans, disabled veterans, and small business
concems (as defined by 15 U.S.C. 632) owned and controlled by disabled veterans. This preference
only applies when there are covered veterans readily available and qualified to perform the work to
which the employment relates.

ARTICLE 32
BONDING CLAUSES

32.1 Contractor agrees to fumnish a performance bond for 100 percent of the Contract Price. This
bond is to be executed in connection with this Agreement in order to secure fulfilment of all of
Contractor's obligations under this Agreement.

Contract Documents A-25 Armstrong Consuliants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Reglonal Airport



32.2 Contractor agrees to fumish a payment bond for 100 percent of the Contract Price. This
bond is to be executed in connection with this Agreement to ensure payment of all monies owed by
Contractor under this Agreement and other Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 33
HOLD HARMLESS

33.1 Contractor shall release Sponsor and Engineer, and all of their agents, representatives,
officers, employees, boards, directors, committees, and commissions, of any liability for, and shall
protect, defend, indemnify, and hold Sponsor and Engineer harmless from and against all claims,
demands, and causes of action of every kind and character that are asserted or brought on
account of bodily injury, death, or damage to property as a result of the actions, omissions,
negligence, gross negligence, and/or recklessness of Contractor or Contractor's agents,
employees, representatives, invitees, licensees, subcontractors, or subcontractor's
subcontractors. Contractor’s indemnification obligations under this section shall be without regard
to, and without any right to contribution from, any insurance maintained by Contractor.
Additionally, Contractor's indemnity obligations under this section shall be supported by
insurance, but this insurance requirement shall be a separate and distinct obligation from
Contractor's indemnity obligations, and the insurance and indemnity obligations shall be
separately and independently enforceable. Further, Contractor’s indemnity obligations hereunder
are not limited by any insurance coverage Contractor may have.

ARTICLE 34
CHANGE ORDERS

34.1 Changes in the scope of work for the Project or the performance of the work under this
Agreement and any materials used may be accomplished after execution of the Agreement and
without invalidating the Agreement. However, a change order shall be in writing and signed by
Sponsor, Contractor, and Engineer. Sponsor agrees to promptly review and approve or
disapprove change orders so as to not delay the Project. Change orders shall include notice to
the Sponsor of the approximate increase in cost as a result thereof. Any revision to the Plans
and Specifications that are approved by Owner or Engineer, if any, shall be considered to be a
change order that has been approved by Owner when delivered to Contractor, requiring no further
approval by Owner.

ARTICLE 35
SPONSOR CERTIFICATIONS

35.1 Sponsor hereby certifies and agrees that it has completed and prepared the following
Certifications and Disclosures: a) the Certification and Disclosure Regarding Potential Conflicts
of Interest Airport Improvement Program Sponsor Ceriification; b) the Equipment and
Construction Contracts Airport Improvement Sponsor Certification; c) the Project Plans and
Specifications Airport Improvement Program Sponsor Certification; d) the Selection of
Consultants Airport Improvement Program Sponsor Certification; €) Construction Project Final
Acceptance Airport Improvement Program Sponsor Certification; f) the Drug-Free Workplace
Airport Improvement Program Sponsor Certification; and g) Real Property Acquisition Airport
Improvement Program Sponsor Certification. These Certifications and Disclosures are being
attached to this Agreement and are to be considered fully incorporated in this Agreement by their
reference herein.

Contract Documents A-26 Armstrong Consuitants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Regional Airport



ARTICLE 36
DEBRIS REMOVAL

36.1 Contractor shall, at all times, keep the work site reasonably free from the accumulation of
waste materials or rubbish caused by its operations during its work on the Project. All waste and
debris, tools or equipment, and surplus materials or machinery shall be removed as a condition
of the substantial completion of the Project.

ARTICLE 37
REQUIRED ACTIONS

37.1 Contractor and Sponsor each agree that they will, at any time, take all actions and sign
and deliver all documents reasonably required to fully perform this Agreement in accordance with
its intent and provisions.

ARTICLE 38
ATTORNEYS FEES & PUNITIVE DAMAGES

38.1 In the event of litigation or arbitration to resolve any claim made by either party to this
Agreement, Sponsor shall be entitled to its costs and attorney fees incurred as a resuit of such
litigation or arbitration if it is determined to be the prevailing party. Each party hereto also
intentionally waives all rights to recover punitive or exemplary damages from the other.

ARTICLE 39
GOVERNING LAW

39.1 This Agreement shall be interpreted and governed in accordance with the laws of the State
of Colorado.

ARTICLE 40
MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT

40.1 No subsequent modification of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid, binding on the
parties, or enforceable unless made in writing and signed by the parties.

ARTICLE 41
SEVERABILITY

411 Inthe event any part of this Agreement is found to be void, illegal, invalid, or unenforceable
under any present or future faw, then the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall
nevertheless be binding with the same effect as though such part was deleted.

ARTICLE 42
FACSIMILE OR ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES

421 Facsimile or electronic transmission of a signature shall be sufficient to evidence the
execution of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 43
CAPTIONS

43.1 The captions in this Agreement are inserted only for the purpose of convenient reference
and in no way define, limit, or prescribe the scope or intent of this Agreement or any part thereof.

Contract Documents A-27 Armsirong Consultants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Raglonal Airport



ARTICLE 44
BINDING EFFECT

44,1 This Agreement shall be binding upon and insure to the benefit of the parties hereto and
their respective heirs, successors, and assigns.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date set forth next to
their signatures.

CAUTION: READ BEFORE SIGNING.

CONTRACTOR
Interstate Highway Construction, Inc.

By: Date:
Authorized Representative

SPONSOR:

By: Date:
Steve Wood
Chairman of the Board

Contract Documents A-28 Armstrong Consultants, Inc.
166350 Grand Junction Reglonal Airport



CONSTRUCTION PERFORMANCE & MAINTENANCE BOND

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural

where applicable.

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address): SURETY (Name and Principal Place of Business)

Interstate Highway Construction, Inc.
7135 S. Tucson Way
Englewood, CO 80112

OWNER (Name and Address):
Grand Junction Regional Aiport Authority
800 Eagle Drive
Grand Junction, Colorado 81506

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

Date: August 16", 2016

Amount: $4,278,834.50

Description (Name and Location):
Grand Junction Regional Airport
Grand Junction, Colorado
A.LP. Project No. 3-08-0027-054-2016

BOND

Date (Not earlier than Construction Contract Date):
Amount: $4,278,834.50

Modifications to this Bond Form: None

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY
Company: Interstate Highway Construction Company:
(Corp. Seal) {Corp. Seal)
Signature: Signature:
Name and Title: Name and Title:
Contract Documants PER-1

166350 Grand Junction Reglonal Airport

Armslrong Consultants, Inc.



CONSTRUCTION PAYMENT BOND

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered

plural where applicable.

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address): SURETY (Name and Principal Place of Business)

Interstate Highway Construction, Inc.
7135 S. Tucson Way
Englewood, CO 80112

OWNER (Name and Address):
Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority
800 Eagle Drive
Grand Junction, Colorado 81506

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

Date: August 16", 2016

Amount: $4,278,834.50

Description (Name and Location):
Grand Junction Regional Airport
Grand Junction, Colorado
A.l.P. Project No. 3-08-0027-054-2016

BOND

Date (Not earlier than Construction Contract Date):
Amount; $4,278,834.50

Modifications to this Bond Form: None

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL
Company:
(Corp. Seal)

Signature:
Name and Title:

Confract Documents PAY-1
166350 Grand Junction Regional Airport

SURETY
Company:
(Corp. Seal)

Signature:

Name and Title:

Armnstrong Consultants, ine.



CERTIFICATION OF INCLUSION OF LABOR
& EEO REQUIREMENTS IN SUBCONTRACTS

A.l.P. PROJECT NO. 3-08-0027-054-2016 AIRPORT: Grand Junction Regional Airport
The Prime Contractor whose signature appears below certifies that a Subcontract was awarded on
to to perform the following Work:

In the amount of $

All of the required clauses and certifications are incorporated into the Subcontract for this Work.

BY: , 2016
{Signature)

(Name and Title}

The Subcontractor whose signature appears below certifies that the following provisions of the Prime
Contractor of the above A.LP. project are incorporated into and made a part of its Subcontract:

Access to Records and Reporls Federal Fair Labor Standards Act
Buy American Preference Occupational Safety & Health Act
Civil Rights Right to inventions
Civil Rights — Title VI Assurances Trade Restriction Certification
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Veteran's Preference
Energy Conservation Requirements Seismic Safety
Additional Provisions for AIP Funded Contracts that are $2,000 and greater:
Copeland Anti-Kickback Davis Bacon Requirements
Additional Provision for AIP Funded Contracts that are $3,000 and greater:
Distracted Driving
Additional Provisions for AIP Funded Contracts that are $10,000 and greater:
Affirmative Action Requirements Recovered Materials
Equal Employment Opportunily Termination of Contract

Prohibition of Segregated Facilities

Additional Provision for AIP Funded Contracts that are $25,000 and greater:
Debarment and Suspension

Additional Provisions for AIP Funded Contracts that are $100,000 and greater:

Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Lobbying Federal Employees
Additional Provisions for AIP Funded Contracts that are $250,000 and greater:
Breach of Coniract Clean Air/ Water Pollution Control

The Subcontractor whose signature appears below also acknowledges responsibility under the
Subcontract for including these clauses in any Lower Tier Subcontract,

, 2016 By:
(Date) (Signature)

Interstate Highway Construction, Inc.
7135 S. Tucson Way
Englewood, CO 80112

(Name and Title)

Coniract Documents Cl-1 Armstrong Consultants, Inc
166350 Grand Junction Regional Airport



APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT NO.

To the Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority (OWNER). Contract for the Grand Junction
Regional Airport Improvements dated August 16", 2016. OWNER'S A.L.P. Project No. 3-08-0027-
054-2016. ENGINEER'S Project No. 166350. For Work accomplished through the date of

ATTACH ITEMIZED LIST

Accompanying Documentation: GROSS AMOUNT DUE

LESS 10% RETAINAGE

LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS

$
$
AMOUNT DUE TO DATE $
$
5

AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION

CONTRACTOR'S Certification:

The undersigned CONTRACTOR certifies that (1) all previous Progress Payments received from
OWNER on account of Work done under the Contract referred to above have been applied to
discharge in full all obligations of CONTRACTOR incurred in connection with Work covered by prior
Applications for Payment numbered 1 through ____ inclusive; and (2) title to all materials and
equipment incorporated in said Work or otherwise listed in or covered by this Application for Payment
will pass to OWNER at time of final acceptance of Project free and clear of all liens, claims, security
interests and encumbrances.

Dated , 2016

Interstate Highway Construction, Inc.
CONTRACTOR

By

ENGINEER'S Recommendation:

This Application (with accompanying documentation) meets the requirements of the Contract
Documents and payment of the above AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION is recommended.

Dated , 2016 Armstrong Consuitants, Inc.
ENGINEER
By

OWNER'S Approval:

This Application is approved.

Dated , 2016 Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority
SPONSOR
By

Conlract Docurnents AP-1 Armstrong Consultants, Inc.

166350 Grand Junction Regional Afrport



APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT NO. FINAL

To the Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority (OWNER). Contract for the Grand Junction
Regional Airport Improvements dated August 16", 2016. OWNER'S A.l.P. Project No. 3-08-0027-
054-2016. ENGINEER'S Project No. 166350. For Work accomplished through the date of

ATTACH ITEMIZED LIST

Accompanying Documentation: GROSS AMOUNT DUE

LESS 0% RETAINAGE

LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS

$
$
AMOUNT DUE TO DATE $
3
$

AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION

CONTRACTOR'S Certification:

The undersigned CONTRACTOR certifies that (1) all previous Progress Payments received from
OWNER on account of Work done under the Contract referred to above have been applied to
discharge in full all obligations of CONTRACTOR incurred in connection with Work covered by prior
Applications for Payment numbered 1 through ____ inclusive; and (2) title to all materials and
equipment incorporated in said Work or otherwise listed in or covered by this Application for Payment
will pass to OWNER at time of final acceptance of Project free and clear of all liens, claims, security
interests and encumbrances.

Dated , 2016

Interstate Highway Construction, Inc.
CONTRACTOR

By

ENGINEER'S Recommendation:

This Application (with accompanying documentation) meets the requirements of the Contract
Documents and payment of the above AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION is recommended.

Dated , 2016 Armstrong Consultants, Inc.
ENGINEER

By

OWNER'S Approval:

This Application is approved.

Dated , 2016 Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority
SPONSOR
By

Contract Documents AP-2 Armstrong Consufiants, Inc.

1686350 Grand Junction Regional Airport



Grand Junction Regional
Airport Authority
Agenda Item Summary

TOPIC:

PURPOSE:
RECOMMENDATION:
LAST ACTION:

DISCUSSION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

ATTACHMENTS:
STAFF CONTACT:

Selection of bond counsel

Information X Guidance (0 Decision X

Staff recommends the Board appoint authorize the Chairman to execute the attached
engagement letter.
None.

As part of the 2007 bond refund, bond counsel representing the Airport was required
to be selected. Staff received the following bids:

Firm Fec
Ballard Spahr $90,000
Greenberg Traurig $65,000-$75,000
K&L Gates $40,000
Kutak Rock $80,000
Hawkins Delafield & Wood $90,000

As aresult of the bid amounts and discussion with RBC, the selected bond

underwriter, K&L Gates located in Seattle, Washington was selected as bond counsel.

The attorney to be used from K&L Gates is Cynthia Weed:
Since 1978, she has worked with public universities, colleges, cities, towns,
counties, school districts and special districts which include general
obligation bonds, revenue bonds, special assessment district financings, tax
anticipation obligations, hospital debt, short-term obligations and industrial
development bonds. Ms. Weed has been a member of the National
Association of Bond Lawyers since 1980, has been a member of its Board of
Directors and also acted as Chairperson of the Bond Attorneys Workshop for
the year 2000. She is a Fellow in the American College of Bond Counsel; she
is the current President of the College and also is a Board Member (serving a
second term). Most recently, she was named Seattle’s Public Finance Lawyer
of the Year for 2012 by Best Lawyers.

$40,000

Engagement letter

Ty Minnick
Email: tminnick@gjairport.com
Office: 970-248-8593




K&L GATES

August 5, 2016 Cynthia M. Wead
Cynthia. Weed@klgates.com

T +1 206 370 7601
F +1 206 370 6201

Mr. Steve Wood

Chairman of the Board

Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority
800 Eagle Drive

Grand Junction, CO 81505

Re: Confirmation of Engagement -Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority
Revenue and Refunding Bonds, 2016 (the “Bonds")

Dear Mr. Wood:

Thank you for asking K&L Gates LLP (the “Firm" or "K&L Gates") to represent the Grand
Junction Regional Airport Authority (the “Authority”). We welcome this opportunity and look
forward to working with you on this engagement.

i enclose our Terms of Engagement for Legal Services (the “Terms") which supplement this
letter and include additional information regarding our legal services, our relations with our
clients, our billing and payment arrangements, potential conflicts, and other matters, These
Terms will apply to all matters on which we may represent you, except as you and we may
otherwise expressly agree.

Please review this letter and the Terms carefully. |If they are not consistent with your
understanding of our engagement in any respect or if you have any questions conceming the
nature and terms of our engagement, please contact me as soon as possible so that we can
promptly address your concerns.

The Scope of Our Engagement

The Firm is being engaged to act as counsel solely for the Authority and not for any affiliated
entity (including parents and subsidiaries), shareholder, partner, member, manager, director,
officer or employee not specifically identified herein.

KBL GATES LLP
825 FOURTH AVENUE SUITE 2500 SEATTLE WA 98104-1158
T +4 206 623 7560 F +1 206 623 7022 klgates.com
klgates.com



We further understand that we are to:
1, Advise the Authority with respect to the bond issuance process.

2. Advise the Authority conceming the legal requirements applicable to the
issuance and sale of the Bonds.

3. Work with the Authority's selected financial institution, RBC Capital Markets
(RBC), to coordinate and complete the Bond financing documents, including the Bond resolution
and notices of special meeting (if applicable).

4, Review the new project list, as well as the projects financed by the bonds to be
refunded, for tax compliance.

5. Coordinate the public hearing if required by federal tax law.

6. Coordinate the redemption process for the outstanding bonds being refunded,

including the drafting of escrow agreement and redemption notices as applicable

7. Attend meetings held by the Authority when requested by the Authority. | can
arrange to be available by telephone during a meeting when it would be impractical to attend in
person.

8. In addition, as suggested by RBC, we are acting as disclosure counsel and in
that role, we are drafting the preliminary and fina! official statements for the Bonds and provide
disclosure counsel opinions to the Authority and to RBC.

9, Prepare the closing documents and the Bond for execution by the Authority and
subsequent delivery to the purchaser.

10.  Coordinate the delivery and closing of the Bonds.

11.  Deliver the final approving opinion of bond counsel to the Authority and RBC
regarding validity of the Bonds.

12.  Assemble, prepare and provide to the Authority and the purchaser transcripts of
all proceedings and documentation in either bound paper form, soft cover volume or in CD-ROM
or thumb drive format (or all of the foregoing, if the Authority so chooses).

K&L Gates will only provide legal services. We have not been retained, and expressly disclaim
any obligation, to provide business or investment advice.

Our Charges

Our fee as bond counsel for this issue would be $25,000. Our fee for disclosure counsel will be
$15,000. Fees are all inclusive. Fees are payable only upon the issuance of the Bonds, and
there are no additional charges for expenses or follow-up inquiries.

August 5, 2016



Qur Billing and Payment Arrangements

We will render our statement for professional services and related charges only upon
completion and delivery of the Bonds and expect payment to be made within 30 days of your
receipt of our statement.

Our Staffing of Your Engagement and Communications with You

| will be your principal contact with respect to the Firm's representation of the Authority. Our
representation of you will be staffed by other partners, associates and other professional staff as
may be appropriate under the circumstances. We will endeavor to keep you apprised of
significant developments in the course of our engagement, to consult with you about our work
on an ongoing basis and to obtain your direction on critical issues.

You should contact me with any questions you may have about our work or any other aspect of
our representation of you. You can reach me at the office (206-370-7801) or on my mobile
telephone (206-618-605Q) at your convenience.

Confiicts of interest

We have searched the Firm's conflicts database and have disclosed to you any ethical conflicts
of interest, as defined by the applicable rules of professional conduct, that existed at the time.
Such conflicts, if any, have been resolved to your and to our satisfaction. With respect to
conflicts of interest that may arise in the future during our engagement by you, the Terms
includes a Confiict of Interest section in which you agree to a limited, prospective waiver. This
means that, if all the conditions set forth therein are met, including that the matter is not
substantially related to the matters we handled or are handling for you, the Firm 1) may
represent another client in a matter in which its interests are adverse to your interests, and 2)
may represent as a client any individual or entity that is or has been adverse to you. Please
review this section, as well as all other sections of the Terms, in detail.

Qur Agreement

In providing legal services to you, absent timely advice from you to the contrary, we will act in
reliance upon the understanding that this letter and the enclosed Terms constitute our mutual
understanding with respect to the terms of our retention. If you proceed with the use of our
services, please sign and return to me the enclosed copy of this letter in order that we each
have a fully-executed copy for our files.

On behalf of K&L Gates, | thank you for the opportunity to represent the Grand Junction
Regional Airport Authority. We look forward to serving you.

Augusl 5, 2016



Very truly yours,

K&L GATES LLP

Cpite s

Cynthia M. Weed
Enclosure: Terms of Engagement for Legal Services
Cc: Benjamin M. Wegener

| confirm our engagement of K&L Gates LLP as set forth herein and in the enclosed Terms of
Engagement.

Grand Junction Regicnal Airport Authority

Steve Wood
Chairman of the Board

Date:

August §, 2016



K&L GATES LLP

TERMS OF ENGAGEMENT FOR LEGAL SERVICES

Thank you for selecting K&L Gates LLP ("K&L Gates")
to represent you and to provide legal services as
described in our engagement letter. These Terms of
Engagement for Legal Services (the “Terms"),
together with our engagement letter, set forth the
basis upon which K&L Gates will provide legal
services to you. Absent a contrary agreement
between us, we will understand that our engagement
leiter and these Terms supersede any prior oral
understandings between us and together form the
contract (‘Engagement Contract’) for our initial
engagement and any subsequent assignments upon
which you and we may mutually agree.

We believe it is important to establish clearly the basic
terms of our engagement at the outset. Accordingly,
if you have any questions concerning these Terms,
please contact the lawyer responsible for your
engagement so that your questions or concerns may
be addressed and resolved prompily.

INTRODUCTION

K&L Gates comprises mulliple affiliated entities: a
limited liability partnership named K&L Gates LLP
qualified in Delaware ("K&L Gates-US.," the “Firm,” or
*we” or "us” as the context requires) and maintaining
offices in cerain states throughout the United States
and in a number of intemational multiple affiliated
entities.

' KBL Gates camptises mulliple affiialed entities; a limited liability
partnership named K&L Gates LLP qualified in Delaware {"K&L
Gales-US,", the “Firm, or "we" or "us" as the contexl requires) and
maintaining offices in certaln states throughout the United states and
in Beijing ('K&L Gates LLP Beljing Reprasentative Office”), Berin,
Doha, Dubal. Frankfurt, Munich, Secul ["K&L Gales LLP Seou!
Foreign Legal Consultant Office”}, Shanghal (KAL Gates LLP
Shanghal Representative Office”), and Singapore; an Ausfralian
mult-disciplinary parinership malntaining offices in  Brisbane,
Melbourne, Perth and Sydney ("K&L Gates-AUS"); a limiled liability
parinership (also named K&L Gates LLP); incorporated In England
and Wales and maintaining offices In London and Paris ("K&t Gates-
UK. a Delaware general partnership ("K&L Gates Belgum®)
maintaining an office in Brussels; a Hong Kong general partnarship
{"K&L Gates, Solicitors”) maintaining an office in Hong Kong, a
professional association established and organized under the laws of
Haly named Studio Legale Associate with an office in Milan; a general
partnarship organized under the laws of Brazll namad K&L Gates LLP
- Consultores em Direito Entrangeiro/Direito Norte-Americano, with
an office In S&c Paulo; a Taiwan general parinership ("K&1 Gales”)
maintaining an office in Taipel, a joint enterprise formed in
accordance with Japanese regulations ('KAL Gates Gaikokuha Joint
Enterprise”) maintaining an office in Tokyo; and a Polish limited
partnership (K&L Gates Jamka sp.k) maintaining an office in
Warsaw

OTHER K&L GATES ENTITIES

You agree that, as your agent, we may engage other
K&L Gates entities to assist us in carrying out our
engagement, where appropriate and with nolice to
you.

Numerous countries in which our offices are localed
have enacted Anti-Money Laundering (“AML") laws. If
K&L Gates lawyers in any of these offices are
engaged to assist you in matters within the scope of
our engagement, it will be necessary to comply with
the appiicable AML laws. In connection therewith, we
or lawyers from the appropriate office may be
required to obtain additional, specific evidence of
client identity from you and/or to report cerain
Iransactions to the authorities. i these AML
requirements are applicable, you will be informed of
the details needed for compliance.

OUR LAWYER-CLIENT RELATIONSHIP

The Firm has been engaged to represent only the
clieni(s) named in our engagement letter (“you" or the
"Client”), even if someone other than you, including
an insurer, is responsible for paying, or has agreed to
pay, our stalements. Accordingly, absent a specific,
separate engagement 1o represent such other
persons or entilies, (1) if our Client is an individual,
the Firm has not agreed to represent, and is not
represanting, any other person or any affiliated entity;
(2) if our Client is a corporation, parinership, joint
venture or other entity, the Firm has nol agreed to
represent, and is not representing, any of your
constituents, including diractors, officers, employees,
managing agents, pariners, members, shargholders,
affiliates (including parents and subsidiaries) or other
persons associated with you; and, (3) if our Clientis a
trade association or other member organization, the
Firm has not agreed to represent, and is nol
reprasenting, any director, officer, member of or other
enlity represented by you or any of your other
constituents.

fn addition, the Firm's engagement to represent you is
limited to the mattes(s) described in our engagement
letter and to any additional matters for which the Fimm
expressly agrees to provide legal representation.

You acknowledge that the Firm has not provided you
with legal advice concemning the terms and conditions
of our Engagement Confract.

Terms - 1



QUR CHARGES FOR LEGAL SERVICES

A. Legal Fees
Our bond counsel fee will be a fixed fee of

$25,000 and for disclosure work, $15,000, payable
only upon the issuance of the Bonds,

OUR BILLING AND PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS
A, Billing

Our fee for this issue will be delivered upon
the completion of our work.

B. Payment

We will expect payment to be made within
thirty days afier your receipt of our statement, without
regard to the consummation of any proposed
transaction or the outcome of any maiter. Payment
should be made by you in the full amount of our
statement and you will be responsible also for any
withholding tax or other deduction that may be
chargeable to you by the relevant taxing authorities or
by a governmental entity. In the event our statements
are not paid in a timely manner, we reserve the right
to defer further work on your account and, where such
arrearage is not resolved after notice of delinquency
is given to you, to terminate our representation of you.
Under such circumstances, you agree to consent to,
and not oppose, such temmination and to sign a
substitution of counsel and/or such other document as
may be reascnably necessary to effect the Firm's
fermination of our lawyer-client relationship, including
fhe Firm's withdrawal of its prior appearance in any
court or other litigated proceeding. The termination of
our lawyer-client relationship shall not affect your
ongoing responsibility for any fees or other charges
incurred as of the date of our notice of termination.

c. Third Party Payment Responsibility

If a third party (including an insurer)
undertakes to pay any portion of the Firm's bills,
1) you will remain responsible for payment of any
amounts billed by the Firm and not paid by that third
party, 2} you hereby consent to the application of
those funds to the outstanding balance of your
account with the Firm and waive any right you might
otherwise have o direct us to pay or apply those
funds in any other fashion, and 3) to the extent any
such third party makes payment to us on your behalf
accompanied by directions as to what portion of
outstanding fees and expenses are lo be covered by
such payment, you hereby consent to us adhering to
those directions and waive any right you might
otherwise have to direct us to pay or apply those
funds in any other fashion. If you are awarded legal
fees or cosls by a court or other party, you will remain
responsible for payment of the Firm's billed fees and

other charges, even if the award o you is less than
the amounts we have billed you. Where we have
agreed to represent multiple clients in a matter, each
client will be jointly and severally responsible for
payment of the Firm's statements.

D. Questions

If you have any questions about any
statement that we submit to you, you should contact
the lawyer responsible for your engagement as soon
as you receive it so that we may understand and
address your concerns promptly.

TERMINATICN
A. Your Right to Terminate

You may terminate our engagement on any
or all matters at any time, with or without cause. Your
termination of our services will not affect your
responsibility to pay for billed and unbilled legal
services rendered or other charges incurred as of the
date of termination and, where appropriate, for such
expenses as we may incur in effecting an orderly
transition to successor lawyers of your choice.

B. Our Right to Terminate

Subject to any applicable ethical rule or legal
requirement, the Firm reserves the right to terminate
its representation of you, subject to such parmission
from any court or tribunal as may be required under
the circumstances. |n such event, we will provide you
with reasonable notice of our decision to terminate
and afford you a reasonable opportunity to arrange for
successor lawyers, and we will assist you and your
successor lawyers in effecting a transition of the
engagement. Reasons for the Firm's lermination may
include your breach of our Engagement Contract
including, without limitation, failure to pay outstanding
statements in a timely manner as set forth above, the
risk that continued representation may result in our
violation of applicable rules of professional conduct or
legal standards or of our obligations to any tribunal or
third parties, your failure to pive us clear or proper
direction as to how we are to proceed or to cooperate
in our representation of your interests, or other good
cause.

c. Termination Upon Conclusion

Unless it is previously terminated, our
representation of you, and our lawyer-client
relationship with you, will be deemed to have been
terminated upon the conclusion of our services and
our delivery of our final statement for the services
described in our engagement letter and any additional
matiers for which the Firm has expressly agreed to
provide representation.

Terms -2



D. Post-Engagement Matters

After the conclusion or termination of our
representation of you as described in our engagement
letter and these Terms, changes in relevant laws,
regulations or decisional authorities may affect your
rights and obligations. Unless you engage the Firm to
provide future servicas and to advise you with respect
to any issues that may arise in the future as a result of
such changes, we will have no continuing obligation
to advise you with respect to future legal
developments.

OUR COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENTS

The Firm's lawyers strive to keep our clients
reasonably informed about the status of our
engagements and promptly to comply with reasonable
requesis for information. To enable us to provide
effective representation, you agree to be truthful and
to cooperate with us in the course of the engagement
and io keep us reasonably informed of materia)
developments,

If there are particular limitations on how you would
like us to communicate with you, please advise us in
advance about your preferences. Unless you advise
us to the contrary, howaver, we will assume that
communication by e-mail and fax is acceptable to
you. Absent special arrangements, we do not employ
encryption  technologies in our  electronic
communications.

CONFIDENTIALITY

A. Confidentiality and Disclosure

We owe a duty of confidentiality to all our
clients. Accordingly, you acknowledge that we will not
be required to disclose to you, or use on your behalf,
any documents or information in our possession with
respect to which we owe a duty of confidentiality to
another client or former client.

B. Disclosure to Certain Third Parties

You agree that we may, when required by
our Insurers, auditors or other advisers, provide
details to them of any matter or matters on which we
have represented you.

C. Disclosure to Cther K&L Gates Entities

You agree that we may disclose confidential
information relating {0 you, or any matters on which
we are representing you, to other K&L Gales entities.

D. Datz Protection

Any information, including personal data,
that K&L Gates collects in our global legal practice
may be controlled, stored and processed in, and
transferred among, any of our offices and with such
contractors as we engage 1o assist us in our praclice,
and may be transferred to and through any country,
including countries that may not have privacy (data
protection) legislation and regulations comparable, for
example, o countries in the European Economic
area, The location of our offices and of such
contractors may change from time to time, and we
may acquire offices and engage contractors in other
countries at any time. We understand that, in
engaging the Firm, you expressly consent to all such
control, storage, processing and transfers.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Firm's lawyers, acting in a vanely of praclice
areas and in multiple jurisdictions, provide and will
provide legal services lo thousands of current clients
and future clients. Those clients may be competitors,
customers, suppliers or have other business dealings
and relationships inter se. As a result, those clients
may have matters in which their interests are actually
or potentially adverse to one another.

In these circumstances, the Firm's ability 1) to
represent you in any matter involving, directly or
indirectly, another client, and 2) to represent as a
client any individual or entity that is or has been
adverse to you will be governed exclusively by
applicable rules of professional conduct, unless
otherwise agreed fo by you and the Firm and, as
appropriate, any other Firm client. To allow the Firm
to represent both you and other current and future
clients in pending or future matters to the fullest
extent consistent with appficable ethical restrictions,
we request our clients {o agree to a limited waiver of
cerlain actual or potential conflicts of interest.

Specifically, by this engagement, (1) you agree that
the Firm can represent other clients whose interests
are actually or potentially adverse to you and can
represent as a client any individual or entity that is or
has been adverse to you, provided that: (a) the matter
is not substantially related to any current or concluded
matter in which the Firm has represented you; {b) in
camying out any such other representation, the Firm
shall not violate the duty of confidentiality that we owe
to you; and, (c) prior to undertaking the other
representation, the Firm has reasonably concluded, in
the existing circumstances, including this consent,
that the Firm can provide competent and diligent
representation {o you and each other affected client
and that the other representation complies with
applicable ethical standards; and, {2) you agree that
you will not seek to disqualify us from representing

Terms -3



other clients with respect to any matters where such
provisos arg satisfied.

You further agree that, if you choose to withdraw your
consent to the Firm's representation of another client
in any such other representation, you will, at our
request, engage other counsel, and, after any brief
and reasonably necessary transition period (for which
we will not bill you), you will permit us to terminate our
representation of you unless any rule or statute or
tribunal with jurisdiction precludes us from doing so.

We have a large and diverse transactional patent
practice. You agree that no conflict of interest Is
presented when, on behalf of other Firm clients, we
render patentability, infringement and validity opinions
regarding, and advance patentabilily arguments over,
patents and/or patent applications owned, licensed or
controlled by you, but not handled by our law firm.

We also have a large and diverse transactional
frademark practice. You agree that no conflict of
interest is presented when, on behalf of other Firm
clients, we render registrability, infringement and
validity opinions regarding, and advance registrability
arguments over, registered or unregistered
trademarks and/or trademark registration applications
owned, licensed or controlled by you, but not handled
by our faw firm.

Finally, you agree that, for the purposes of
determining whether any conflict may exist, only the
client(s) identified in our engagement letter, and not
any affiliated entity or person, shall be considered our
client.

OPPOSING LAWYERS

In addition to our representation of business and not-
for-profit entities as well as individuals, we also
regularly serve as legal counsel to lawyers and law
firms. From time to time, we engage other lawyers
and law firms to represent us. As a result, opposing
lawyers in a malter may be a lawyer or law firm that
we represert now or may represent in the future.
Likewise, opposing lawyers in a matter may represent
us now or in the fulure, Further, we have professional
and personal relationships with many other lawyers,
often because of our participation in professional
organizations.  Collectively, these situations are
common Iin the legal field. We believe that these
relationships with other lawyers will not adversely
affect our ability o represent you.

DOCUMENT RETENTION

Your original hard copy documents and property,
described further below, will be returned to you upon
conclusion of our representation of you on a particular
matter (unless they are relevant to another matter on
which we continue to represent you) and, upon our

receipt of payment for outstanding fees and other
charges, subject to applicable Rules of Professional
Conduct. At that time, you will also have the
opportunity to accept the remainder of your entire
client file, including lawyer work product. Some K&L
Gates offices maintain files in a digital image
format. If you request your file from any of those
offices, we will provide it in an elecironic forrmat on a
CD, DVD or other medium. Should you decide not to
accepl your remaining file at that time, you authorize
us to destroy your files at our discretion. If you do not
raquest the return of your file at the time your matter
is concluded, we may relain or destroy the file without
further notice to you.

Original documents and property, if nol retumed to
you for any reason, will be designated for permanent
retention and will not be destroyed without your prior
approval, Such items include, but are not limited to,
money orders, travelers checks, stocks and bonds,
final executed releases, seitiement agreements,
contracts and sale or purchase agreements,
judgments, deeds, titles, easements, wills and trusts,
powers of attorney and all other dispositive estate
planning documents.

You agree that our drafts of documents, noles,
internal working papers, internal e-mail and electronic
databases shall be and remain the properly of K&L
Gates LLP and shall not be considered part of your
client file.

The Firm retains the right to make copies of your file,
at our expense, for our own information and retention
purposes.

FIRM LAWYERS' PRIVILEGE

We believe it is in your interest as well as the Firm's
interest that, in the event ethical or other legal Issues
arise during our representation of you, including
conflict of interest issues or potential disputes
between us, the Firm lawyers working on your behaif
are able to receive informed, confidential advice
regarding their obligations.  Accordingly, i we
determine in our discretion that it is necessary or
advisable for Firm lawyers to consult with our internal
or outside counsel, you agree that they may do so
and that you recognize the Firm has a lawyer-client
privilege protecting the communications between the
Firm lawyers working on your behalf and the Firm's
internal or outside counsel.

NEW YORK FEE DISPUTE PROCESS

If any of our New York licensed lawyers work on this
matter and if a material portion of the legal services
we provide to you takes place in New York, you may
have an option to invoke arbitration should a fee
dispute arise between you and us during or at the
conclusion of this engagement. Specifically, in any
civil matter where the fee dispute involves a sum of

Terms -4



up to $50,000, you may have a right to compel
resolution by binding arbitration. In addition, whether
or not binding arbitration is available, both you and we
are encouraged to seek resolution of lawyer-client
disputes, including fee disputes, through mediation,
and the New Yark Courts and Bar have established a
program for mediation of such disputes by an
impartial mediator. In the event that any fee dispute
shiould arise in this engagement which is not promptly
and satisfactorily resolved between us, we shall
furnish you with further details conceming the
procedures and effects of arbitration and mediation,
s0 that you can make an informed decision as to how
to proceed in the circumstancas.

CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES

It is possible that you may have insurance policies
relating 1o the matter that is the subject of our
engagement.  You should carefully check the
insurance policies you have purchased and, if
coverage may be available, you should provide notice
to all insurers that may provide such coverage as
soon as possible. Although we will be pleased fo
assist you in assessing the poiential for coverage
under any policles you may have, our engagement
will not include advising you with respect to the
existence or availability of insurance coverage for
matters within the scope of our engagement unless
you supply us with copies of your insurance policies
and expressly request our advice on the potential
coverage available under such policies.

SEVERANCE OF TERMS

If all or any part of our Engagement Contract Is or
becomes lllegal, invalid or unenforceable in any
respect, then the remainder will remain valid and
enforceable.

THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

Na provision of our Engagement Contract is intended
to be enforceable by any third party. Accordingly, o
third party shall have any right to enforce or rely on
any provision of our Engagement Contract.

ASSIGNMENT

A. Permitted Assignment

We may assign the benefit of our
Engagement Contract to any partnership or corporate
entity that carries on the business of K&L Gates-US in
succession lo us and you will accept the performance
by such assignee of the Engagement Contract in
substitution for our performance. References in these
Terms {other than in this paragraph) and in any
relevant engagement letter to the Firm or to K&L
Gates-US shall include any such assignes.

B. Other Assignment

Subject to the foregoing paragraph, neither
you nor we shall have the right to assign or transfer
the benefit or burden of our Engagement Contract
without the written consent of the other party.

DEFINITIONS

In these Terms a reference to a “matter” is to a
transaction, case or other matter as to which at any
time you have engaged us to represent you; and, any
refarance to “our services” is fo the legal services to
be provided by us to you as described in our
engagement letter and any other legal services
provided by us to you at any time in relation fo a
matter.

INCONSISTENCIES

In the event of any inconsistency between our
engagement letter and these Terms, the engagement
Ietter shall prevail,

RESOLVING PROBLEMS AND DISPUTES

If you have any complaints or concerns about our
work for you, piease raise these in the first instance
with the lawyer responsible for your engagement or
with the Firm's Chairman and Global Managing
Partner (Peter J. Kalis: 412-355-6562 or 212-536-
4828). We will Investigate your complaini promptly
and carefully and do what we reasonably can to
rasolve the difficultias to your satisfaction.

APPLICATION OF TERMS

These Terms supersede any earlier terms of business
we may have agreed with you and, in the absance of
express agreement to the contrary, will appiy to the
services refered to in any engagement letler
accompanying these Terms and all subsequent legal
services we provide to you.

Terms -5



	Regular Board Meeting - August 16 2016
	August 16, 2016 Board packet
	Agenda
	Minutes
	G4S Invoice
	Pay Request: Mead & Hunt - TAP
	West Ramp Repair
	C1A Pavement Repair
	Landside Fog Seal
	Asset Disposal/Purchase - Ops Buggy
	Financial Update
	Projects Update
	Pre-Security Food Service
	Terminal Area Plan Update
	2013 Project Discussion
	Resolution 2016-004 - Revised Banking Resolution
	Resolution 2016-005 - Appointment of Budget Officer
	Resolution 2016-006 - MCFMLD Grant
	AIP 54 Grant Offer & Co-Sponsorship Agreements
	AIP 54 - Award of Contract
	Selection of bond counsel


